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. KAFOURY, ARMSTRONG & CO.
(( g )) A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
and the County Manager
Clark County, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clark County, Nevada, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Las Vegas
Valley Water District, or Big Bend Water District, which, when combined, represent 30
percent, 27 percent, and 56 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and
revenues of the Enterprise Funds. Additionally, we did not audit the financial
statements of the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada, a
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for University Medical Center of Southern
Nevada, Las Vegas Valley Water District, Big Bend Water District, and Regional
Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2011, and the respective
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changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated January 9, 2012, on our consideration of the County's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the resuits of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information,
and pension and OPEB trend data and related notes on pages 3 through 12 and 129
through 150 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
management’s discussion and analysis and pension and OPEB trend data, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. The budgetary
comparison information and related notes have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise Clark County, Nevada's basic financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

7{%&“’? d/’vmoﬁmqg Z Co.

Las Vegas, Nevada
January 9, 2012



Clark County, Nevada

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

The discussion and analysis of Clark County, Nevada (the County) is designed to, (a) assist the reader in focusing on
significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the County’s financial activities, (c) identify changes in the County’s
financial position (its ability to address subsequent years’ challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial
plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

We encourage readers to read this information in conjunction with the transmittal letter, financial statements and
accompanying notes to gain a more complete picture of the information presented.

Financial Highlights — Primary Government

The auditor’s report offers an unqualified opinion that the County’s financial statements are presented fairly in all
material respects.

Government-wide net assets totaled $11,846,073,202. Net assets of governmental activities totaled $7,512,435,065 and
those of business-type activities totaled $4,333,638,137.

The County’s total net assets increased by $53,189,683, resulting from an increase in net assets from governmental
activities of $67,457,820 and a decrease in net assets from business-type activities of $14,268,137. Net assets from
governmental activities increased mainly due to continued cost containment efforts and a 5% increases in both
consolidated and sales taxes. Net assets from business-type activities decreased due to operating losses of University
Medical Center and the Las Vegas Valley Water District, as well as a one-time loss by the Water Reclamation District of
funds invested in the Clean Water Coalition.

Unrestricted net assets were $2,182,059,763, with $1,353,189,536 resulting from governmental activities and
$828,870,227 from business-type activities. Unrestricted net assets from governmental activities increased by 21 percent
from the prior year, and unrestricted net assets from business-type activities increased by 14 percent over the prior year.

Net capital assets were $14,562,144,685 of which $5,972,206,597 were from governmental activities and $8,589,938,088
were from business-type activities. Major additions for governmental activities during the year included $182 million
toward beltways, roadways, and streets, and $89 million toward flood control projects. Major additions for business-type
activities during the year included $30 million in water system additions, $113 million for terminal 3 and other additions
for the Department of Aviation, and $333 million in sewer system additions. Depreciation expense attributable to assets
of governmental activities amounted to $233,415,343 for the year, and $302,871,157 for business-type activities.

Bonds and loans payable totaled $9,725,978,319. There were no new debt issues for governmental activities during the
fiscal year. The following new debt was issued for business-type activities during the fiscal year:

General obligation bonds:
$1,643,669 in bonds for the Clark County Water Reclamation District
$58,110,000 in bonds for the Las Vegas Valley Water District

Revenue bonds
$100,000,000 in bonds for the Department of Aviation

The County’s primary revenue sources for governmental activities were ad valorem taxes ($601,438,779) consolidated
taxes ($403,987,801), and sales and use taxes ($218,240,722). These three revenue sources comprised 23 percent,
16 percent, and 8 percent, respectively, or 47 percent of total governmental activities revenues.



The County’s total expenses were $4,209,325,586. Governmental activities comprised $2,534,043,816 of total expenses,
the largest functional expenses being public safety ($1,160,142,925) and public works ($418,406,823). Business-type
activities contributed $1,675,281,770 to total expenses, the largest components being hospital ($569,477,328), airport
($517,023,190), and water ($383,354,972).

General government expenses were $187,548,288, or 19 percent less than the prior year due to cost containment, the
inactivation of the Clark County Redevelopment Agency and the transfer of information technology costs to an internal
service fund.

Welfare expenses were $156,825,380 or 15 percent less than the prior year due to a decrease in available property taxes.

At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $159,723,367 or 10 percent of total
General Fund expenditures and transfers out.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements which are
composed of government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and accompanying notes. This report also
contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

o The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

o The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and
deferred inflows. The difference between assets and deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows is reported
as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

o The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
and sick leave).

o The government-wide financial statements report three types of activities: governmental activities, business-type
activities, and discretely presented component units. The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions
of the County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, judicial, public
safety, public works, health, welfare, culture and recreation, community support, other, and interest on long-term debt.
The business-type activities of the County include operations of its hospital, airports, water and sewer utilities, and
other operations. Discretely presented component units account for functions of legally separate entities for whom the
County is financially accountable, but whose governing bodies are not substantially the same as the County. The
activities of the discretely presented component units include regional transportation and flood control planning.
Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative
offices. Contact information is included in The Reporting Entity section of Note I, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

o The government-wide financial statements include not only the business-type activities of the County itself (known as
the primary government), but also those of the legally separate component units: UMC, Las Vegas Valley Water
District, and the Clatk County Water Reclamation District. The Board of County Commissioners acts as the
governing board for each of these component units whose activities are blended with those of the primary government
because they function as part of the County government. Complete financial statements of the individual component



units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. Contact information is included in The Reporting
Entity section of Note I, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fund Financial Statements

o A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

— Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the County’s near-term financial requirements.

— Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

— The County maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the General Fund and the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department fund, both of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the combining
and individual fund statements and schedules. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions certain special revenue
funds have been included in the General Fund for financial reporting purposes as shown in the Major
Governmental Funds section. These funds are not included for budgetary comparison purposes described below.

— The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement is provided for each of the County’s governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget.
The budgetary comparison statements for the major governmental funds are presented as required supplementary
information; the budgetary comparison statements for all other governmental funds are included in the fund
financial statements accompanying information.

Proprietary Funds
— The County maintains two distinct types of proprietary funds.
¢ Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its hospital, airport, water, sewer,
and other activities.
¢ Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County’s various functions. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-
type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial

statements. The County uses internal service funds to account for the following activities:

* Construction management



Fleet maintenance

Investment pool operations
Employee benefits

Central printing and mailing
Information systems development
Self-insurance activities, including:
+ Liability insurance

+ Workers’ compensation

+ Group insurance

+ Other post-employment benefits

* X ¥ X X *

— Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, but with
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for UMC, Clark County Water
Reclamation District, and the Las Vegas Valley Water District, each of which is a blended component unit and
reported as a major fund within the fund financial statements. In addition, separate information is provided for an
additional major fund, the Department of Aviation. Conversely, the internal service funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal
service funds is provided in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules.

Fiduciary Funds

~ The County’s fiduciary funds consist of two (2) employee benefit funds, one (1) pension fund, and 41 agency
funds. The employee benefit funds are the Medical Insurance Premium Retirement Plan and the County Section
125 Plan. The pension fund is the Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan. The agency funds are used to
hold monies for other entities or individuals until disposition.

Notes to Financial Statements

— The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

— In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the Las Vegas Valley Water District’s progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension benefits to its employees as well as a schedule of funding progress for other post-employment
benefits. It also includes a schedule of budgetary comparisons for the following major governmental funds:
¢ General Fund
+ Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Special Revenue Fund

— The combining statements and individual fund schedules are presented immediately following the required

supplementary information.

— Unaudited statistical information is provided on a ten-year basis for trend and historical analysis, except where
data is not available due to the initial year of GASB Statement No. 34 presentation.



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net assets of the County as of June 30, 2011, and June 30, 2010, are summarized and analyzed below:

Clark County, Nevada Net Assets — Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets
Current and other assets $5,082,156,982  $4,796,635,499  $3,984,196,552  $4,458,083,840  $9,066,353,534  $9,254,719,339
Net capital assets 5,972.206,597 5,853,032,202 8.589.938.088 8,165.813,126 14,562,144.685 14,018,845.328
Total assets 11,054,363.579 10,649,667,701 12,574.134,640 12,623.896,966 23,628.498.219 _23.273,564,667
Deferred outflows - - 93,684,759 147,533,756 93,684,759 147,533,756
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 2,544,557,078 2,547,855,200 7,049,903,234 7,319,397,117 9,594,460,312 9,867,252,317
Other liabilities 997,371,436 656,835.256 1,283,800,399 1,104,127,331 2,281,171.835 1,760,962,587
Total liabilities 3,541,928.514 3,204,690.456 8,333,703.633 8.423.524.448 11,875,632,147 11,628.214,904
Deferred inflows - - 477,629 - 477,629 -
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 5,161,926,856 4,995,921,396 3,108,143,202 3,220,806,971 8,270,070,058 8,216,728,367
Restricted 997,318,673 1,326,516,499 396,624,708 398,799,707 1,393,943,381 1,725,316,206
Unrestricted 1,353,189.536 1,122.539.350 828.870,227 728,299,596 2,182.059.763 1,850,838.946
Total net assets $7.512,435,065 $7.444.977.245 $4.333.638.137 434 4 $11.846,073202 $11,792,883.519

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the County’s financial position. Assets exceeded
liabilities by $11,846,073,202 as of June 30, 2011, and by $11,792,883,519 as of June 30, 2010, a net increase of
$53,189,683, or one (1) percent.

The largest portion of the County’s net assets (70 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, etc.), less any related debt outstanding used to acquire those assets (unspent
proceeds from long-term debt issues). The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate the debt.

The County’s restricted net assets (12 percent) represent resources that are subject to external restrictions ‘on how they
may be used. Of these restricted net assets, 43 percent is for construction of capital assets, 26 percent is for repayment of
long-term debt, 14 percent is for police protection, and the balance is restricted for the County’s special revenue funds or
other purposes.

The remaining portion of the County’s net assets (18 percent) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the County’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At June 30, 2011, the County had positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a
whole, as well as for separate governmental and business-type activities



Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Consolidated tax
Sales and use tax
Franchise fees
Fuel taxes
Motor vehicle privilege tax
Room tax
Other
Gain on sale or
disposition of assets
Interest income

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Other
Interest on long-term debt
Hospital
Water
Airport
Sewer
Other

Total expenses
Increase in net assets
before transfers
Transfers
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets — beginning
Restatement of beginning fund
balances

Net assets restated

Net assets — ending

increases in all categories

Clark County, Nevada Changes in Net Assets — Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$353,233,862 $ 367,818,754 $1,445,400,401  $1,429,880,969 $1,798,634,263  $1, 797, 699,723
532,327,951 532,784,892 65,000,000 65,400,000 597,327,951 598,184,892
176,377,216 256,791,998 64,861,568 60,209,144 241,238,784 317,001,142
601,438,779 773,956,199 12,713 16,738 601,451,492 773,972,937
403,987,801 383,366,531 48,509 50,042 404,036,310 383,416,573
218,240,722 208,946,026 13,408,757 12,472,583 231,649,479 221,418,609
104,584,978 96,089,107 - - 104,584,978 96,089,107
70,291,059 71,381,785 - - 70,291,059 71,381,785
46,673,088 47,373,522 - - 46,673,088 47,373,522
36,918,685 32,338,354 - - 36,918,685 32,338,354
32,660,591 29,054,214 - - 32,660,591 29,054,214
2,949,516 1,747,497 657,218 709,052 3,606,734 2,456,549
34,319,177 75,901,563 59,122,678 41,167,124 93,441,855 117,068,687
2,614,003.425 2,877.550,442 1,648.511.844 1,609,905.652 4,262,515,269 4,487.456.094
187,548,288 230,702,394 - - 187,548,288 230,702,394
211,063,243 201,902,371 - - 211,063,243 201,902,371
1,160,142,925 1,212,609,296 - - 1,160,142,925 1,212,609,296
418,406,823 436,880,168 - - 418,406,823 436,880,168
111,895,396 101,240,331 - - 111,895,396 101,240,331
156,825,380 184,093,105 - - 156,825,380 184,093,105
28,788,472 35,200,111 - - 28,788,472 35,200,111
39,629,471 44,195,982 - - 39,629,471 44,195,982
111,567,373 111,022,098 - - 111,567,373 111,022,098
108,176,445 111,231,936 - - 108,176,445 111,231,936
- - 569,477,328 581,325,269 569,477,328 581,325,269
- 383,354,972 371,696,883 383,354,972 371,696,883
- - 517,023,190 528,022,591 517,023,190 528,022,591
- - 153,062,108 116,989,734 153,062,108 116,989,734
- - 52,364,172 60,566,115 52,364,172 60,566,115
2.,534,043,816 2,669,077,792 1,675,281,770 1,658.600,592 4.209,325,586 4,327,678.384
79,959,609 208,472,650 (26,769,926) (48,694,940) 53,189,683 159,777,710
(12,501,789) (13,664.476) 12,501,789 13,664.476 - -
67.457.820 194,808,174 (14,268.,137) (35,030,464) 53,189,683 159,777,710
7,444,977,245 7,250,169,071 4,347,906,274 4,400,667,720 11,792,883,519  11,650,836,791
- - - (17,730,982) - (17,730,982)
7,444.977,245 7,250,169.071 4,347.906.274 4,382.936,738 11,792.883.519 _11,633,105.809

$7.512.435.065 $7.444.977.245  $4.333.638.137 $4.347.906274  $11.846,073.202 $11,792.883.519

e Program revenues included charges for services, fines and forfeitures, certain licenses and permits, special assessments,
and both operating and capital grants and contributions. Program revenues from governmental activities decreased by
$95,456,615, or eight (8) percent, due to decreases in donated infrastructure, partially offset by increases in federal grant
activity. Program revenues from business-type activities increased by $19,771,856, or one (1) percent, with slight

o General revenues consisted of taxes and interest not allocable to specific programs. For governmental activities, the
largest of these revenues, ad valorem taxes, decreased by $172,517,420, or 22 percent. This decrease was due mainly to
decreases in commercial assessed valuation. Consolidated tax increased by $20,621,270, or five (5) percent, and sales



and use tax increased in governmental activities by $9,294,696, or four (4) percent, both due to increased economic
activity in the local economy during fiscal year 2011. Franchise fees increased by $8,495,871 or nine (9) percent, due to
non-recurring audit assessments. Interest revenue for governmental activities decreased by $41,582,386 or 55 percent;
interest revenue for business-type activities decreased by $17,955,554, or 44 percent. These decreases were due to lower
rates of investment returns.

¢ County governmental activity expenses decreased five (5) percent in fiscal year 2011. Decreases in general government
of § 43,154,106 or 19 percent were due to cost containment efforts, the deactivation of the Clark County Redevelopment
Agency and the transfer of information technology costs to an internal service fund. Public Safety expenses decreased by
$52,466,371, or four (4) percent due to cost containment and decreased capital outlay. Public works expenses decreased
by 18,473,345, or four (4) percent due to decreased road construction and financing. Welfare support expenses decreased
by $27,267,725, or 15 percent, due reductions in property taxes available to fund this function. Sewer functional area
expenses increased $36,072,374, or 31 percent, due to a one-time loss of funds invested in the Clean Water Coalition.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

e The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

o The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.

o As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance
of $2,223,045,950, a decrease of $104,759,736, or five (5) percent, from the prior year primarily due to reduced
fund balances in capital projects funds. As mentioned previously, the County implemented GASB Statement 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions, which changed the classification of fund balances
and clarified the definitions of governmental fund types. Fund balance components have been classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the County
is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources of fund. Restricted fund balance is
$936,141,551 or 42% of the total. Spending of these resources is constrained by externally imposed (statutory, bond
covenant, or grantors) limitations on their use. Restricted fund balances include $376,965,225 for capital projects
and $196,088,919 for public safety activities and $178,312,212 for debt service.

Committed and assigned fund balances combined represent 49% of total fund balance with spending constrained
either by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) (for committed) or senior management (for assigned).
Committed balances in the special revenue funds are primarily due to transfers or revenues directed by the BCC to
those funds to support the programs. Unassigned fund balance represents the General Fund remaining fund balance
and is available to support general operations of the fund.

o The General Fund is the main operating fund of the County. Fund balance categories have changed from the prior
year as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement 54. Nonspendable fund balance consists of long-term
receivables. Restricted fund balance of $69,691,630 includes restricted cash and unspent proceeds from legislatively
mandated ad valorem taxes. Unrestricted fund balance, which includes committed, assigned, and unassigned
balances, totaled 266,253,115 at June 30, 2011. Unrestricted fund balance was 17% of expenditures and other
financing uses and includes amounts assigned of $106,529,748. Unassigned fund balance is 159,723,367, or 10% of
expenditures and other financing uses.

o Key factors in the change in fund balance in the General Fund as reported for budget purposes are as follows:

— Revenues and transfers-in decreased by $44,094,014, or three (3) percent. General fund revenues decreased by
$73,544,519, or eight (8) percent. Ad valorem tax revenues generated the largest revenue decrease of
$69,067,918, or 20 percent, due to commercial valuation decreases. Licenses and permits increased by $8,621,834
or four (4) percent due to non-recurring franchise fee audit assessments. Intergovernmental revenue, the largest
component of which is the consolidated tax, increased by $13,418,899, or five (5) percent, due to the increased



economic activity in the local economy. Charges for services increased by $5,125,886 or seven (7) percent,
largely due to first-time overhead charges to the IT function, which was included in the general fund in prior years.
Interest income decreased by $4,006,506, or 83 percent, due to lower interest rates. Other revenues decreased due
to a $25 million land sale last year.

Expenditures and transfers out decreased by $101,982,929, or eight (8) percent. General fund expenditures
decreased $22,974,168, or three (3) percent primarily due to continued cost containment procedures and a partial
transfer of the information technology function to an internal service fund. Transfers out decreased by
$79,008,761, or 16 percent primarily due to reductions in transfers to capital project funds and to the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department.

o Other major fund activity is as follows:

— The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department operates from current year resources and it typically budgets for a

lower fund balance than other governmental units. However, it ended the year with a total unrestricted fund
balance of $78,550,254. Total revenues and transfers in were $510,524,091, which was a decrease of $55,191,434
or 10 percent, over the prior year. This decrease occurred primarily due to a reduction of property taxes.
Expenditures, which are primarily personnel costs, decreased $22,965,565 or four (4) percent.

The non-major governmental funds showed a fund balance of $1,784,508,183, of which $866,449,921 or 49% was
restricted. All funds have the resources to meet their commitments.

Enterprise Funds

— The County’s enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial

statements, but in more detail. ~Minor differences arise between the enterprise funds and the business-type
activities in the government-wide statements due to the effects of consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to the enterprise funds. Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds totaled $841,541,658, an increase of
$104,145,324, or 14 percent. Total net assets for these funds decreased $14,268,137, one (1) percent from the
prior year. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
the County’s business-type activities.

Internal Service Funds

— The County’s internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally

among the County’s various functions. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Other factors concerning the finances of the internal service funds have already been addressed in the
discussion of the County’s governmental activities.

Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund’s legal level of budgetary control is the function level. The final amended budget for expenditure
appropriation was $824,511,814, unchanged from the original budget. Actual expenditures were $787,459,207, or four
(4) percent less than the final budget, primarily due to the County’s cost containment efforts.

Revenues of the general fund exceeded the final budget by $31,722,569, or four (4) percent due to an increase in
consolidated and sales taxes, as well as non-recurring franchise fee audit assessments.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Primary Government

Capital Assets
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o The County’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2011, was $14,562,144,685, an
increase of $543,299,357, or four (4) percent. Detail by type of activity and asset is summarized in the table below.

Major additions for this fiscal year are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Roadways and streets (beltway) $182 million Water system additions $ 30 million
Flood control projects $89 million Airport land acquisition
Parks and Recreation facilities $29 million and construction $ 113 million
Traffic signals and street lights $27 million Sewer system additions $ 333 million
Fire Department $18 million
Clark County, Nevada Capital Assets — Primary Government
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land and improvements $1,590,012,024 $1,564,248,453 §  3,096,450,672 $3,083,563,595 $4,686,462,696 $4,647,812,048
Buildings 868,261,365 846,089,522 2,612,582,538 2,545,433,689 3,480,843,903 3,391,523,211
Machinery and equipment 70,925,385 88,440,270 652,803,662 574,355,273 723,729,047 662,795,543
Infrastructure 3,221,604,929 3,096,378,527 - - 3,221,604,929 3,096,378,527
Construction in progress 221,402,894 257,875,430 2,228.,101,216 1,962.460.569 2,449,504,110 2,220,335,999
Total $5.972206.597  $5.853.032202  $8.589.938.08%8  $8,165813.126 $14,562,144.685 $14.018,845328

o For additional information on the County’s capital assets see note 4 in the accompanying financial statements.

Long-Term Debt
Primary Government

o At June 30, 2011, the County had total outstanding bonds and loans of $9,725,978,319, a decrease of $191,965,246, or
two (2) percent, from the prior year. Of this amount, $1,989,622,313 comprised general obligation debt backed by the
full faith and credit of the County, $2,455,411,300 of general obligation bonds additionally secured by specified revenue
sources, $400,181,690 of loans, primarily in the form of commercial paper, and $246,062,739 in special assessment debt
for which the County is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to assessment.

Clark County, Nevada Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
General obligation bonds $1,989,622,313  $2,055,166,107 § - 8 13,692 $1,989,622,313  $2,055,179,799

Revenue backed general
obligation bonds - - 2,455,411,300 2,473,627,359 2,455,411,300 2,473,627,359
Revenue bonds 10,000 10,000 4,634,690,277 4,724,153,300 4,634,700,277 4,724,163,300

Special assessment bonds 246,062,739 263,354,244 - - 246,062,739 263,354,244
Loans 181,690 408.796 400,000,000 401,210,067 400,181,680 401,618,863
Total $2.235876,742  $2318.939.147  $7.490,101.577  $7.599.004.418  $9.725978.319  $9.917.943.565

o For additional information on the County’s debt, see note 6 in the accompanying financial statements.

11



Economic Factors

e UMC continues to deal with the impact of uninsured patients. UMC’s operating loss was $94,512,750 for the fiscal year
2011 compared to $85,011,779 in fiscal year 2010. Continued high levels of care for uninsured and underinsured
patients, and a decrease in State Medicaid funding contributed to the increased operating loss. The County will need to
continue to fund these continued losses.

e Despite UMC'’s financial difficulties, the County has positioned itself to meet the needs of its citizens. The decrease in
taxable values has leveled out and the remaining tax base will generate adequate revenues to provide basic services. A
cost containment program continues to be in place, enforcing a reasonable pace of salary growth and position savings.
The County’s general fund unassigned ending fund balance remains healthy. Together, these factors have placed the
County in an acceptable financial position to mitigate the current economic uncertainty. However, the length of the
economic downturn could ultimately result in a continued deterioration of the County’s financial condition.

Requests for Information

o This report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all interested parties. Questions
concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
Jessica L. Colvin, Comptroller, at 500 South Grand Central Parkway, Las Vegas, NV 89155.

12
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Clark County, Nevada
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Fund balances — governmental funds $2,223,045,950
Capital assets used in governmental activities

are not financial resources and are therefore
not reported in the governmental funds:

Governmental capital assets $8,235,340,570
Less accumulated depreciation (2.263.133.973) 5,972,206,597

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period,
and therefore not reported in governmental funds:

Bonds payable, net of premiums and discounts (2,235,695,052)

Unamortized bond costs, premiums, and discounts 12,856,284

Loans payable (181,690)

Litigation liability (2,500,000)

LVMPD OPEB liability, net of Detention portion (157,275,254)

Compensated absences (177.215.604) (2,560,011,316)
Accrued interest payable (15,293,920)

Deferred revenue representing amounts that were
not available to fund current expenditures and
therefore are not reported in governmental funds 281,773,129

Long-term receivables restricted in governmental
funds, adjusted to allowance for uncollectibles

in statement of net assets (24,042,768)
Long-term receivables not recorded in governmental
funds:

Bond bank receivable from So. Nevada Water Authority 1,368,855,000

LVMPD OPEB receivable from City of Las Vegas 60,893,572 1,429,748,572

Internal service funds are used by management to
charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. Net assets of the internal service funds are
reported with the governmental activities 192,337,390

Internal balances that are receivable from business-

type activities 12,671,431
Net assets of governmental activities $7,512,435,065

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
-19-
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Clark County, Nevada
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances — governmental funds $ (104,759,736)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated
over their estimated useful lives. Also, the County
relinquished infrastructure that was annexed

by the cities. The County does not capitalize
items costing less than $5,000.

Capital outlay recorded in governmental funds $229,506,084
Less amounts not capitalized (36.819.078)
Capitalized expenditures 192,687,006
Less current year depreciation (232.693.908) (40,006,902)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do
not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the governmental funds:

Donated capital assets 159,707,192
Gain on sale of capital assets 65,545
Change in deferred revenue (18,503,074)
Bond bank operating contribution (4.355,000) 136,914,663

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
This is the amount by which bonds issued exceeded

repayments:
Accrued interest 835,330
Amortized bond costs 1,524,860
Principal payment _ 80,632,106 82,992,296

(Continued)
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Clark County, Nevada
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2011

(Continued)

Some expenses reported in the statement of

activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and therefore are not reported

as expenditures in governmental funds:
Change in long-term compensated absences $9,708,321
Change in LVMPD OPEB liability (38,730,694)
Change in arbitrage rebate liability 100,000

Long-term LVMPD OPEB receivable due from
the City of Las Vegas

Internal service funds are used by management
to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net expense of the internal
service funds is reported with governmental
activities.

Increase to internal balances that are receivable
from business-type activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$(28,922,373)

13,354,544

4,310,635

3,574,693

7,4
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Reporting Entity

Clark County, Nevada (the County) is a municipality governed by an elected seven-member board. As required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), these financial statements present
Clark County, Nevada (the primary government) and its component units.

Blended Component Units

Included as blended component units are the Las Vegas Valley Water District (Water District), Big Bend Water
District, University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC), Clark County Water Reclamation District
(Reclamation District) and the Clark County Redevelopment Agency (Redevelopment Agency).

Although each of the above-mentioned governmental units operates as a separate entity, the members of the Board
of Clark County Commissioners are also the board members (ex-officio) of each entity. Because each of the
component units has substantially the same governing body as the primary government, they are blended into the
financial statements. The operations of the Water District, Big Bend Water District, UMC, and the Reclamation
District are reflected as enterprise funds. The Redevelopment Agency is reflected as a special revenue fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Included as discretely presented component units are the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern
Nevada (RTC) and the Clark County Regional Flood Control District (Flood Control District). The RTC and the
Flood Control District are governed by two members of the Board of County Commissioners, two members of the
City of Las Vegas Council, and one member from the city council of every other incorporated city in Clark
County. The County is financially accountable for RTC and Flood Control District, and exclusion of these units
would render the financial statements of the County incomplete.

Separately issued financial statements for the component units may be obtained by contacting the component units at
the following addresses:

Las Vegas Valley Water District and Big Bend Water District
1001 South Valley View Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89153

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
1800 West Charleston Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Clark County Water Reclamation District
5857 East Flamingo Road
Las Vegas, Nevada 89122

Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada
600 South Grand Central Parkway, Suite 350
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

Regional Flood Control District

600 South Grand Central Parkway, Suite 300
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its component units. For the most part, the effect
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are generally
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges for services between the governmental activities and
business-type activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current year or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year. For this purpose, the County considers revenues, excluding
property taxes, to be available if they are collected within 90 days after the end of the current fiscal year. Property
taxes are considered available if collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due.

Property taxes, consolidated taxes, franchise fees, interest revenue, and charges for services associated with the
current fiscal year are considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues in the current
year. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the fiscal year is considered to be susceptible
to accrual as revenue of the current year. Fines and forfeitures, as well as licenses and permits, are not susceptible
to accrual as they are generally not measurable until received in cash.

The proprietary fund and employee benefit and pension fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise funds
and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees of the Reclamation District and Water District funds that are intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to their system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Fund accounts for the operation of a police department serving
the citizens of unincorporated Clark County and the City of Las Vegas.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

The University Medical Center Fund is a blended component unit of the County. It accounts for the operations
of the County’s hospital.
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The Water Reclamation District Fund is a blended component unit of the County. It accounts for the operations
of the County’s sewage treatment facilities.

The Water District Fund is a blended component unit of the County. It accounts for the operations of the
County’s water distribution system.

The Department of Aviation Fund accounts for the operations of McCarran International Airport, North Las
Vegas Airport, Henderson Executive Airport, Jean Sport Aviation Airport, Perkins Field in Overton, Nevada,
and Searchlight Airport.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for printing and mailing, fleet management, employee benefits, property
management, information technology, enterprise resource planning, investment pool costs and self-insurance
services provided to other departments or agencies of the County, or to other governments, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary funds include the Medical Insurance Premium Retirement Plan fund, the County Section 125 Plan
fund, and the Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan fund. These funds account for resources that are
required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of the employee benefit plans or for pension
benefit payments to qualified employees.

The agency funds are also included as fiduciary funds and they account for assets held by the County as an agent
for other governmental entities. The most significant activity in the agency funds is the collection and transfer
of taxes to other local governmental entities, primarily ad valorem and room taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Investments

With the exception of the Water Reclamation District and Water District, the County pools the cash of its
individual funds for investment purposes. Each fund in the pool records its own interest earnings. At year end, all
the investments in the pool are adjusted to fair value, regardless of the length of time remaining to maturity. The
proportionate share of each fund’s unrealized gain or loss at year end is adjusted against the interest earnings of the
individual funds. The Water Reclamation District and Water District also adjust their investments to fair value,
but only to the extent that they are maturing longer than a year from year end. (Also see Note II1.1.)

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Receivables and Payables (Continued)
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as

“internal balances.”

The accounts receivable are shown net of any provision for doubtful accounts.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

The Water District enterprise fund inventories are valued at the weighted average moving cost. The inventories
of the other proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost, determined by first-in, first-out method, or market.
Inventories consist primarily of materials and supplies.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs benefiting future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments and certain receivables that are restricted in
their use by bond covenants or other external agreements. They are primarily used to meet debt service
obligations.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks,
bridges, flood control structures, traffic signals, streetlights, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Significant
projects in process are depreciated once the projects are placed in service. Prior to that time, they are reported as
construction in progress. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 20-50
Land improvements 5-75
Infrastructure 25-50
Equipment 5-20
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Compensated Absences

It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused vacation and sick leave benefits.
Such benefits are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources whereas discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets or Equity

In the government-wide statements and in proprietary fund statements, equity is classified as net assets and
displayed in three components.

e Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets net of unspent financing proceeds.

o Restricted net assets — Net assets with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.”

In governmental fund financial statements equity is classified as fund balance and is displayed in up to five
components based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed on the
use of fund resources. These components are as follows:

e Nonspendable fund balances — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form”
criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and
prepaid amounts. It also includes the long-term amount of loans and notes receivable.

e Restricted fund balances - Similar to restricted net assets discussed above, these are amounts with
constraints placed on their use either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

e Laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

e Committed fund balances — Amounts with constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) through resolution or public meeting minutes that specifically state the revenue
source and purpose of the commitment. Commitments can only be modified or rescinded through public
meeting actions or resolutions by the BCC. Commitments can also include resources required to meet
contractual obligations approved by the BCC.

e Assigned fund balances — Amounts intended to be used for specific purposes by authorized County
management that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In the General Fund,
the assigned fund balance represents management approved encumbrances that have been re-appropriated
in the subsequent year, and amounts necessary to fund budgetary shortfalls in the next fiscal year from
unassigned resources. Senior County management is authorized to assign fund balances.

o Unassigned fund balances — Amounts in the General Fund not contained in other classifications. For
other governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting
from expenditures exceeding amounts that had been restricted, committed or assigned for specific
purposes.

Based on the County’s policy regarding the fund balance classification as noted above, when both restricted and
unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, restricted funds should be spent first unless legal requirements
disallow it. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, committed funds are to be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds
last.
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting Changes and Restatements

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 53, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, which addresses the recognition, measurement and disclosure of
information regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. As a result of this
statement, two new financial statement elements — deferred outflows and deferred inflows — have been added to
the Statement of Net Assets. Deferred outflows are added to net assets and deferred inflows are subtracted from
net assets. Refer to the “Derivative Instruments” section of Note 6 for more details.

During the year, certain accounting changes were made that required the restatement of fund balances and net
assets as shown and discussed below:

Restatements to Fund Balances/Net Assets

July 1, 2010 as

Previously July 1, 2010 as
Reported Restatements Restated

Government Fund and Government Activities
Major Funds:

General Fund $ 172,111,310 $ 214,317,491 $ 386,428,801

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Dept 76,417,479 - 76,417,479

Master Transportation Plan 29,779,486 (29,779,486) -
Total Major Funds 278,308,275 184,538,005 462,846,280
Nonmajor Funds:

Special Revenue Funds 614,037,147 (184,538,005) 429,499,142

Debt Service Funds 258,498,983 - 258,498,983

Capital Project Funds 1,176,961,281 - 1,176,961,281
Total Nonmajor Fund Balances 2,049,497.,411 (184,538,005) 1,864,959,406
Total Government Fund Balances 2,327,805,686 - 2,327,805,686
Government Activities

Other Adjustments 5,117,171,559 - 5,117,171,559
Total Government Activities Net Assets $ 7,444,977,245 $ - $ 7,444,977,245
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting Changes and Restatements (Continued)

The County implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions,
which changed the classification of fund balances and clarified the definitions of the general fund and other fund
types. Several of the County’s funds including the Master Transportation Fund, accounted for as special revenue
funds in prior years, no longer meet the definition of a special revenue fund under GASB Statement 54. Fund
balances in the general fund and special revenue funds have been restated by $214,317,491 to reflect this change.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year statements have been reclassified for comparison purposes to conform to the
current year presentation.

~ Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts

and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the following funds exceeded appropriations:

The Kyle Canyon Water District nonmajor enterprise fund expenses exceeded appropriations by $17,912. The Other
Post-Employment Benefits Reserve internal service fund expenses exceeded appropriations by $14,864,463.

DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

According to state statutes, County monies must be deposited with federally insured banks, credit unions, or savings
and loan associations within the County. The County is authorized to use demand accounts, time accounts, and
certificates of deposit. State statutes do not specifically require collateral for demand deposits, but do specify that
collateral for time deposits may be of the same type as those described for permissible investments. Permissible
investments are similar to allowable County investments described below, except that statutes permit a longer term
and include securities issued by municipalities within Nevada. The County’s deposits are fully covered by federal
depository insurance or collateral held by the County’s agent in the County’s name. The County has written
custodial agreements with the various financial institutions’ trust banks for demand deposits and certificates of
deposits. These custodial agreements pledge securities totaling 102 percent of the deposits with each financial
institution. The County has a written agreement with the State Treasurer for monitoring the collateral maintained by
the County’s depository institutions.
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All deposits are subject to credit risk. Credit risk is defined as the risk that another party to a deposit or investment
transaction (counterparty) will not fulfill its obligations. At year end, the bank balance of deposits held in custody of
the County Treasurer was $102,595,646 and the carrying amount was $75,520,731. The County utilizes zero
balance sweep accounts and there are money market funds available to cover amounts presented for payment.

The bank balance of deposits held in the custody of other officials was $280,173,896 and the carrying amount was
$274,747,559. The bank balance and the carrying value of deposits with fiscal agent was $5,091,955.

At June 30, 2011, the fair value of Countywide deposits, investments, derivative instruments, and loaned securities
reinvested consisted of the following:

Total Cash, Investments, Derivative Instruments, and Loaned Securities Reinvested

All Entities Combined
Fair Value

Investments $5,444,506,181

Derivative Instruments 48,928,789

Loaned Securities 502,566,468 $5,996,001,438
Cash , 355,360,245
Water District Pension : 183,198,772
Grand total $6,534,560,455

Investments

When investing monies, the County is required to be in conformance with state statutes and written policies adopted
by the Board of County Commissioners designating allowable investments and the safeguarding of those
investments. The County invests monies both by individual fund and through a pooling of monies. The pooled
monies, referred to as the investment pool, are theoretically invested on the whole and not as a combination of
monies from each fund belonging to the pool. In this manner, the County Treasurer is able to invest the monies at a
higher interest rate for a longer period of time. Interest is apportioned monthly to each fund in the pool based on the
average daily cash balances of the funds for the month in which the investment matures. Cash and investments in
the custody of the County Treasurer comprise the investment pool.

Securities purchased by the County are delivered against payments and held in a custodial safekeeping account with
the trust department of a bank designated by the County.

As described above, the cash and investments in custody of the County Treasurer are invested as a pool. Entity-wide

investment pools are considered to have the general characteristics of demand deposits in that the entity may deposit
additional funds at any time and also effectively may withdraw funds at any time without prior notice or penalty.
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Investments (Continued)

Therefore, cash and investments in custody of the County Treasurer for the proprietary funds are considered cash
equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows, in addition to cash in custody of other officials and cash
with fiscal agent. Cash received as collateral for loaned securities is not considered a cash equivalent for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in the following: obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies not
to exceed ten years maturity; negotiable notes or short-term negotiable bonds issued by other local governments of
the State of Nevada; negotiable certificates of deposit insured by commercial banks, credit unions or savings and
loan associations; nonnegotiable certificates of deposit issued by insured commercial banks, credit unions or savings
and loan associations, except certificates that are not within limits of insurance provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, unless those certificates are collateralized as is required for uninsured deposits; bankers’
acceptances eligible for rediscount with federal reserve banks, not to exceed 180 days maturity and 20 percent of
total investments; obligations of state and local governments if the interest on the obligation is tax exempt and is
rated “A” or its equivalent; commercial paper having an “A-1” rating or equivalent, not to exceed 270 days maturity
and 20 percent of the total investments; money market mutual funds with “AAA” rating invested only in federal
government or agency securities; master notes, bank notes or other short-term commercial paper rated “A-1” or its
equivalent, or in repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such securities; notes, bonds, and other unconditional
obligations issued by corporations organized and operating in the United States, having an “A” rating or equivalent,
not to exceed 5 years maturity and 20 percent of the total investments; collateralized mortgage obligations that are
rated “AAA” or its equivalent, not to exceed 20 percent of the total investments; asset-backed securities that are
rated “AAA” or its equivalent, not to exceed 20 percent of the total investments; repurchase agreements that are
collateralized at 102 percent and are executed with a primary dealer, not to exceed 90 days maturity. State statutes
require the County to invest with security dealers who are primary dealers when investing in repurchase agreements.
Primary dealers are a group of dealers that submit daily reports of market positions and monthly financial statements
to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its formal oversight.
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At June 30, 2011, the fair value of Countywide investments, derivative instruments, and loaned securities reinvested
were categorized by maturity as follows:

Investments with Derivative Instruments and Loaned Securities Reinvested — All Entities Combined

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1to3 305 More Than 5
Debt Securities
U.S. Treasuries $978,538,423 $255,589,834  $664,214916  $58,733,673 $ -
U.S. Agencies 3,562,419,355  1,272,981,465 1,829,699,460 459,738,430 -
Corporate Obligations 290,108,961 85,667,414 167,806,247 36,635,300 -
Money Market Funds 464,234,672 464,234,672 - - -
Commercial Paper 416,426,887 416,426,887 - - -
Certificates of Deposit 41,600,747 41,600,747 - - -
NV Local Government
Investment Pool ** 65,423,563 65,423,563 - - -
Collateralized Mortgage ,
Obligations 41,946,756 829,518 5,315,256 2,517,013 33,284,969
Collateralized Investment
Agreements* 17,461,210 17,461,210 - - -
Asset Backed Securities 68,912,075 - 25,217,356 36,544,179 7,150,540
Derivative Instruments 48.928.789 - - - 48.928.789
Total $5,996,001,438 $2,620,215.310 $2,692,253.235 $594,168,595 $89,364,298

* These are fully collateralized guaranteed investment contracts and forward delivery agreements related to

bond proceeds.

** The average duration is 69 days

The Local Government Investment Pool is an external pool administered by the State Treasurer with oversight by the
State of Nevada Board of Finance. The County deposits monies with the State Treasurer to be pooled with monies
of other local governments for investment in the local government pooled investment fund

At June 30, 2011, the Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Trust Fund had the following investments (includes

contract investments at contract value):

Investment Type

Fixed income securities
Equities

Total

Carrying Value

$105,980,011
77,218,761

183.1 2

Percent of Total

57.85%
42.15

100.00%
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Investment

Domestic Equity Fund
Domestic Bond Fund
Money Market Fund

Union Central Life Insurance Co. Contract

N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract
N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract
N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract
N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract
N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract
N.Y. Life Insurance Co. Contract

Total

Maturities

N/A

Weighted Average 7.23 years
Weighted Average 42 days

Open

Open

07/30/12
09/04/12
09/04/12
10/01/12
10/01/12

Carrying Value

$77,218,761
71,595,108
227,586
1,544,965
7,628,461
5,190,235
5,069,115
5,230,795
4,772,280
4,721,466

$183,198,772

At June 30, 2011, the fair value of Countywide investments, derivative instruments, and loaned securities reinvested

were categorized by quality rating as follows:

Investments with Derivative Instruments and Loaned Securities Reinvested — All Entities Combined

Investment Type

Debt Securities
U.S. Treasuries
U.S. Agencies
Corporate Obligations
Money Market Funds
Commercial Paper
Certificates of Deposit
NV Local Government
Investment Pool
Collateralized Mort-
gage Obligations
Collateralized Invest-
ment Agreements*
Asset Backed Securities
Derivative Instruments

Total

proceeds. The rating reported is that of the entity issuing the investment agreement.

Quality Ratings by Standard & Poor’s

Fair Value

AAA AA

A

A-1

Unrated

$ 978,538,423 $§ 946,472,287 $

-8

$ 32,066,136 §

3,562,419,355  2,793,280,710 - - 769,138,645 -
290,108,961 40,765,987 123,026,406 118,591,568 - 7,725,000
464,234,672 464,234,672 - - - -
416,426,887 - - - 416,426,887 -
41,600,747 - - - 40,350,747 1,250,000
65,423,563 - - - - 65,423,563
41,946,756 41,946,756 - - - -
17,461,210 - 14,867,770 2,593,440 - -
68,912,075 68,912,075 - - - -
48,928,789 - 1.987.959 _46.940.830 - -

$5,996,001,438  $4,355,612,487 $139,882,135 $168,125,838 $1,257,982,415 § 74,398,563

* These are fully collateralized guaranteed investment contracts and forward delivery agreements related to bond
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Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Trust Fund
Credit Quality with Credit Exposure as a Percentage of Total Fixed Income Investments

(Contracts Not Rated)
06/30/11
Domestic Bond Fund AA 67.56%
Money Market Fund AAA/Aaa 21
Contracts N/A 32.23

The managing institution of the Domestic Bond Fund reports an overall rating of AA at June 30, 2011, for the
underlying securities. The fund is benchmarked off the Capital Aggregate Bond Index; therefore, the fund uses
Barclays’ rating methodology. The methodology uses the middle rating of Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch
after dropping the highest and lowest available ratings. The AAA/Aaa ratings for the Money Market Fund were by
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s.

The amounts above include cash and investment balances for the RTC and the Flood Control District of
$465,922,402 and $264,776,353, respectively, which are discretely presented component units and are not broken
out separately as they participate in the investment pool.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Through its investment policy, the County manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates by limiting the average weighted duration of its investment pool portfolio to less than 2.5
years. Duration is a measure of the present value of a fixed income’s cash flows and is used to estimate the
sensitivity of a security’s price to interest rate changes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

At June 30, 2011, the County invested in the following types of securities that have a higher sensitivity to interest
rates:

Callable securities are directly affected by the movement of interest rates. Callable securities allow the issuer to
redeem or call a security before maturity, one time or generally on coupon dates.

Step-up/step-down securities have fixed rate coupons for a specific time interval that will step-up or step-down a
predetermined number of basis points at scheduled coupon or other reset dates. These securities are callable one
time or on their coupon dates.

Fixed-to-floating rate notes have fixed rate coupons for a specified period of time then a variable rate coupon for
the remaining life of the security. The variable rate is generally based on three month LIBOR plus or minus a
specified number of basis points. In some cases, interest rate caps are reset higher annually. These securities are
callable generally on their coupon dates.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity (Continued)

Terms Table of Interest Rate Sensitive Securities

Maturity
CUSIP Fair Value Date Call Frequency Index Coupon
41283VAD5 $ 718,549 08/15/13 Monthly N/A Fixed
055669AD7 2,256,030 01/15/14 Monthly N/A Fixed
89235YAD7 3,134,100 01/17/17 Monthly N/A Fixed
06052MAC9 3,170,475 07/15/14 Monthly N/A Fixed
65476CAC5 3,213,824 01/15/16 Monthly N/A Fixed
80282GAC9 4,012,320 02/17/14 Monthly N/A Fixed
09657CAD2 4,015,320 08/15/13 Monthly N/A Fixed
65475GADS5 4,016,440 10/15/16 Monthly N/A Fixed
92867EADO 5,017,250 10/20/15 Monthly N/A Fixed
92867DAC4 5,028,500 06/20/15 Monthly N/A Fixed
44890EAC4 6,011,580 09/15/15 Monthly N/A Fixed
43813BAD4 6,971,930 11/21/13 Monthly N/A Fixed
43814AAD5 7,022,540 07/18/14 Monthly N/A Fixed
80282DAC6 7,080,010 11/17/14 Monthly N/A Fixed
36161 XACO 7,243,207 11/20/13 Monthly N/A Fixed
02666QH63 25,006,000 12/08/11 N/A Libor Floater
3134G2MW9 19,920,600 06/29/15 One time N/A Fixed
31398A6K3 20,039,200 11/29/13 One time N/A Fixed
31398A4A7 20,041,000 09/27/13 One time N/A Fixed
3134G2HC9 20,046,000 11/25/14 One time N/A Fixed
3134G2LU4 49,661,000 12/29/14 One time N/A Fixed
3134G2MW9 49,801,500 06/29/15 One time N/A Fixed
31398A5H1 49,935,000 11/04/13 One time N/A Fixed
31398A5B4 50,049,500 11/01/12 One time N/A Fixed
3135G0AS2 50,089,000 02/25/14 One time N/A Fixed
31398A2A9 50,092,500 08/05/15 One time N/A Fixed
3134G16KS5 50,115,000 03/14/14 Quarterly N/A Fixed
3134G2HC9 50,115,000 11/25/14 One time N/A Fixed
31398A6L1 50,119,500 11/29/13 One time N/A Fixed
3134G1W91 50,204,500 07/26/13 One time N/A Fixed
3134G2DP4 50,411,000 04/18/14 One time N/A Fixed
31398A4H2 50,549,000 10/08/13 One time N/A Fixed
3134G1WWO 13,602,448 10/28/13 Quarterly N/A Step-up
3136FPKE6 48,962,500 09/29/15 Quarterly N/A Step-up
3136FPGQ4 49,074,000 09/17/15 Quarterly N/A Step-up
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The County’s investment policy applies the prudent-person rule: “In investing the County’s monies, there shall be
exercised the judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which persons of prudence, discretion, and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.” The County’s investments were rated
by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service, respectively, as follows: U.S. Treasury Notes, AAA/Aaa; U.S.
Treasury Bills, A-1/P-1; bonds of U.S. Federal agencies, AAA/Aaa; discount notes of U.S. Federal agencies, A-1/P-
1; money market funds, AAA/Aaa; commercial paper issued by corporations organized and operating in the United
States or by depository institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating in the United States, A-
1/P-1; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks, insured credit unions or savings and loan
associations, A-1/P-1; collateralized mortgage obligations, AAA/Aaa; collateralized investment agreements issued
by insurance companies rated AA/Aa2 or its equivalent or higher, or issued by entities rated A/A2 or its
equivalent or higher; asset-backed securities, AAA/Aaa; corporate notes issued by corporations organized and
operating in the United States which have a rating of A or its equivalent or higher. The County’s investments in
non-negotiable certificates of deposit are FDIC insured and do not exceed $250,000 per insured institution.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is defined as the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in
a single issuer. The County’s investment policy limits the amount that may be invested in obligations of any one
issuer, except direct obligations of the U.S. government or federal agencies, to no more than five percent of the Clark
County investment pool.

At June 30, 2011, the following investments exceeded five percent of the total cash and investments for all entities
combined.

Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB) 8.32%
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) 14.46
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 26.05
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 18.14

Securities Lending

Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 355.178 authorizes the County to participate in securities lending transactions, where
the County’s securities are loaned to brokers/dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return the
collateral for the same securities in the future. The County’s securities lending agent administers the securities
lending program and receives cash or other securities equal to at least 102 percent of the fair value of the loaned
securities plus accrued interest as collateral for securities of the type on loan at year end. The collateral for the loans
is maintained at 102 percent, and the value of the securities borrowed is determined on a daily basis.

At year end, the County had no credit exposure to borrowers because the amount the County held as collateral
exceeded the amounts the borrowers owed to the County. The contract with the securities lending agent requires it
to indemnify the County for all losses relating to securities lending transactions.

The County does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities without a borrower default. There were no
borrower defaults during the period nor were there any prior period losses to recover.
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Securities Lending (Continued)

State statutes place no restrictions on the amount of securities that can be loaned. Either the County or the borrower
can terminate all open securities loans on demand. Cash collateral is invested in accordance with the investment
guidelines stated in NRS 355.170. The County’s securities lending guidelines require that the aggregate
reinvestment of the cash collateral may not be mismatched to the aggregate securities loaned by more than fifteen
business days. In regard to this calculation, the final maturity or interest rate reset date is utilized. Such amounts are
included in loaned securities in investments and liabilities.

The fair value of the securities on loan at June 30, 2011, was $514,240,879. At June 30, 2011, the County had
received cash collateral with a value totaling $524,793,243. The total collateral received was in excess of the fair
value of the investments held by brokers/dealers under the securities lending agreement.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the County will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. Consistent with the County’s securities lending policy, $502,566,468 was held by the counterparty that was
acting as the County’s agent in securities lending transactions, and consisted of U.S. corporate obligations,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and money market funds.

GASB 31
GASB Statement No. 31 requires the County to adjust the carrying amount of its investment portfolio to reflect the

change in fair or market values. Interest revenue is increased or decreased in relation to this adjustment of
unrealized gain or loss. Net interest income in the funds reflects this positive or negative market value adjustment.

PROPERTY TAXES

Taxes on real property are levied on July 1 of each year and a lien is also placed on the property on July 1. The taxes
are due on the third Monday in August, but can be paid in four installments on or before the third Monday in August,
first Monday in October, January, and March. In the event of nonpayment, the County Treasurer is authorized to
hold the property for two years, subject to redemption upon payment of taxes, penalties, and costs, together with
interest at the rate of 10 percent per year from the date the taxes were due until paid. If delinquent taxes are not paid
within the two-year redemption period, the County Treasurer may sell the property to satisfy the tax lien.

The Nevada legislature enacted provisions whereby the combined overlapping tax rate was limited to $3.64 per $100
of assessed valuation. The Nevada legislature also passed a property tax abatement law that generally caps increases
in property taxes received from any owner-occupied residential property to three percent per year, and eight percent
per year for all other property.
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Delinquent taxes receivable not collected within sixty days after year end are recorded as deferred revenue in the

governmental funds as they are not available to pay liabilities of the current period. The revenue is fully
recognized at the government-wide level. The following delinquent taxes receivable and penalties receivable on

delinquent taxes have been deferred as of June 30, 2011:

Las Vegas Nonmajor
General Metropolitan Special Debt Nonmajor
Fund Police Revenue Funds  Service Funds  Enterprise Funds Total
$23,882,800 $3,435,106 $2,924,038 $ 246,193 $ 481 $ 30,488,618
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable balances at June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:
Provisions Net
Accounts for Doubtful Accounts
Receivable Accounts Receivable

Primary Government
Governmental activities:
General Fund $ 27,797,703 $ (25,980,701) $ 1,817,002
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 805,428 - 805,428
Other governmental 8,140,433 (2,739,705) 5,400,728
Internal service 7.030.992 (5.760,584) 1,270,408

Total governmental activities 43,774 $ (34,480,990) $ 9,293,566
Amounts not scheduled for collection

during the subsequent year $ 24,042,768

Business-type activities:
University Medical Center $ 330,924,181 $(225,045,257) $105,878,924
Reclamation District 45,806,925 (6,185,668) 39,621,257
Water District 62,703,333 (1,364,457) 61,338,876
Department of Aviation 42,595,289 (581,562) 42,013,727
Other proprietary 1,322,514 (79.710) 1,242.804

Total business-type activities $ 483,352,242 $(233,256,654) $250,095.588
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Provisions Net
Accounts for Doubtful Accounts
Receivable Accounts Receivable
Primary Government (Continued)
Business-type activities restricted:
University Medical Center $ 893,242 $ - $ 893,242
Reclamation District 2,321,224 - 2,321,224
Water District 1,287.945.094 - 1,287.945.094
Total business-type activities restricted $1,291,159,560 b - $1,291,159,560

Amounts not scheduled for collection

during the subsequent year $ 883,405,000

Restricted receivables of the Water District consist of amounts due from the Southern Nevada Water Authority
(SNWA) restricted for the repayment of Water District bonds and notes whose proceeds were delivered to the
SNWA.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Regional Transportation Commission of

Southern Nevada $ 3,306,880 $  (508,922) $ 2,797,958
Regional Flood Control District $ 3,859,430 $ - $ 3,859,430
Bond Bank Receivable

Nevada Revised Statute authorizes the County to issue general obligation bonds for the purpose of acquiring
obligations issued by municipalities and authorities in Clark County for certain purposes. These general obligation
bonds are shown in Note 6. The obligations issued by municipalities and authorities are shown as a bond bank
receivable on the statement of net assets. Balance as of June 30, 2011:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Bond bank receivable, current $ 13,620,000 $ -
Bond bank receivable, noncurrent 1,355,235.000 883.405.000
Total bond bank receivable $1,368,855,000 $883,405,000
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress
Intangible asset
Total capital assets
not being depreciated

Balance

July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases
$1,351,597,090 $ 12,123,460 $ 32,238
257,875,430 171,005,896 207.478.432
1,609,472.520 183,129,356 207,510,670
1,030,091,150 43,625,831 -
320,615,820 29,132,947 -
322,003,935 18,129,974 10,757,276
4,611,325.033 286,093,320 11,370
6,284,035.938 376,982,072 10,768,646
184,001,628 21,453,988 -
107,964,457 15,460,598 -
233,563,665 35,645,209 10,757,626
1,514,946.506 160,855,548 -
2.040,476.256 233,415,343 10,757,626
4,243,559,682 143,566,729 11,020
$5,853,032,202 2 085 $207,521,690
$ 908,072,419 $ 5,261,848 $ -
1,962,460,569 730,579,796 464,939,149
32,800,741 - 32,800,741
2.903,333,729 735,841,644 497.739.890

Balance
_June 30,2011

$1,363,688,312
221,402,894

_1,585,091.206
1,073,716,981
349,748,767

329,376,633
4,897.406,983

6,650,249,364

205,455,616
123,425,055
258,451,248
1,675,802.054

2,263,133,973

4.387,115.391

$5,972,206,597

$ 913,334,267
2,228,101,216

3,141,435,483
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Primary Government (Continued)
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 3,087,608,670 137,982,342 2,918,211 3,222,672,801
Buildings and improvements 3,681,535,710 212,890,294 21,315,445 3,873,110,559
Equipment 1,156,447.430 156,598,090 18,136,946 1,294.908.574
Total capital assets
being depreciated 7,925.591.810 507,470,726 42,370,602 8,390.691.934
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 944,918,235 95,166,371 528,210 1,039,556,396
Buildings and improvements 1,136,102,021 130,666,036 6,240,036 1,260,528,021
Equipment 582,092,157 77,038,750 17,025,995 642,104,912
Total accumulated depreciation 2.663.112.413 302,871,157 23.794.241 2.942.189.329
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 5.262.479,397 204,599,569 18.576.361 5.448.502,605
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $8,165,813,126 $940.441,213 $516,316,251 $8,589.938,088
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 17,757,934
Judicial 6,432,319
Public safety 27,049,165
Public works 164,014,747
Health 273,352
Welfare 493,443
Culture and recreation 16,759,675
Other 634,708
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $233,415,343
Business-type activities:
Hospital $ 12,828,924
Water 91,270,258
Airport 136,104,432
Sewer 63,893,458
Other 1,594,199
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $305,691,271
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Primary Government (Continued)

Construction Commitments

Major projects included in construction-in-progress are the beltway and other major arterial roadways, flood control

projects, airport terminal expansion, sewage and water treatment facilities.

Construction-in-progress and remaining commitments as of June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Spent to date

Governmental activities:

Remaining
Commitment

Buildings and improvements $ 137,522,839 $ 222,144,080
Infrastructure:
Work in progress — RFCD Clark County projects 13,699,549 103,018,693
Work in progress — Public Works 48,342,632 925,019,502
Work in progress — RTC Clark County projects 21.837.874 90.848.671
Total infrastructure 83.880.,055 1,118.886.866
Total governmental activities $ 221,402,894 $1,341,030,946
Business-type activities:
Hospital $ 1,717,519 $ -
Water 48,060,474 13,791,854
Airport 2,060,655,719 757,700,000
Sewer 177,165,711 122,772,491
Total $2,287,599.423 $ 894.264,345
Discretely Presented Component Units
Flood Control District
Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 114,841 $ 38.084 $ 23.481 $ 129444
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,019,694 - - 3,019,694
Equipment 1,582,973 35,105 21,210 1,596,868
Total capital assets
being depreciated 4,602,667 35,105 21,210 4,616,562
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

Flood Control District (Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 716,869 63,017 - 779,886
Equipment 1,355,716 95,222 17,156 1,433,782
Total accumulated depreciation 2.072,585 158.239 17.156 2.213.668
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 2,530,082 (123.134) 4,054 2,402,894
Government activities
capital assets, net $2,644,923 $ (85,050) $ 27,535 $ 2,532,338
Depreciation expense of $158,239 was charged to the public works function.
RTC
Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ - $ 261.242 $ - $ 261.242
Total capital assets not being ‘
depreciated - 261,242 - 261,242
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 18,522,095 18,522,095
Equipment 2,993.314 310,886 13.485 3,290,715
Total capital assets being
depreciated 21,515,409 310.886 13,485 21.812.810
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 4,106,738 417,108 4,523,846
Equipment 1,843,325 474,234 13,485 2,304,074
Total accumulated depreciation 5,950,063 891,342 13.485 6.827.920
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 15,565,346 (580.456) - 14,984,890
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 15,565,346 $ (319,214) $ - $15,246,132
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)
RTC (Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $32,038,082 § - 8 - $ 32,038,082
Construction in progress 49,347,223 28.596.421 60,312,840 17,630,804
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 81,385,305 28.596.421 60,312,840 49.668.886
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 147,172,194 39,982,549 10,382,381 176,772,362
Equipment 315,871,774 20,617,485 5,740,034 330,749,225
Total capital assets being
depreciated 463,043,968 60,600,034 16,122.415 507,521,587
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 28,940,902 9,433,434 10,382,381 27,991,955
Equipment 101,985.230 28,182,718 5,740,034 124427914
Total accumulated depreciation 130,926,132 37,616,152 16,122,415 152.419.869
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 332.117.836 22.983.882 - 355,101,718
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $413,503,141 $ 51,580,303 $60,312,840 $404,770,604

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions or programs:

Governmental activities:

Public Works $ 891,342
Business-type activities:
Public Transit $ 37,616,152

Construction commitments include major arterial roadway projects with various local entities of approximately
$126,000,000. In addition, the Public Transit fund has outstanding construction commitments of approximately
$23,200,000 for capital projects and vehicles.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between
funds are made.
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Due to/from other funds at June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund

General Fund

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Department of Aviation
University Medical Center

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Internal Service funds .

Total due to/from other funds

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Internal Service Funds

University Medical Center
Department of Aviation

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Internal Service Funds

General Fund

Between Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Fund
General Funds

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Between Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Department of Aviation

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Between Internal Service Funds
University Medical Center
Department of Aviation

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Fund transferred to:

General Fund

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Internal Service Funds

University Medical Center
Department of Aviation
Total interfund transfers

Fund transferred from:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

General Fund

General Fund

Between Nonmajor Governmental Funds
General Fund

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Fund
Between Internal Service Funds
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
General Fund

Amount

$ 46,053,734
295,552
105,735

1,328,454
154,730
110,383

11,756
64,814,920
39,925,299
17,740
345,553

3,000,000

9,477,787

1,021,806
211,522
763,718

31,200
44,445,384
11,764,438
1,764,370
3,177,496
14,452,332

78.945

$243,352,854

Amount

$ 47,900,988
2,000,000
204,623,329
130,165,720
111,064,722
1,000,000
4,500,000
7,235,486
10,000,000
622,819
6,183,933
7,317,856

$ 532,614,853
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the

receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Primary Government

Bonds payable at June 30, 2011, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds

Date of
Date Final Original Balance

Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011
1992 Transportation Improvement ~ 06/01/92  06/01/17 4.90-8.00 %  $250,000,000 § 21,800,000
2000 Transportation Improvement ~ 02/01/00 12/01/11  5.00-6.00 85,000,000 4,325,000
2001 Bond Bank 06/01/01 06/01/31 5.00-5.50 250,000,000 37,385,000
2002 Medium Term 02/01/02 02/01/12 4.50-5.00 20,000,000 2,375,000
2002 Bond Bank 11/01/02 06/01/32 5.00-5.25 200,000,000 69,730,000
2004 Government Center 04/01/04 01/01/14 2.00-5.00 7,910,000 6,070,000
2004 Public Safety 04/01/04 06/01/17 2.50-5.00 75,610,000 45,520,000
2004 Transportation Improvement  12/30/04 12/01/19  3.00-5.00 74,895,000 73,225,000
2004 Park and Justice Center 12/30/04 11/01/17 3.00-5.00 48,935,000 43,415,000
2005 Park and Justice Center 07/06/05 11/01/24 4.125-5.00 32,310,000 32,310,000
2006 Transportation Improvement 03/07/06 06/01/16 5.00 115,585,000 86,470,000
2006 Bond Bank 06/13/06 06/01/30 4.00-4.75 242,880,000 235,765,000
2006 Bond Bank 11/02/06 11/01/36 2.50-5.00 604,140,000 590,015,000
2007 Public Facilities 05/24/07 06/01/24  4.00-5.00 22,325,000 22,115,000
2008 Transportation Improvement  03/13/08 06/01/19 3.460 71,045,000 54,195,000
2008 Bond Bank 07/02/08 06/01/38 5.00 400,000,000 385,960,000
2009 Public Facilities 03/10/09 11/01/18 3.00-4.00 24,750,000 20,470,000
2009 Public Facilities 05/14/09 06/01/24 2.00-4.75 24,865,000 15,085,000
2009 Transportation BABs 06/23/09 06/01/29 2.69-7.05 60,000,000 55,430,000
2009 Bond Bank 11/10/09 06/01/30 5.00 50,000,000 50,000,000
2009 Transportation 12/08/09 12/01/29 1.00-5.00 124,465,000 119,510,000

Total General Obligation Bonds $1,971,170,000
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued):

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total

June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ 70,545,000 92,425,519 $ 162,970,519
2013 91,985,000 89,263,930 181,248,930
2014 96,505,000 84,735,185 181,240,185
2015 97,780,000 80,104,965 177,884,965
2016 100,435,000 75,687,591 176,122,591
2017-2021 412,455,000 310,337,136 722,792,136
2022-2026 382,750,000 218,122,086 600,872,086
2027-2031 417,220,000 122,026,414 539,246,414
2032-2036 . 227,385,000 42,939,288 270,324,288
2037 . 74,110,000 4,077,063 78.187.063

1,971,1 00 1,119.719,1 $3,090,889,177
Revenue Bonds
Date of
Date Final Balance

Series Purpose Issued Maturity Interest June 30, 2011
2009  Performing Arts 04/01/09 04/01/59 5.83% $10,000
The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year Ending Total

June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ - $ 583 $ 583
2013 - 583 583
2014 - 583 583
2015 - 583 583
2016 - 583 583
2017-2021 - 2,915 2915
2022-2026 - 2,915 2,915
2027-2031 - 2,915 2,915
2032-2036 - 2,915 2,915
2037-2041 - 2,915 2,915
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Year Ending Total

June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2042-2046 - 2,915 2,915
2047-2051 - 2,915 2,915
2052-2056 - 2,915 2,915
2057-2059 10,000 1,749 11,749

$10,000 $27,984 $37,984
These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by car rental fees.
Special Assessment Bonds
Date of
Date Final Original Balance

Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30,2011
1998 Laughlin Wash #71A 09/01/98 04/15/14 4.10-7.20%  $ 2,155,000 § 345,000
1998 Russell Road #81 09/01/98 12/01/12 3.65-5.00 7,155,000 1,250,000
2001 Summerlin Centre #128B 05/17/01  02/01/21 4.50-6.75 10,000,000 4,140,000
2001 Summerlin Centre #132 05/17/01  02/01/21 4.50-6.875 24,000,000 13,700,000
2002 Durango #89 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 150,000 11,550
2002 Tropicana #116 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 118,000 14,819
2002 Maryland Parkway #118 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 421,000 58,550
2002 Craig Road #119A 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 67,000 9,092
2002 Jones Blvd. #120 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 194,000 15,804
2002 Flamingo Rd. #123 06/15/02 08/01/12 1.50-4.20 405,000 35,184
2003 Las Vegas Blvd. #97A 06/01/03  03/01/16  2.00-3.70 6,970,000 2,145,000
2003 Durango #117 06/01/03  03/01/14 2.00-3.50 277,000 37,412
2003 Summerlin Gardens #124A 12/23/03  02/01/20 2.25-4.50 4,399,431 2,433,317
2003 Summerlin Gardens #124B 12/23/03  02/01/20 1.50-5.90 1,929,727 1,110,328
2003 Jones Blvd. #125 06/01/03 03/01/14 2.00-3.50 322,000 86,613
2003 Boulder Highway #126A 06/01/03 03/01/23 2.00-4.30 2,119,000 990,000
2003 Tenaya Way #136 06/01/03 03/01/14 2.00-3.50 300,000 84,670
2003 Buffalo Drive #139 06/01/03 03/01/14 2.00-3.50 527,000 111,304
2003 Summerlin Centre #128A 11/03/03 02/01/21 3.50-6.30 10,000,000 6,725,000
2003 Mountains Edge #142 12/04/03 08/01/23 2.25-6.375 92,360,000 69,680,000
2003 Summerlin South #108A 12/23/03  02/01/17 2.25-4.50 17,335,569 7,741,683
2003 Summerlin South #108B 12/23/03  02/01/17 3.30-5.70 8,375,273 3,944,672
2004 Mountain Vista St. #113 06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 322,424 73,175
2004 Silverado Ranch Blvd. #130  06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 1,747,504 505,992
2004 Stewart Ave. #133 06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 205,850 56,409
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Governmental Activities (Continued):

Special Assessment Bonds (Continued)

Date of
Date Final Original Balance
Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011
2004 Pebble Road #138 06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 808,817 299,161
2004 Buffalo Drive #141 06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 64,569 13,673
2004 Alta Drive Bridge #143 06/29/04 02/01/14  3.50-4.30 1,807,964 668,854
2004 Durango #144B 06/29/04 02/01/15 3.50-4.30 816,871 327,738
2005 Summerlin Mesa #151 10/12/05 08/01/25 3.15-5.00 25,485,000 21,015,000
2006 Commercial Center #140 05/23/06 02/01/16 4.50 709,000 326,525
2006 Robindale Road #134 05/23/06  02/01/16 4.50 21,000 10,116
2006 Russell Road #127 05/23/06  02/01/16 4.50 1,522,000 538,147
2006 Tenaya Way #145 05/23/06  02/01/16 4.50 125,000 40,212
2006 Southern Highlands #121A 05/31/06  12/01/19  3.75-5.00 30,620,000 19,830,000
2006 Southern Highlands #121B 05/31/06  12/01/29 3.90-5.30 13,515,000 10,830,000
2007 Alexander #146 , 05/02/07 02/01/17 4.00-4.25 448,000 197,248
2007 Craig Road #148 05/02/07 02/01/17 4.00-4.25 495,000 186,103
2007 Durango #144A 05/02/07 02/01/17 4.00-4.25 397,000 230,199
2007 Fort Apache #131 05/02/07 02/01/17 4.00-4.25 462,000 256,450
2007 Summerlin Centre #128A 05/01/07 02/01/31 3.95-5.05 10,755,000 9,740,000
2007 Summerlin Centre #128A 05/01/07 02/01/21 3.95-5.00 480,000 375,000
2008 Flamingo Underground #112  05/13/08 08/01/37 4.00-5.00 70,000,000 67,090,000
2009 Industrial Road #135 11/10/09 08/01/18 2.00-4.00 431,459 378,475
2009 Durango Drive #144C 11/10/09 08/01/19 2.00-4.00 5,213,541 4,661,525
Total Special Assessment Bonds $252,320,000
The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ 15,520,000 $ 12,883,357 $ 28,403,357
2013 16,125,000 12,164,265 28,289,265
2014 16,075,000 11,406,900 27,481,900
2015 16,335,000 10,610,464 26,945,464
2016 16,765,000 9,774,725 26,539,725
2017-2021 79,055,000 35,531,245 114,586,245
2022-2026 46,375,000 16,552,680 62,927,680
2027-2031 20,000,000 9,000,771 29,000,771
2032-2036 17,710,000 4,384,488 22,094,488
2037-2038 8.360.000 423,000 8.783.000
252,320,000 $122,731.895 $375,051,895
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Governmental Activities (Continued):

Loans Payable

Date of
Date Final Original Balance
Series Purpose Issued Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011
2002 LVMPD Helicopter 06/03/02  05/01/12  5.36% $ 1,817,013 $181.690 (a)
Total Loans Payable $181,690

(a) This loan is being serviced, principal and interest, by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police special revenue
fund.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $181,690 $4.915 $186.605
181,60 $4.915 $186,605

Litigation Accrual and Arbitrage Liability

The County is a defendant in various cases (see Note 10). An estimated liability of $2,500,000 for litigation losses is
recorded in the governmental activities column.

When a state or local government earns interest at a higher rate of return on tax-exempt bond issues than it pays on
the debt, a liability for the spread is payable to the federal government. This interest spread, known as “rebatable
arbitrage,” is due five years after issuing the bonds. Excess earnings of one year may be offset by lesser earnings in
subsequent years.

The following summarizes activity for the year:

Litigation Arbitrage Total
Accrual, July 1, 2010 $2,500,000 $ 100,000 $2,600,000
Additions - - -
Deletions - (100,000) (100,000)
Accrual, June 30, 2011 $2,500,000 $ - $2.500,000
Due within one year $ - b - 3 -
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Pledged Revenues

The County has pledged certain revenues for the payment of debt principal and interest. The following revenues
were pledged as of June 30, 2011:

Property Tax Supported Bonds

These bonds are supported by general property taxes. The property tax available to pay these bonds is limited to a
$3.64 per $100 of assessed valuation statutory limit. The following debt issuances are property tax supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
2004 A Public Safety 06/01/2017

The total remaining principal and interest payments for property tax supported bonds was $53,662,750 at June
30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $8,899,500, and required debt service totaled
$8,899,500. .

Consolidated Tax Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge of up to 15 percent of the consolidated taxes allocable to the County. These
bonds also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of the County is
pledged for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are consolidated tax supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
2004 Government Center 01/01/2014
2004C Parks and Justice Center 11/01/2017
2005B Parks and Justice Center 11/01/2024
2007A Public Facilities 06/01/2019
2009A Public Facilities 06/01/2019

The total remaining principal and interest payments for consolidated tax supported bonds was $114,350,638 at
June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $39,443,064 (of the total $ 262,887,094
of general fund consolidated tax), and required debt service totaled $12,267,329.

Beltway Pledged Revenue Bonds

These bonds are secured by the combined pledge of: 1) a one percent supplemental governmental services (motor
vehicle privilege) tax; 2) a one percent room tax collected on the gross receipts from the rental of hotel and motel
rooms within the County but outside of the strip and Laughlin resort corridors (non-resort corridor); and 3) a
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Beltway Pledged Revenue Bonds (Continued)

portion of the development tax. The development tax is $700 per single-family dwelling of residential
development, and 75 cents per square foot on commercial, industrial, and other development. Of this, $500 per
single-family dwelling and 50 cents per square foot of commercial, industrial, and other development is pledged.
These bonds also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of the County
is pledged for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are Beltway pledged revenue

supported:
Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
1992A Transportation Improvement 06/01/2017
2000A Transportation Improvement 12/01/2011
2004A Transportation Improvement 12/01/2019
2006A Transportation Improvement 06/01/2016
2008A Transportation Improvement 06/01/2019
2009A Transportation Improvement 12/01/2029

The total remaining principal and interest payments for Beltway pledged revenue tax supported bonds was
$354,113,526 at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $52,017,944; consisting of
$46,673,088 of supplemental governmental services tax; $1,833,030 of non-resort corridor room tax; and
$3,511,826 of the total $5,241,532 development tax. Required debt service totaled $31,278,683. As described
below, beltway pledged revenues are also pledged to make up any difference between pledged revenues and
annual debt service for Laughlin resort corridor room tax supported bonds. During fiscal 2011, $492,872 of
Beltway Pledged Revenues were required to cover the Laughlin Resort Corridor Debt (Series C), representing the
difference between fiscal year debt service and Laughlin Room Tax Collections.

Strip Resort Corridor Room Tax Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge of the one percent room tax collected on the gross receipts from the rental of
hotel and motel rooms within the strip resort corridor. This tax is imposed specifically for the purpose of
transportation improvements within the strip resort corridor, or within one mile outside the boundaries of the strip
resort corridor. These bonds also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and
credit of the County is pledged for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are strip
resort corridor room tax supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
1992B Transportation Improvement 06/01/2017
2000B Transportation Improvement 12/01/2011
2004B Transportation Improvement 12/01/2019
2006B Transportation Improvement 06/01/2016
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Strip Resort Corridor Room Tax Supported Bonds (Continued)

2009B Transportation Improvement 06/01/2029
2009B3 Transportation Improvement 12/01/2019

The total remaining principal and interest payments for strip resort corridor room tax supported bonds was
$205,821,222 at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $31,930,790. Required
debt service totaled $21,327,755.

Laughlin Resort Corridor Room Tax Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge of the one percent room tax collected on the gross receipts from the rental of
hotel and motel rooms within the Laughlin resort corridor. These bonds also constitute direct and general
obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of the County is pledged for the payment of principal and
interest. The following debt issuances are Laughlin resort corridor room tax supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
1992C Transportation Improvement 06/01/2017
2008C Transportation Improvement 06/01/2019

The total remaining principal and interest payments for Laughlin resort corridor room tax supported bonds was
$6,511,819 at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, revenues from the Laughlin room tax amounted to $510,828
requiring an additional $492,872 of beltway revenues to provide the annual debt service of $1,003,700. As
described above, beltway pledged revenues are also pledged to make up any difference between pledged revenues
and annual debt service.

Court Administrative Assessment Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge of the $10 court administrative assessment for the provision of justice court
facilities. These bonds also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of
the County is pledged for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are court
administrative assessment supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
2007B Public Facilities 06/01/2019
2009B Public Facilities 06/01/2019

The total remaining principal and interest payments for court administrative assessment supported bonds was
$12,056,436 at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $2,152,773. Required debt
service totaled $1,371,474.
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Interlocal Agreement Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge through an interlocal agreement with the City of Las Vegas. These bonds
also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of the County is pledged
for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are interlocal agreement supported:

Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
2007C Public Facilities 06/01/2024
2009C Public Facilities 06/01/2024

The total remaining principal and interest payments for interlocal agreement supported bonds was $25,922,348 at
June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $1,997,440. Required debt service totaled
$1,997,440.

Special Assessment Bonds

Special assessment supported bonds are secured by property assessments within the individual districts. The
bonds are identified as special assessment bonds in this note above. The total remaining principal and interest
payments for special assessment supported bonds was $375,051,895 at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged
revenues received totaled $36,494,101. Required debt service totaled $31,354,327.

Bond Bank Bonds

These bonds are secured by securities issued to the County by local governments utilizing the bond bank. These
securities pledge system revenues and contain rate covenants to guarantee adequate revenues for bond bank debt
service. These bonds also constitute direct and general obligations of the County, and the full faith and credit of
the County is pledged for the payment of principal and interest. The following debt issuances are bond bank

supported:
Maturity
Bond Issue (Length of Pledge)
2001 Bond Bank (SNWA) 06/01/2031
2002 Bond Bank (SNWA) 06/01/2032
2006 Bond Bank (SNWA) 06/01/2030
2006 Bond Bank (SNWA) 11/01/2036
2008 Bond Bank (SNWA) 06/01/2038
2009 Bond Bank (SNWA) 06/01/2030

The total remaining principal and interest payments for bond bank supported bonds was $2,292,548,550 at June
30,2011. In fiscal year 2011, pledged revenues received totaled $69,127,581. Required debt service totaled
$69,127,581.
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Business-Type Activities:

General Obligation Bonds

Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Date of
Date Final Original Balance

Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011
2003 Big Bend Water District 06/03/04 01/01/25 3.19% $ 4,000,000 $ 3,052,902 (a)
2004 Big Bend Water District 08/06/04 07/01/24 3.20 6,000,000 2,672,485 (a)
20038 Department of Aviation 05/29/03  07/01/24 4.75-5.00 37,000,000 37,000,000 (b)
2008A Department of Aviation 02/26/08 07/01/27 variable 43,105,000 43,105,000 (b)
2003 University Medical Center 11/01/03  09/01/23 2.25-5.00 36,765,000 9,500,000 (c)
2005 University Medical Center 07/28/05 03/01/20 4.00-5.00 48,390,000 47,440,000 (¢)
2007 University Medical Center 05/22/07 09/01/23 4.19 18,095,000 18,055,000 (c)
2009 University Medical Center 03/10/09 11/01/17 3.00-3.50 6,950,000 6,950,000 (c)
2003 Water Reclamation Dist. 04/01/03 07/01/12 2.70-5.00 47,170,000 13,795,000 (d)
2007 Water Reclamation Dist. 11/13/07 07/01/37 4.00-4.75 55,000,000 55,000,000 (d)
2008 Water Reclamation Dist. 11/20/08 07/01/38 4.00-6.00 115,825,000 115,825,000 (d)
2009A Water Reclamation Dist. 04/01/09  07/01/38 4.00-5.25 135,000,000 135,000,000 (d)
20098 Water Reclamation Dist. 04/01/09 07/01/38 4.00-5.75 125,000,000 125,000,000 (d)
2009Cc Water Reclamation Dist. 10/16/09 07/01/29 0.00 5,744,780 5,744,780 (d)
2011A Water Reclamation Dist. 03/25/11 01/01/31 3.188 40,000,000 1,643,669 (d)
2003A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  01/09/03  06/01/32  4.00-5.25 168,685,000 125,950,000 (e)
2003B Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  01/01/03  06/01/27 4.00-5.25 250,000,000 188,880,000 (e)
2005A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  05/04/05 06/01/27  4.00-5.00 302,425,000 243,940,000 (e)
2006A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  06/01/06  06/01/36  4.75-5.00 151,555,000 140,330,000 (e)
2006B Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  07/20/06 06/01/36  variable 75,000,000 69,465,000 (e)
2006C Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  07/20/06 06/01/36  variable 75,000,000 69,465,000 (e)
2008A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  02/19/08 12/01/37 5.00 190,760,000 172,260,000 (e)
20088 Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  02/19/08 06/01/26 3.50-5.00 171,720,000 116,335,000 (e)
2009A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  08/05/09 06/01/39  7.10 90,000,000 90,000,000 (e)
2009B Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  08/05/09 06/01/32  4.00-5.25 10,000,000 10,000,000 (e)
2009C Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  12/29/09 06/01/39  7.013-7.26 348,115,000 348,115,000 (e)
2009D Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  12/29/09  06/01/30  4.25-5.25 71,965,000 71,965,000 (e)
2010A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  06/15/10 03/01/40  5.60-5.70 75,995,000 75,995,000 (e)
2010B Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  06/15/10 03/01/38  2.00-4.625 31,075,000 31,075,000 (e)
2011A Las Vegas Valley Water Dist.  05/26/11 06/01/26 4.84 58,110,000 58.110,000 (e)

Total General Obligation Bonds 2,431
(a) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Big Bend Water District enterprise fund.
(b) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Department of Aviation enterprise fund. The

variable rate bond is valued at the rate in effect as of June 30, 2011.
(©) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the University Medical Center enterprise fund.
(d) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Clark County Water Reclamation District

enterprise fund.
(e) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Las Vegas Valley Water District enterprise

fund.
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ 30,227,716 $ 125,854,685 $ 156,082,401
2013 53,263,575 124,336,766 177,600,341
2014 54,374,783 121,761,463 176,136,246
2015 57,976,952 119,219,869 177,196,821
2016 74,241,362 116,511,185 190,752,547
2017-2021 406,874,493 527,271,185 934,145,678
2022-2026 533,173,105 416,311,520 949,484,625
2027-2031 354,931,850 306,589,059 661,520,909
2032-2036 483,495,000 207,840,714 691,335,714
2037-2041 383,110,000 53,135,749 436,245,749
2,431,668,836 $2,118,832,195 $4.550,501,031
Revenue Bonds
Date of
Date Final Original Balance
Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011
1993A Department of Aviation 05/18/93 07/01/12 variable % $339,000,000 66,600,000 (a)
1998APFC  Department of Aviation 04/01/98 07/01/22 4.10-5.50 214,245,000 81,690,000 (a)
2002APFC  Department of Aviation 10/01/02 07/01/13  4.00-5.25 34,490,000 8,605,000 (a)
2003C Department of Aviation 05/29/03 07/01/22 5.00-5.375 105,435,000 93,195,000 (a)
2004A1 Department of Aviation 09/01/04 07/01/24  5.00-5.50 128,430,000 128,430,000 (a)
200442 Department of Aviation 09/01/04 07/01/36 5.00-5.125 232,725,000 232,725,000 (a)
2005A Department of Aviation 09/14/05 07/01/40 4.50 69,590,000 69,590,000 (a)
2006A Department of Aviation 09/21/06 07/01/40 4.00-5.00 100,000,000 50,940,000 (a)
2007A1 Department of Aviation 05/16/07 07/01/27 4.00-5.00 150,400,000 150,400,000 (a)
2007A2 Department of Aviation 05/16/07 07/01/40 5.00 56,225,000 56,225,000 (a)
2007A1PFC  Department of Aviation 04/27/07 07/01/26 4.00-5.00 113,510,000 113,510,000 (a)
2007A2PFC  Department of Aviation 04/27/07 07/01/27 5.00 105,475,000 105,475,000 (a)
2008c1 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/40 variable 122,900,000 122,900,000 (a)
2008c2 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/29 variable 71,550,000 71,550,000 (a)
2008c3 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/29 variable 71,550,000 71,550,000 (a)
2008D1 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/36 variable 58,920,000 58,920,000 (a)
2008D2 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/40 variable 199,605,000 199,605,000 (a)
2008D3 Department of Aviation 03/19/08 07/01/29 variable 122,865,000 122,865,000 (a)
2008E Department of Aviation 05/28/08 07/01/17 4.00-5.00 61,430,000 51,970,000 (a)
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Date of
Date Final Original Balance
Series Purpose Issued  Maturity Interest Issue June 30, 2011

2008APFC  Department of Aviation 06/26/08 07/01/18 5.00-5.25 115,845,000 109,585,000 (a)
2008A1 Department of Aviation 06/26/08 07/01/22 variable 100,000,000 100,000,000 (a)
2008A2 Department of Aviation 06/26/08 07/01/22 variable 50,000,000 50,000,000 (a)
2008B1 Department of Aviation 06/26/08 07/01/22 variable 100,000,000 100,000,000 (a)
2008B2 Department of Aviation 06/26/08 07/01/22 variable 50,000,000 50,000,000 (a)
20098 Department of Aviation 09/24/09 07/01/42 6.88 300,000,000 300,000,000 (a)
2009C Department of Aviation 09/24/09 07/01/26  5.00 168,495,000 168,495,000 (a)
2010A Department of Aviation 02/03/10 07/01/42 3.00-5.42 450,000,000 450,000,000 (a)
20108 Department of Aviation 02/03/10 07/01/42 5.00-5.75 350,000,000 350,000,000 (a)
2010cC Department of Aviation 02/23/10 07/01/45 6.82 454,280,000 454,280,000 (a)
2010D Department of Aviation 02/23/10 07/01/24 3.00-5.00 132,485,000 132,485,000 (a)
2010E Department of Aviation 05/27/10 07/01/12 2.50-5.00 300,000,000 200,000,000 (a)
2010F1 Department of Aviation 11/04/10 07/01/17 2.00-5.00 104,160,000 104,160,000 (a)
2010F2 Department of Aviation 11/04/10 07/01/22 3.00 100,000,000 100,000,000 (a)
2011A Department of Aviation 05/15/11 06/19/12  2.00 100,000,000 100,000,000 (a)
2008 Las Vegas Valley Water

District 07/15/08 12/15/22 1.30 2,520,000 2,016,000 (b)

Total Revenue Bonds $4,627,766,000

(a) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Department of Aviation enterprise fund. The

variable rate bonds are valued at the rate in effect as of June 30, 2011.
(b) These bonds are being serviced, principal and interest, by the Las Vegas Valley Water District enterprise fund.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ 191,433,000 $ 176,233,403 $ 367,666,403
2013 305,703,000 165,145,396 470,848,396
2014 68,138,000 156,874,150 225,012,150
2015 67,068,000 153,560,007 220,628,007
2016 71,463,000 150,101,312 221,564,312
2017-2021 613,405,000 693,060,897 1,306,465,897
2022-2026 718,011,000 580,044,731 1,298,055,731
2027-2031 565,115,000 459,166,235 1,024,281,235
2032-2036 531,540,000 372,754,670 904,294,670
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Business-Type Activities (Continued):
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

2037-2041 810,065,000 248,325,359 1,058,390,359
2042-2046 685,825,000 67.613.353 753,438,353
$4,627,766,000 $3,222,879,513 $7,850,645,513

Loans Payable

Date of
Date Final Original Balance
Series Purpose Issued Maturity  Interest Issue June 30, 2011
2004 Commercial Paper 06/02/04  05/06/12 33% $400,000,000  $400,000,000(a)
Total Loans Payable $400.000.000

(a) This loan is being serviced, principal and interest, by the Las Vegas Valley Water District enterprise fund.

Commercial Paper Notes Activity

Date Issued Repayments Balance
07/01/04 $140,000,000 $ - $140,000,000
07/15/04 60,000,000 - 200,000,000
02/02/05 100,000,000 - 300,000,000
10/11/05 100,000,000 - 400,000,000

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $400.000,000 $133.101 $400.133,101
400.0 $133.101 400,133,101
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Gen. obligation bonds $2,033,880,000 $ - $ 62,710,000  $1,971,170,000 $ 70,545,000
Revenue bonds 10,000 - - 10,000 -
Special assessment
bonds with govern-
mental commitment 270,015,000 - 17,695,000 252,320,000 15,520,000
Loans 408,796 - 227,106 181,690 181,690
Litigation accrual 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 -
Arbitrage 100,000 - 100,000 - -
County and Fire OPEB
liability 77,930,407 46,181,386 - 124,111,793 -
LVMPD OPERB liability 158,510,054 43,684,532 - 202,194,586 -
Compensated absences 191,041,239 122,559,721 130,480,312 183,120,648 117,000,000
Total 2,734,395.496 212,425,639 211,212,418 2,735.608.717 203,246,690

For governmental activities, the litigation accrual is liquidated by the general fund. Arbitrage, OPEB and
compensated absences are liquidated by the individual funds in which they are accrued.

Business-Type Activities:

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Gen. obligation bonds 2,449,200,946 59,753,669 77,285,779 2,431,668,836 30,227,717
Revenue bonds 4,728,724,000 100,000,000 200,958,000 4,627,766,000 191,433,000
Loans 401,210,067 - 1,210,067 400,000,000 400,000,000
OPEB Liability 60,186,241 38,871,222 - 99,057,463 56,904,956
Compensated absences 63,415,806 58,239,743 58,332,819 63,322,730 59,031,580
Other liabilities 177,182,780 39,753,463 81.917.527 135,018,716 -
Total 7.879.919.840 296,618,097 419,704,192 7.756.833,745 737.597.253
Total long-term debt $10,614,315336 $ 509,043,736 § 630,916,610 $10,492,442.462 $ 940,843,943

Unamortized premium/discount on governmental activity general obligation bonds amounted to $18,452,313.
Unamortized premium/discount on governmental activity special assessment bonds amounted to $(6,257,261).
Unamortized premium/discount on business-type activity general obligation bonds amounted to $23,742,464.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Unamortized premium/discount on business-type activity revenue bonds amounted to $6,924,277. There are a
number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. Management believes the County is
in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Current Year Refunded and Defeased Bond Issues

On November 4, 2010, the County issued $204 million of Non-AMT Private Activity Passenger Facility Charge
Refunding Revenue Bonds. $104.2 million at a fixed rate that ranges between 2.00 and 5.00 percent and $100
million at a weekly variable rate. The yield interest rate is .54 to 2.63 percent. The bonds were issued for the
purpose of refunding the 2005A PFC bonds and to pay certain costs of issuance thereof. The bonds were issued at a
premium of $9.8 million and resulted in a loss of $10.8 million. This refunding resulted in a net present value
savings of $2.4 million. The F1 series matures in 2017 and the F2 series matures in 2022. The remarketing agent on
the series F2 Bonds is Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and the letter of credit provider is Union Bank, N.A.

On May 26, 2011, the Water District issued Series 2011 A $58,110,000 par value general obligation taxable bonds,
additionally secured by pledged revenue of the SNWA, for a true interest cost of 4.879% (rounded). Proceeds of the
2011A Bonds were used to advance refund $51,930,000 of the February 2008 Water District general obligations
bonds (Series 2008B). The redemption price of the partially refunded 2008B bonds is 100% and the average coupon
rate 5.00%. Because the liability for bonds additionally secured by pledged revenue of the SNWA are offset by an
SNWA receivable, issuing the Series 2011A bonds and partially refunding the Series 2008B bonds had no effect on
the Water District operations or financial position.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Flood Control District

In July 2010, the Flood Control District issued $29,425,000 in General Obligation Flood Control Refunding Bonds
Series 2010 for the purpose of extinguishing $32,740,000 in General Obligation Flood Control Bonds Series 1998.
From November 2010 through November 2018, the refunding bonds will achieve a cash flow savings of $3,619,700

and present value economic savings of $2,946,491 or 6.7% of the original debt service requirements of the General
Obligation Flood Control Bonds Series 1998.

Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the County defeased certain general obligation and revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the County’s financial statements. At June
30, 2011, the following were the remaining balances of the defeased bond issues:

Special Assessment Bonds:

Series of December 1, 1992 $ 1,395,000
Series of October 1, 1995 4,820,000
Series of April 15, 1994 450,000
Series of December 14, 1999 36,825,000
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Prior Year Defeasance of Debt (Continued)

Clark County Public Safety:
Series of October 1, 1996
Series of March 1, 2000

Clark County Transportation:
Series of June 1, 1992 (C)
Series of July 1, 1994 (A)

Series of July 1, 1994 (C)
Series of December 1, 1998(A)
Series of December 1, 1998(B)
Series of February 1, 2000(A)
Series of February 1, 2000(B)
Series of January 15, 1996(A)
Series of January 15, 1996(B)
Series of March 1, 1998(A)
Series of March 1, 1998(C)

Las Vegas Valley Water District:
General Obligation Bonds:
Series of September 1, 1992
Series of April 1, 1994

Series of March 1, 1995

Series of July 1, 1995

Series of July 1, 1996

Clark County Water Reclamation District:
Series of June 1, 1993

Clark County Parks and Regional Justice Center:
Series of 1999

Clark County Bond Bank:
Series of July 1, 2000
Series of June 1, 2001
Series of November 1, 2002
Series of 2008

Clark County Government Center:
Series of July 1, 1993

Clark County Public Facilities:
Series of March 1, 1999(A)
Series of March 1, 1999(B)
Series of March 1, 1999(C)

47,035,000
6,240,000

3,180,000
49,015,000

1,745,000
33,055,000
22,040,000
24,000,000
21,340,000
49,115,000
39,290,000
49,820,000

4,925,000

6,640,000
18,090,000
6,060,000
10,590,000
143,230,000

7,715,000

69,210,000

170,730,000
173,170,000
102,215,000

7,190,000

9,485,000

7,325,000
9,985,000
19,315,000
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Airport Improvement Bonds:
Series of August 1, 1992(A)
Series of August 1, 1992(B)
Series of May 1, 1993

Series of 1999(A)

Series of 2003(A)

Series of 2001(C)

Series of 2005(B)
Series of 2005(C1, 2, 3)
Series of 2005(D1, 2, 3)
Series of 2005(E1, 2, 3)
Series of 1998(A)
Series of 1998(A) PFC

Hospital Bonds:
Series of 2000
Series of 2003
Series of 2007

Flood Control Bonds:
Series of September 15, 1998

Total

Conduit Debt Obligations

The County has issued approximately $1,726,245,000 in economic development revenue bonds since 1990. The
bonds have been issued for a number of economic development projects, including: utility projects, healthcare

137,030,000
54,280,000
19,295,000

105,220,000
42,550,000

115,560,000

50,850,000
215,150,000
205,375,000

58,920,000

59,465,000
112,775,000

47,875,000
17,205,000
6,880,000

77,880,000

2,481 000

projects, and education projects. The bonds are paid solely from the revenues derived from the respective projects,
therefore, these bonds are not liabilities of the County under any condition, and they are not included as a liability of

the County.
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Derivative Instruments

(a) Interest Rate Swaps

The intention of the Department of Aviation’s swap portfolio was to change variable interest rate bonds to
synthetically fixed rate bonds. As a means to lower its borrowing costs when compared against fixed-rate bonds at
the time of issuance, the Department of Aviation executed several floating-to-fixed swaps in connection with its
issuance of variable rate bonds. The Department of Aviation also executed forward starting swaps to lock in
attractive synthetically fixed rates for future variable rate bonds. Some of the Department of Aviation’s swaps are
structured with step-down coupons in order to shift savings from the early years to the later years of the swap.

As summarized in the tables below, the Department of Aviation has 22 outstanding swap transactions as of June 30,
2011 with initial notional amounts totaling $3,137,170,000. The outstanding notional amount as of June 30, 2011,
was $2,455,452,191, including $1,250,540,000 in Floating-to-Fixed swaps; $275,000,000 of Forward Floating-to-
Fixed swaps; and $929,912,191 in Basis swaps. The current mark-to-market or fair value of each derivative
instrument is detailed below and the total valuation of all outstanding swap agreements as of June 30, 2011 is
($82,622,049). The mark-to-market or fair value for each swap is estimated using the zero-coupon method. Under
this method, future payments are calculated assuming that the current forward rates of the appropriate yield curve,
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA), formerly known as BMA or London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR), correctly anticipate future spot rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates
implied by the current LIBOR yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon rate bonds due on the date of each future net
settlement on the swaps.

All of the swaps entered into by the Department of Aviation comply with the County’s swap policy. Each swap is
written under standard International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) guidelines and documentation. This
includes standard provisions for termination events, such as failure to pay or bankruptcy. The Department of
Aviation retains the right to terminate any swap agreement at the market value prior to maturity. The Department of
Aviation has termination risk under the contract particularly if an Additional Termination Event (ATE) was to occur.
An ATE occurs if either the credit rating of the bonds associated with a particular swap agreement and the rating of
the swap insurer falls below a pre-defined credit rating threshold, or the credit rating of the swap counterparty falls
below a threshold as defined in the swap agreement.

With regard to credit risk, the potential exposure is mitigated through the use of an ISDA Credit Support Annex
(CSA). Under the terms of the CSA, each swap counterparty is required to post collateral to a third party when their
credit ratings fall below the trigger level as defined in each swap agreement. As long as the Department of Aviation
retains insurance and its credit rating stays above the established threshold, the Department of Aviation is not
required to post any collateral. This protects the Department of Aviation from credit risks inherent in the swap
agreements.
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

III.DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

As summarized in the previous section, the Department of Aviation has entered into various interest rate swap
agreements to hedge financial risks associated with the cost of borrowing and cash flows associated with the
Department of Aviation’s variable interest rate debt.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments, the Department of Aviation is required to report the fair value of all derivative instruments on the
statement of net assets. In addition, GASB Statement No. 53 requires that all derivatives be sorted into two basic
types; (1) hedging derivative instruments and (2) investment derivative instruments. Hedging derivatives
instruments significantly reduce an identified financial risk by substantially offsetting changes in cash flows or fair
values of an associated hedgeable item. Investment derivative instruments are entered into primarily for income or
profit purposes or they are derivative instruments that do not meet the criteria of an effective hedging derivative
instrument. Changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments are deferred on the statement of net assets; and
changes in fair value of investing derivative instruments are recognized as gains or losses on the statement of
Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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III.DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Derivative Instruments (Continued)

The tables below provide the fair value and changes in fair value of the Department of Aviation’s interest rate swap

agreements as of June 30, 2011.

Fair Value and Classifications
as of Jun. 30, 2011

Changes in fair value for the
twelve months ended June 30, 2011

Outstanding Derivative Instrument Deferred Deferred Net
Swap# Description Notional (000) Classification Amount Outflows Inflows Change
Hedging derivative instruments
Cash flow hedges:
01 Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap $ 66,600,000  Other non-current liability $  (2,210,673) $ 3,992,945 $ - $ 3,992,945
03 Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap - -k - - -
05 Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap -k -k - - -
07A Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 150,000,000  Other non-current liability (11,617,381) 3,438,257 - 3,438,257
07B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 150,000,000  Other non-current liability (11,609,662) 3,439,436 - 3,439,436
10A Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap - % -k - - -
10B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 29,935,000  Restricted asset 238,793 1,188,276 238,793 1,427,069
10C Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 29,935,000  Restricted asset 238,836 1,188,261 238,836 1,427,097
11 Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap - * -k - - -
12A Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 200,000,000  Other non-current liability (11,385,136) 9,086,823 - 9,086,823
12B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 350,000,000  Other non-current liability (12,538,397) 30,836,171 - 30,836,171
13 Forward Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap - —_— - - -
14A Forward Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 73,025,000  Other non-current liability (11,165,498) 461,964 - 461,964
14B Forward Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 201,975,000 Other non-current liability (33,157,751) 2,559,124 - 2,559,124
Total hedging activities 1,251,470,000 (93,206,869) 56,191,257 477,629 56,668,886
*Deferrals
Gain/(loss) included in
Investing derivative instruments on investment gain/(loss)
02 Basis Rate Swap 82,056,714  Other non-current liability (3,935,135) $ 1,980,920 $ - $ 1,980,920
04 Basis Rate Swap 142,919,696  Restricted asset 71,375 1,655,093 - 1,655,093
06 Basis Rate Swap 300,000,000  Restricted asset 10,856,723 4,885,345 - 4,885,345
08A Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 151,200,000  Restricted asset 3,702,452 15,043,712 - 15,043,712
08B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 31,975,000  Restricted asset 783,321 3,181,857 - 3,181,857
08C Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 31,975,000  Restricted asset 783,350 3,181,893 - 3,181,893
09A Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 41,330,000  Restricted asset 4,540,573 4,110,506 - 4,110,506
09B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 8,795,000  Restricted asset 965,846 874,575 - 874,575
09C Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap 8,795,000  Restricted asset 965,860 874,584 - 874,584
12B Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap See note* Restricted asset 1,170,835 (12,044) 1,182,879 1,170,835
*Remaining portions of swaps after April 6, 2010 terminations
11 Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap - - - - -
15 Fixed Rate Basis Swap (formerly Swap #03) 64,350,781  Restricted asset 5,089,674 (790,398) - (790,398)
16 Fixed Rate Basis Swap (formerly Swap #05) 50,850,000  Restricted asset 3,319,855 (219,973) - (219,973)
17 Fixed Rate Basis Swap (formerly Swap #10A) 139,735,000  Restricted asset 9,904,412 1,074,176 - 1,074,176
18 Fixed Rate Basis Swap (formerly Swap #13) 150,000,000 Restricted asset 6,296,885 2,691,567 - 2,691,567
Total investing activities 1,203,982,191 44,516,026 $ 38,531,813 $ 1,182,879 39,714,692
Total $ 2,455,452,191 $ 148,690,843! $ 96,383,578

*On November 4, 2010 the Department refunded the outstanding principal of its Series 2005 A-1 and A-2 PFC bonds with the Series 2010 F-1 and F-2 PFC bonds. Upon refunding, swap #12B was
refunding, swap #12B was re-associated with the cash flows of the $100,000,000 of outstanding principal of the Series 2010 F-2 PFC Bonds.
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[II.DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

On November 4, 2010 the Department of Aviation refunded the outstanding principal of its Series 2005 A-1 and A-2
PFC bonds with the Series 2010 F-1 and F-2 PFC bonds. At the time of refunding, swap #12B served as a hedge to the
cash flows associated with $100,000,000 in principal of the Series 2005A PFC Bonds.

Upon refunding, swap #12B was re-associated with the cash flows of the $100,000,000 of outstanding principal of the
Series 2010 F-2 PFC Bonds and the fair value of swap #12B was revalued using the market rates at the time of the
refunding, this created a deferred loss on refunding and imputed borrowing of $12,388,710. In addition, cash flows
associated with $100,000,000 in outstanding notional for swap #12B exceeded the cash flows associated with the
outstanding principal of the Series 2010 F-2 PFC bonds, therefore a portion of the fair value of swap #12B is classified
as a hedging derivative and the fair value of the excess portion is classified as an investment derivative.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, $1,182,879 of Swap 12B was reclassified from hedging derivative to
investing derivative. No other swaps were reclassified for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

(b) Hedging Derivative Instruments:

On June 30, 2011, the Department of Aviation had nine (9) outstanding floating-to-fixed interest rate swap
agreements considered to be hedging derivative instruments in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. Below is a summary of the objectives,
terms, values, and risks associated with the Department of Aviation’s hedging derivative instruments.

Objective:

As a means to lower its borrowing costs when compared against fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance, the
Department of Aviation executed floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps in connection with its issuance of Variable
Rate Bonds. The intention of these swaps was to change the Department of Aviation’s variable interest rate on the
bonds to synthetic fixed rates. As of June 30, 2011 the Department of Aviation had six (6) outstanding swaps that
were structured with step-down coupons in order to shift savings from the early years to the later years of the swap.

Forward starting swap agreements:

On January 3, 2006, the Department of Aviation entered into five (5) swap agreements (Swaps #7A, #7B, #12A,
#12B, and #13) to hedge future variable rate debt, as a means to lower its borrowing costs and provide favorable
synthetically fixed rates for the financing of the Terminal 3 Project and other related projects. Swaps #7A and 7B#
with notional amounts totaling $300,000,000 became effective on July 1, 2008 and hedge the 2008 series A and B
variable rate bonds. Swaps #12A and #12B with notional amounts totaling $550,000,000 became effective July 1,
2009 and swap

#13 with a notional amount totaling $150,000,000 was scheduled to become effective July 1, 2010. Due to the
attractive market rates for fixed rate bonds together with the favorable provisions of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2010, the Department of Aviation chose to refinance its outstanding bond anticipation notes and
issue fixed rate bonds to complete financing of the Terminal 3 Project. As a result, the planned $550,000,000 of
2009 series A and B variable rate bonds were not issued on July 1, 2009.
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

In addition, on April 6, 2010, the Department of Aviation terminated $543,300,000 in notional amounts of its
outstanding floating to fixed interest rate swaps (Swaps #3, #5, #10A, and #11) and the $150,000,000 in notional
amounts of the July 1, 2010 forward starting swap #13 to better match its outstanding notional of floating-to-fixed
interest rate swaps to the cash flows associated with its outstanding variable rate bonds.

On April 17, 2007, the Department of Aviation entered into two (2) additional forward starting swap agreements
(swaps #14A and #14B) with notional amounts totaling $275,000,000 which are scheduled to become effective July
1,2011.

Terms, notional amounts, and fair values:

The terms, notional amounts, and fair value of the Department of Aviation’s hedging derivatives at June 30, 2011 are
included in the table below. Notional amounts of the swap agreements match the principal portions of the associated
debt and contain reductions in the notional amounts that are expected to follow the reductions in the associated
outstanding variable interest rate debt except as discussed in the section on rollover risk.

Outstanding

Interest Rate Swap A County County Fair Maturity
Swap# Description Variable Rate Bonds Date Amount Pays Receives Value Date

01  Floating-to-Fixed 1993A Non-AMT 6/1/1993  § 66,600,000  6.6900% Bond Rate $ (2,210,673) 7/1/2012
07A  Floating-to-Fixed 2008A AMT 7/1/2008 150,000,000  4.3057%to 7/2017; 0.2500% 64.7% of USD LIBOR + 0.280% (11,617,381) 7/1/2022
07B  Floating-to-Fixed 2008B AMT 7/1/2008 150,000,000  4.3057%to 7/2017; 0.2500% 64:7% of USD LIBOR +0.280% (11,609,662) 7/1/2022
10B  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2 AMT 3/19/2008 29,935,000  4.0030% to 7/2015; 2.2700% 62.0% of USD LIBOR + 0.280% 238,793 7/1/2040
10C  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2 AMT 3/19/2008 29,935,000  4.0030% to 7/2015; 2.2700% 62.0% of USD LIBOR + 0.280% 238,836 7/1/2040
12A  Floating-to-Fixed 2009A AMT 7/1/2009 200,000,000  5.6260% to 7/2017; 0.2500% 64.7% of USD LIBOR + 0.280% (11,385,136) 7/172026
12B  Floating-to-Fixed 2009B AMT 7/1/2009 350,000,000  6.0000% to 7/2017; 1.4550% 64.7% of USD LIBOR + 0.280% (20,016,397) 7/172038
14A  Forward Floating-to-Fixed 2011A 7/1/2011 73,025,000  3.8860% 64.4% of USD LIBOR +0.280% (11,165,498) 7/1/2030
14B  Forward Floating-to-Fixed 2011A 7/1/2011 201,975,000  3.8810% 64.4% of USD LIBOR +0.280% (33,157,751 7/1/2037

$ 1‘25 ]i470’000 $ C 100‘684,869!

Due to an increase in interest rates during Fiscal Year 2011, two of the Department of Aviation’s hedging derivatives
had positive fair values as of June 30, 2011. The fair values are estimated using the zero-coupon method. Under this
method, future payments are calculated assuming that the current forward rates of the appropriate yield curve,
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA), formerly known as BMA or London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR), correctly anticipate future spot rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates
implied by the current LIBOR yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon rate bonds due on the date of each future net
settlement on the swaps.

Credit Risk:

As of June 30, 2011, the Department of Aviation was exposed to credit risk on two of its outstanding hedging
derivative swaps because these swaps all had positive fair values. The Department of Aviation is exposed to credit
risk in the amount of the derivatives’ fair values. As described earlier, a CSA is in place to provide collateral to

protect the value of the swaps under specific circumstances.

The counterparty credit ratings for the Department of Aviation’s hedging derivative instruments at June 30, 2011 are
included in the table below.
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Derivative Instruments (Continued)

Interest Rate Swap Counterparty Ratings Credit Risk
Swap# Description Counterparty Moody's S&P Fitch Exposure
01 Floating-to-Fixed AIG Financial Products Corp. Baal A- N/A $ -
03 * Floating-to-Fixed * Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
05 * Floating-to-Fixed * Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
07A  Floating-to-Fixed JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Aal AA- AA- -
07B  Floating-to-Fixed UBS AG Aa3 A+ A+ -
10A * Floating-to-Fixed * Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 238,793
10B  Floating-to-Fixed JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Aal AA- AA- 238,836
10C Floating-to-Fixed UBS AG Aa3 A+ A+ -
11 * Floating-to-Fixed * Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
12A  Floating-to-Fixed Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
12B  Floating-to-Fixed Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
13 * Forward Floating-to-Fixed * Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
14A  Forward Floating-to-Fixed UBS AG Aa3 A+ A+ -
14B  Forward Floating-to-Fixed Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ -
‘ $ 477,629
Associated Debt:

The net cash flows for the Department of Aviation’s hedging derivative instruments at June 30, 2011 are included in

the table below.
Net Interest
Interest Rate Swap Associated Counterparty Swap Interest Interest to Payment
Swap# Description Variable Rate Bonds Pay Receive Net Bondholders 2011

01  Floating-to-Fixed 1993 A Non-AMT $ (4,455,540) $ 1,030,019 $ (3,425,521) $ (1,030,019) $ (4,455,540)

03 * Floating-to-Fixed 2005A-1, 2005A-2 AMT - - - -

05 * Floating-to-Fixed 2008C AMT ($50.8 million) - - - - -
07A  Floating-to-Fixed 2008A AMT (6,458,550) 681,174 (5,777,376) (649,644) (6,427,020)
07B  Floating-to-Fixed 2008B AMT (6,458,550) 681,174 (5,777,376) (689,356) (6,466,732)
10A * Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2 AMT - - - - -
10B  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2 AMT (1,198,298) 133,814 (1,064,484) (81,115) (1,145,599)
10C  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2 AMT (1,198,298) 133,814 (1,064,484) (81,115) (1,145,599)

11 * Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-3 Non-AMT - - - - -
12A  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-2, D-3 Non-AMT (11,252,000) 908,232 (10,343,768) (543,644) (10,887,412)
12B  Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-3 Non-AMT, 2008C, (21,000,000) 1,589,406 (19,410,594) (13,132,612) (32,543,206)

2010E Note
14A  Forward Floating-to-Fixed 2011A - - - - -
14B  Forward Floating-to-Fixed 2011A - - - - -

*Terminated on April 6, 2010.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

Basis and Interest Rate Risk:

The $66,600,000 notional floating-to-fixed swap (Swap #01) is not subject to basis or interest rate risk as the
variable amount received from the swap counterparty matches the payment due on the 1993A Non-AMT bonds. All
of the remaining hedging derivative swaps are subject to basis and interest rate risk should the relationship between
LIBOR and SIFMA rates converge. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the expected
cost savings and expected cash flows of the swaps may not be realized.

Tax Risk:

The Department of Aviation is exposed to tax risk if a permanent mismatch (shortfall) occurs between the floating
rate received on the swap and the variable rate paid on the underlying variable rate bonds due to tax law changes
such that the federal or state tax exemption of municipal debt is eliminated or its value reduced.

Termination Risk:

The Department of Aviation is exposed to termination risk if either the credit rating of the bonds associated with the
swap, or the credit rating of the swap counterparty falls below the threshold defined in the swap agreement, then an
Additional Termination Event (ATE) may occur. At the time of the ATE, if the swap has a negative value, the
Department of Aviation would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Rollover Risk:

The amounts of swaps #01, #07A, #07B, #10B, #10C, #12A, and #12B match the principal portions of the associated
debt and contain reductions in the notional amounts that are expected to follow the reduction in the associated
outstanding variable rate debt.

On November 4, 2010 the Department of Aviation refunded the outstanding principal of its Series 2005 A-1 and A-2
PFC bonds with the Series 2010 F-1 and F-2 PFC bonds. Upon refunding, cash flows associated with $100,000,000
in outstanding notional for swap #12B exceeded the cash flows associated with the outstanding principal of the
Series 2010 F-2 PFC bonds, therefore a portion of the fair value of swap #12B is classified as a hedging derivative
and the fair value of the excess portion is classified as an investment derivative.

On April 6, 2010, the swaps that originally served as hedges to $229,900,000 of the outstanding 2005 series A-1 and
A-2 bonds (swap #3); $50,850,000 of the outstanding 2008 series C bonds (swap #5); $139,735,000 of the
outstanding 2008 series D-2 bonds (swap #10A); and $122,865,000 of the outstanding 2008 series D-3 bonds (swap
#11) were terminated, leaving cash flows from these variable rate bonds to be associated with the outstanding swaps
#12A and #12B.

(c) Investing Derivative Instruments:
On June 30, 2011, the Department of Aviation has outstanding 13 interest rate swap agreements considered to be

investing derivate instruments in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

Terms, notional amounts, and fair values:

The terms, notional amounts, and fair values of the Department of Aviation’s investing derivatives at June 30, 2011
are included in the table below.

Swap#
02
04

08A
08B
08C
09A
09B

09C

Interest Rate Swap Associated Effective Outstanding County County Fair Maturity
Description Variable Rate Bonds Date Notional Pays Receives Value Date
Basis Swap Initially 2004B AMT 8/23/2001 $ 82,056,714  SIFMA Swap Index - 0.41% 72.5% of USD LIBOR - 0.41% $ (3.935,135) 7172036
Basis Swap Initially 2001B, 1998A, 7/1/2003 142,919,696 SIFMA Swap Index 68.% of USD LIBOR + 0.435% 71,375 7172025
2003B Non-AMT

Basis Swap Initially 2004A-1 AMT, 9/1/2004 300,000,000  SIFMA Swap Index 62.2% of USD LIBOR + 0.3% to 7/2010; 10,856,723 1172025
2004 A-2 Non-AMT 62.2% of USD LIBOR +1.052% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008C AMT 3/19/2008 151,200,000 4% to 7/2015; 3% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.46% to 7/2009, 3,702,452 7172040
82% of 10 year CMS - 0.936% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008C AMT 3/19/2008 31,975,000 4% to0 7/2015; 3% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.460% to 7/2009; 783,321 7172040
82% of 10 year CMS - 0.936% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008C AMT 3/19/2008 31,975,000 4% to 7/2015; 3% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.460% to 7/2009; 783,350 7/172040
82% of 10 year CMS - 0.936% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-1 AMT 3/19/2008 41,330,000 5% to 7/2015; 1.21% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.560% to 7/2009; 4,540,573 /172036
82% of 10 year CMS - 1.031% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-1 AMT 3/19/2008 8,795,000 5% to 7/2015; 1.21% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.560% to 7/2009, 965,846 7/1/2036
82% of 10 year CMS - 1.031% to maturity

Floating-to-Fixed 2008D-1 AMT 3/19/2008 8,795,000 5% to 7/2015; 1.21% 82% of USD LIBOR - 0.560% to 7/2009; 965,860 /172036
82% of 10 year CMS - 1.031% to maturity

of swaps afl Q inatio;

Fixed Rate Basis Swap swap #03 (amended and restated) 4/6/2010 64,350,781 1.02% until 7/1/2010 1.47% starting at 7/1/2010 5,089,674 7/172022

Fixed Rate Basis Swap swap #05 (amended and restated) 4/6/2010 50,850,000 1.37% until 7/1/2010 0.6% starting at 7/1/2010 3,319,855 7112025

Fixed Rate Basis Swap swap #10A (amended and restated) 4/6/2010 139,735,000  0.873% until 7/1/2015 0.86% starting at 7/1/2015 9,904,412 7/1/2040

Fixed Rate Basis Swap swap #13 (amended and restated) 4/6/2010 150,000,000 2.493% until 7/1/2017 1.594% starting at 7/1/2017 6,296,885 7/112040

$ 1,203,982,191 $ 43,345,191

Credit Risk:

The Department of Aviation is exposed to credit risk on the twelve (12) interest rate swaps with positive
fair values totaling $47,280,326. The Department of Aviation is not exposed to credit risk on the remaining
interest rate swap with a negative fair value. Should interest rates change and the fair values of the swaps

become positive the Department of Aviation would then be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the

derivatives’ fair values. As described earlier, a CSA is in place to provide collateral to protect the value of

the swap under specific circumstances.
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Derivative Instruments (Continued)

The counterparty credit ratings for the Department of Aviation’s investing derivative swaps at June 30,
2011 are included in the table below.

Interest Rate Swap Counterparty Ratings Credit Risk

Swap# Description Counterparty Moody's S&P Fitch Exposure

02 Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ $ -
04 Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 71,375
06 Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 10,856,723
08A  Floating-to-Fixed Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 3,702,452
08B Floating-to-Fixed JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Aal AA- AA- 783,321
08C Floating-to-Fixed UBS AG Aa3 A+ A+ 783,350
09A  Floating-to-Fixed Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 4,540,573
09B  Floating-to-Fixed JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Aal AA- AA- 965,846
09C Floating-to-Fixed UBS AG Aa3 A+ A+ 965,860

Remaining portions of swaps after April 6, 2010 terminations

15 Fixed Rate Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 5,089,674
16 Fixed Rate Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 3,319,855
17  Fixed Rate Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 9,904,412
18 Fixed Rate Basis Swap Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A3 A A+ 6,296,885
3 47,280,326
Interest Rate Risk:

Swaps #02, #04, and #06 are subject to interest rate risk should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA rates
converge. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the expected cost savings and expected
cash flows of the swaps may not be realized.

Swaps #08A-C and #09A-C are subject to interest rate risk should the relationship between the 10 Year CMS and
SIFMA rates converge. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the expected cost savings
and expected cash flows of the swaps may not be realized.

Items #15 through #18 are not subject to interest rate risk.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

None of the Department of Aviation’s interest rate swaps are subject to foreign currency risks.

(d) Using the rates effective on June 30, 2011 the approximate maturities and interest of the Department of
Aviation’s variable rate debt and bond anticipation notes plus the net payments on floating-to-fixed interest rate

swaps are as follows:

Variable Rate Bonds Bond Anticipation Notes
Due for the Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Net Swap Payment Total

2012 $ 32,300,000 $ 6,875,000 $ 100,000,000 $ 12,189,000 $ 55,682,804 $ 207,046,804

2013 34,500,000 5,843,000 200,000,000 5,000,000 58,788,499 304,131,499

2014 100,000 5,843,000 - 58,812,831 64,755,831

2015 100,000 5,843,000 - 58,813,242 64,756,242

2016 3,865,000 5,788,000 - 56,524,871 66,177,871

2017 - 2021 296,325,000 21,422,000 - 133,359,274 451,106,274
2022 - 2026 241,700,000 3,859,000 - 77,041,655 322,600,655
2027 - 2031 216,045,000 5,427,000 - 71,708,090 293,180,090
2032 - 2036 159,940,000 4,604,000 - 39,409,397 203,953,397
2037 - 2041 172,220,000 3,819,000 - 5,842,225 181,881,225
2042 - 2046 - - 3,492,000 - - 3,492,000
2047 - 2048 - 1,746,000 - - - 1,746,000
Total $ 1,157,095,000 $ 74,561,000 $ 300,000,000 $ 17,189,000 $ 615,982,888 $  2,164,827,888
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Flood Control District:

The following is a summary of bonds, loans, and compensated absences payable by the Flood Control District for the

year ended June 30, 2011:

Due Within Due After

Liability One Year One Year
General obligation bonds $415,300,000 $10,775,000 $404,525,000
Compensated absences 770,312 - 770,312
Other post-employment benefits 404,732 - 404,732
Total liabilities $416,475,044 $10,775,000 $405,700,044
Bonds payable July 1,2010 $428,965,000
Additions 29,425,000
Reductions (43,090,000)
Bonds payable June 30,2011 $415,300,000

Unamortized premium on governmental activity general obligation bonds amounted to $7,645,822.

The following individual issues comprised the bonds payable at June 30, 2011:

Original Interest Balance
Amount Rate June 30, 2011
Series of 2006 200,000,000 3.50-4.75 $199,700,000
Series of 2008 50,570,000 3.00-5.00 42,810,000
Series of 2009B 150,000,000 2.69-7.25 143,365,000
Series 0f 2010 29,425,000 5.00 29,425,000
Total general obligation bonds $415.300,000
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

Flood Control District (Continued):

The debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041

Total

Compensated Absences

Principal

$ 10,775,000
11,240,000
11,730,000
12,260,000
12,820,000
64,295,000
69,530,000
86,845,000

110,620,000
25,185,000

4153

Interest

$22,156,451
21,661,513
21,124,138
20,546,098
19,929,849
89,821,299
73,182,558
52,147,514
25,038,563
2,796,506

$348,404,489

Total
Requirements

$ 32,931,451
32,901,513
32,854,138
32,806,098
32,749,849
154,116,299
142,712,558
138,992,514
135,658,563

27,981,506

$763,704,489

The following is the change in long-term accrued sick leave and vacation benefits as of June 30, 2011:

Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at July 1, 2010

Additional amount accrued during the year
Less amount used during the year

Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at June 30, 2011

Pledged Revenues

$ 721,485
424,478
(375.651)
$ 770312

All bonds issued by the Flood Control District are collateralized by a portion of the one-quarter cent sales tax

authorized by NRS 543.600 for Flood Control District operations.

The pledged revenues and debt service coverage for the year ended June 30, 2011, are:

Pledged revenues — sales tax
Debt service
Coverage

$70,918,028
32,674,708
2.17
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RTC:

The following is a summary of bonds, loans, and compensated absences payable by the RTC for the year ended June

30,2011:

Governmental activities:

Liability
Revenue bonds $808,865,000
Loans payable 16,000,000
Compensated absences 1,961,861
Other post-employment benefits 1,942.872
Total liabilities $ 828,769,733

Revenue Bonds

The following is a summary of revenue bond activities for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Bonds payable July 1, 2010
Reductions
Additions

Bonds payable June 30, 2011

The following individual issues comprised the bonds payable at June 30, 2011.

Original
Amount
Highway Improvement Motor Vehicle
Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds:
Series of 2003 $200,000,000
Series of 2007 300,000,000
Series 2010A1 32,595,000
Series 2010B 51,180,000
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds:
Series 2010 69,595,000
Series 2010B 94,835,000
Series 2010C 140,560,000

Total revenue bonds

Due Within Due After

One Year One Year
$29,290,000 $779,575,000
- 16,000,000
744,412 1,217,449
- 1,942,872
$30,034412 $798,735,321
$594,330,000
(20,860,000)
235,395,000
808,865,000

Interest Balance
Rate June 30,2011
4.50-6.00% $150,880,000
3.00-5.00 271,895,000
6.10-6.35 32,595,000
5.00 51,180,000
3.00-5.00 66,920,000
3.00-5.00 94,835,000
5.10-6.15 140,560,000
$808.865,000
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RTC (Continued)

Unamortized premium on governmental activity revenue bonds amounted to $23,296,220.

The debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 $ 29,290,000 $ 38,944,519 $ 68,234,519
2013 30,645,000 37,565,594 68,210,594
2014 32,080,000 36,094,407 68,174,407
2015 33,605,000 34,522,444 68,127,444
2016 35,175,000 32,896,326 68,071,326
2017-2021 202,625,000 137,030,474 339,655,474
2022-2026 232,910,000 82,058,692 314,968,692
2027-2031 212.535.000 26,580,531 239,115,531
Total $808,865,000 $425,692,987 $1,234,557,987

Loans Payable

In January 2008, the RTC established a commercial paper program allowing for the issuance of $200 million in tax-
exempt commercial paper notes (Series 2008A and Series 2008B) for the streets and highways improvements
projects incorporated in Clark County’s Master Transportation Plan. As of June 30, 2011, this program has been
closed. Expiration date is January 23, 2015; however, the line of credit may be extended from time to time. Interest
rates are variable and averaged 0.3 percent at June 30, 2011.

Commercial Paper Notes Payable

In February 2008, the RTC established a commercial paper program for the streets and highways improvements
projects incorporated in Clark County’s Master Transportation Plan. This program is authorized for the issuance of
up to $200 million in tax-exempt commercial paper notes to be paid from pledged motor vehicle fuel tax revenues
and additionally secured by an irrevocable letter of credit dated March 5, 2008 (Series 2008A and Series 2008B). As
of June 30, 2011, $16 million is outstanding. The commercial paper notes may have a maturity date from 1 to 270
days after their issuance; however, no note may mature after the earlier of March 4, 2018, or five days prior to the
line of credit expiration date, currently March 13, 2013. Interest rates are variable and averaged 0.3 percent at June
30,2011.

As of June 30, 2011, the total amount of commercial paper approved for sale was $100 million, which was divided

equally into two separate issues, Series 2008A and Series 2008B with an aggregate of $16 million issued and
outstanding.
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RTC (Continued):

Loans Payable (Continued)

The commercial paper is ordinarily due in various periodic installments of not more than 270 days from date of

issue; however, because the commercial paper is subject to an irrevocable letter of credit the obligation is classified

as long-term debt in the statement of net assets.

The following is the loan payable at June 30, 2011:

Original Date of Date Final Interest Balance
Lender Amount Loan Payment Due Rate June 30, 2011
Commercial Paper $200,000,000  03/05/08 Various 0.34% $16,000,000

This loan is being serviced, principal and interest, by the RTC.

Compensated Absences

The following is the change in long-term accrued sick leave and vacation benefits as of June 30, 2011:

Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at July 1, 2010 $ 1,579,952
Reductions during the year (744,412)
Additions during the year 1,126,321
Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at June 30, 2011 $1,961,861

Business-type activities:

Due Within Due After

Liability One Year One Year
Compensated absences $1,090,179 $ 587,253 $ 502,926
Other post-employment benefits 1,971,870 - 1,971,870

$ 3,062,049 $ 587,253 $ 2,474,796

Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at July 1, 2010 $1,011,736
Reductions during the year (587,253)
Additions during the year 665.696
Long-term portion of accrued sick leave and vacation benefits at June 30, 2011 $ 1,090,179
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RTC (Continued):

Pledged Revenues

Motor vehicle fuel tax revenue bonds issued for RTC purposes are collateralized by a maximum of nine cents per
gallon motor vehicle fuel tax levied by the County, except that portion required to be allocated as direct distributions
for those political subdivisions not included in the “Las Vegas Valley Area Major Street and Highway Plan.”

The bonds are additionally collateralized by the County’s share of the three cents per gallon tax levied by the State
pursuant to NRS 365.180 and 365.190 and accounted for in other County funds.

The net pledged revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Pledged revenues (net of administrative expenditures)

State motor vehicle fuel tax $ 19,736,746
County motor vehicle fuel tax 65.464.850
__85.201.596

Direct distributions allocated for certain political subdivisions
not included in the Las Vegas Valley Area Major Street

and Highway Plan (2,148.177)
Net pledged revenues $ 83,053,419

Sales and excise tax revenue bonds issued for RTC purposes are collateralized by 1/8 percent sales and excise tax
and a 1 cent jet aviation fuel tax in Clark County.

The net pledged revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Pledged revenues:

Sales and excise tax $ 35,444,544
Jet aviation fuel tax 3,658,928
Total pledged revenues 103,472

Arbitrage Rebate and Debt Covenant Requirements

The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the County
for the RTC. Under this act, an amount may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury (called
“arbitrage”) for interest on the bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each installment computation date, and as of the most recent such date the
RTC’s management believes that there is no rebatable arbitrage amount due. Future calculations might result in
adjustments to this determination.
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RTC (Continued):

Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Long-term debt obligations are subject to restrictive debt covenants, including certain revenue levels and

revenue/expense ratios, for which management believes the RTC is in compliance.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The County maintains eleven enterprise funds that provide airport, water, sewer, hospital, parking, public safety, and
recreational services. Of the nonmajor enterprise funds, only the Big Bend Water District has outstanding revenue

bonds that require disclosure of the summary financial information presented below:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Assets:
Current assets
Restricted assets
Capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

$ 3,317,364
563,803
33,594,043
37.475.210

541,980
5.388.199

5,930,179
27,868,656

563,803
3,112,572

$31,545,031
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SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Water sales and related water fees

$ 3,576,480
Other operating revenue
Depreciation expense (1,170,642)
Other operating expenses (2,701,907)
Operating loss (296,069)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 13,936
Sales and use tax 274,353
Interest expense (222,995)
Capital contributions 469.890
Change in net assets 239,115
Beginning net assets 31,305,916
Ending net assets $31,545,031
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities $ 1,067,324
Capital and related financing activities (4,407,599)
Investing activities 13,936
Net increase (decrease) (3,326,339)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 6,659,772
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 3333433
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Primary Government

Net Assets - Government-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide Statement of Net Assets utilizes a net asset presentation. Net assets are categorized as
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted and unrestricted. Related debt is the debt outstanding that
relates to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets.

Restricted assets are assets which have externally imposed (statutory, bond covenant, contract, or grantor) limitations
on their use. Restricted assets are classified either by function, debt service, capital projects, or claims. Assets
restricted by function relate to net assets of government and enterprise funds whose use is legally limited by outside
parties for a specific purpose. The restriction for debt service represents assets legally restricted by statute or bond
covenants for future debt service requirements of both principal and interest. The amount restricted for capital
projects consists of unspent grants, donations, and debt proceeds with third party restriction for use on specific
projects or programs. Net assets restricted for claims represent the amount legally required to be held for payment
for future claims in the self-insurance funds. The government-wide statement of net assets reports $1,393,943,381 of
restricted net assets, all of which is externally imposed.

Unrestricted net assets represent financial resources of the County that do not have externally imposed limitations on
their use. '

Fund Balances - Fund Financial Statements:

Government Funds

Government fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources of
the fund. Fund balance classifications by County function consist of the following:

Las Vegas Nonmajor
Metropolitan Governmental
Fund Balances General Fund Police Funds Total
Department
Nonspendable:
Long-term receivable
and endowment 24,042,768 $ 3,100,000 27,142,768
Restricted for:
General government 42,111,762 71,159,795 113,271,557
Judicial - 31,123,017 31,123,017
Public safety 27,562,116 168,526,803 196,088,919
Public works - 7,002,108 7,002,108
Health - 8,876,208 8,876,208
Culture and
recreation 17,752 17,999,736 18,017,488
Community support - 6,484,817 6,484,817
Capital projects:
Public works - 376,965,225 376,965,225

-103-



Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Clark County, Nevada

II. DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued
8. NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Government Funds (Continued)

Fund Balances
Debt service
Total Restricted

Committed to:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Community support
Capital projects:

Public works

Total Committed

Assigned to:
General Government
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Works
Health
Welfare
Culture and
Recreation
Community Support
Capital Projects:
Public Works
Debt Service

Total Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Las Vegas
Metropolitan Nonmajor
Police Governmental
General Fund Department Funds Total
- - 178,312,212 178,312,212
69,691,630 - 866,449,921 936,141,551
- - 10,556,057 10,556,057
- - 355,754 355,754
- 5,371,045 - 5,371,045
- - 1,005,916 1,005,916
- - 56,379,566 56,379,566
- 5,371,045 68,297,293 73,668,338
7,931,323 - 27,659,073 35,590,396
694,695 - 15,576,935 16,271,630
97,131,612 73,179,209 31,787,476 202,098,297
772,118 - 21,476,986 22,249,104
- - 6,581,804 6,581,804
- - 1,091,507 1,091,507
- - 1,740,409 1,740,409
- - 2,358,844 2,358,844
- - 658,802,233 658,802,233
- - 79,585,702 79,585,702
106,529,748 73,179,209 846,660,969 1,026,369,926
159,723,367 - - 159,723,367
359,987,513 $ 78,550,254 1,784,508,183 $ 2,223,045,950
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Flood Control District

Net Assets:

The government-wide statement of net assets reports $7,222,959 of restricted net assets which is restricted by
creditors for general obligation debt repayment.

RTC

Net Assets:

The government-wide statement of net assets reports $308,896,695 of restricted net assets, of which $213,090,483 is

restricted by enabling legislation for street and highway projects and other related activities and $95,806,212 is
restricted by creditors for debt repayment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Over the past three years, settlements have not exceeded
insurance coverage. The County maintains the following types of risk exposures:

Self-Funded Group Insurance and Group Insurance Reserve

The County has established self-insurance funds for insuring medical benefits provided to County employees and
covered dependents. An independent claims administrator performs all claims-handling procedures.

Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon a variety of actuarial and statistical
techniques.

Clark County Workers’ Compensation

The County has established a fund for self-insurance related to workers’ compensation claims. Self-insurance is in
effect up to an individual stop loss amount of $500,000 per occurrence in the first year, $275,000 in the second year
and $175,000 per year thereafter. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the claim stop
loss amount up to $100,000,000. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon a
variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (LVMPD) Self-Funded Insurance

The LVMPD has established a self-insurance fund for general liabilities. Loss amounts of $25,000 or more require
approval of the LVMPD Fiscal Affairs Committee. Self-insurance is in effect for loss amounts up to $2,000,000 per
occurrence, accident, or loss. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the stop loss
amount up to $10,000,000. An independent claims administrator performs claims-handling procedures for traffic
claims. All other claims are administered through the LVMPD Risk Management Section. Incurred but not reported
claims have been accrued as a liability based upon a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.

LVMPD Self-Funded Industrial Insurance

The LVMPD has established a self-insurance fund to pay workers’ compensation claims. Self-insurance is in effect
up to an individual stop loss amount of $500,000 per occurrence in the first year, $275,000 in the second year, and
$175,000 each year thereafter. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the claim stop
loss amount up to $10,000,000. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon a
variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.

County Liability Insurance

The County has established a general liability self-insurance fund for losses up to a $25,000 per occurrence retention
limit. Losses in excess of this retention are covered by the County liability insurance pool fund. An independent
claims administrator performs all claims-handling procedures. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued
as a liability based upon a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.

County Liability Insurance Pool

The County has established a general liability insurance pool for the benefit of County funds. Self-insurance is in
effect for loss amounts over the $25,000 retention up to $2,000,000 per occurrence, accident, or loss.

Coverage from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the stop loss amount up to $10,000,000. An

independent claims administrator performs all claims-handling procedures. Incurred but not reported claims have
been accrued as a liability based upon a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Changes in Liability Amounts

Changes in the funds’ claims liability amounts for the past two years were:

Current-Year

Claims and
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
July 1, 2010 Estimates Payments June 30, 2011
Self-funded group insurance $ 21,191,508 $ 80,891,537 $ 79,218,346 $ 22,864,699
Clark County workers’

compensation 28,097,378 12,923,248 12,845,204 28,175,422

LVMPD self-funded insurance 12,323,134 5,743,580 5,622,679 12,444,035
LVMPD self-funded industrial

insurance 54,113,331 13,754,626 13,754,667 54,113,290

County liability insurance 5,634,888 841,374 808,208 5,668,054

County liability insurance pool 10,374,803 3,536,176 3,588,873 10,322,106

Total self-insurance funds $131,735,042 $117,690,541 $115,837,977  $133,587,606

The total liability at June 30, 2011, is included in the accounts payable line item in the government-wide financial
statements.

Current-Year

Claims and
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
July 1, 2009 Estimates Payments June 30,2010
Self-funded group insurance $ 19,950,135 $ 82,780,574 $ 81,539,201 $ 21,191,508
Clark County workers’

compensation 28,123,276 11,355,719 11,381,617 28,097,378

LVMPD self-funded insurance 10,196,453 7,173,567 5,046,886 12,323,134
LVMPD self-funded industrial

insurance 44,808,787 20,940,351 11,635,807 54,113,331

County liability insurance 5,642,855 1,132,858 1,140,825 5,634,888

County liability insurance pool 9,814,566 5,097,345 4.537.108 10,374,803

Total self-insurance funds $118,536,072  $128.480.414  $115,281,444 131 042
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Encumbrances

The County utilizes encumbrance accounting in its government funds. Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and
proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which a purchase order, contract, or other commitment is
issued. In general, unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. Open encumbrances at fiscal year end are
included in restricted, committed, or assigned fund balance, as appropriate. The following schedule outlines
significant encumbrances included in governmental fund balances:

Restricted Fund Committed Fund Assigned Fund

Major Funds Balance Balance Balance
General Fund $ - $ - $ -
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department - 5,371,045 -
Nonmajor Funds
Aggregate nonmajor funds 97,435,130 57,741,238 2,737,000

$ 97,435,130 $ 63,112,283 $ 2,737,000

LVCVA Bonds

In addition to the County general obligation bonds, the County is contingently liable on the Las Vegas Convention
and Visitors Authority (LVCVA) general obligation bonds, Series May 31, 2007, August 19, 2008, January 26,
2010, and December 8, 2011, in the amounts of $32,185,000, $25,555,000, 124,290,000 and $173,905,000
respectively. Although the County is contingently liable for the general obligation bonds of the LVCVA, in the
event of a default by the LVCVA, it is anticipated that additional ad valorem taxes would be levied to retire the
bonds. Therefore, the County’s exposure to this contingent liability is remote.

Grant Entitlement

The County is a participant in a number of federal and state-assisted programs. These programs are subject to
compliance audits by the grantors. The audits of these programs for fiscal year 2011 and certain earlier years have
not yet been completed. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable program requirements is not
completely established. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantors cannot be
determined at this time. The County believes it has adequately provided for potential liabilities, if any, which may
arise from the grantors’ audits.

Medicare and Medicaid Reimbursements

UMC’s Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for certain prior years are in various stages of review by third-party
intermediaries and have not been settled as a result of certain unresolved reimbursement issues. The County believes
it has adequately provided for any potential liabilities that may arise from the intermediaries’ audits.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Primary Government

Operating [ease Commitments

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for operating leases (with initial or remaining terms
in excess of one year) as of June 30, 2011:

Years ending June 30:

2012 $§ 23,883,528
2013 22,796,275
2014 22,511,772
2015 21,970,704
2016 19,828,512
2017-2021 94,370,754

Total minimum lease payments $205,361,545

The UMC enterprise fund also had future minimum rental commitments as of June 30, 2011, for noncancelable
operating leases for property and equipment as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2012 $ 8,767,130
2013 7,913,526
2014 5,074,639
2015 3,367,268
2016 2,194,042
Thereafter 3,550,355

Total $ 30,866,960

The rental expense of UMC for property and equipment was approximately $9,799,279 for the year ended June 30,
2011.

Rentals and Operating [eases

The Department of Aviation derives a substantial portion of its revenues from fees and charges to air carriers and
concessionaires. Charges to air carriers are generated from terminal building rentals, gate use fees, and landing fees
in accordance with the Lease, or provisions of the County’s annual ordinance. The Department of Aviation leases
land, building, and terminal space to concessionaires under operating leases that expire at various times through
2048. Under the terms of the agreements, concession fees are based principally on a percentage of the
concessionaires’ gross sales or a stated minimum annual guarantee, whichever is greater; and land and building rents
that are based on square footage rates. The Department of Aviation received $85,087,275 in FY 2011 and
$69,035,918 in FY 2010 for contingent rental payments in excess of stated annual minimum guarantees.
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Rentals and Operating Leases (Continued)

The following is a schedule of minimum future rentals receivable on non-cancelable operating leases (with initial or
remaining terms in excess of one year) as of June 30, 2011:

Years ending June 30:

2012 $ 193,028,538
2013 188,764,493
2014 181,845,133
2015 178,720,415
2916 67,182,104
Thereafter 238.981.691

Total minimum rents receivable $1,048,522,374

Discretely Presented Component Units

RTC:

Operating Lease Commitments

The following summarizes the current operating lease commitments for the RTC:

Monthly  Date Lease Date Lease

Lessor Rental Commenced Terminates
Live Work, LLC $112.168 01/05/08 01/04/48
Total $112,168

Rentals and Operating Leases

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for operating leases as of June 30, 2011:

Years ending June 30:

2012 $ 1,386,397
2013 1,449.093
2014 1,513,669
2015 1,559,079
2016 1,605,851
Thereafter 94,712,504

Total $102,226,593

The total rent expense for fiscal year 2011 was $1,346,017.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

RTC (Continued):
Litigation

There are various outstanding claims against the County for which a probability of loss exists with a cumulative
amount of approximately $2,500,000. An accrual for litigation losses has been provided in the governmental
activities column.

Other cases, some of which involve alleged civil rights violations, have been filed against the County. These cases

are in the discovery stage and no estimate of the probability or extent of possible losses can be determined at this
time.

JOINT VENTURES

Southern Nevada Water Authority

The Water District, a component unit (see Note 1), has a joint venture with the Southern Nevada Water Authority
(“SNWA”). The SNWA is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, created on July 25, 1991, by a cooperative
agreement between the Water District, the Big Bend Water District, the City of Boulder City, the City of Henderson,
the City of Las Vegas, the City of North Las Vegas, and the Reclamation District (the “Members”). SNWA was
created to secure additional supplies of water and effectively manage existing supplies of water on a regional basis
through the cooperative action of the Members.

The SNWA is governed by a seven-member board of directors composed of one director from each member agency.
The Water District is the operating agent for the SNWA; the General Manager of the Water District is the General
Manager of the SNWA; and the Director of Finance of the Water District is the Treasurer of the SNWA.

The SNWA has the power to periodically assess the Members directly for operating and capital costs and for the
satisfaction of any liabilities imposed against the SNWA. The Water District and other members do not have an
expressed claim to the resources of the SNWA except that, upon termination of the joint venture, any assets
remaining after payment of all obligations shall be returned to the contributing member. For this reason, the Water
District records capital contributions as an operating expense, or as noted below, in some instances as capital
projects.

In 1995, the SNWA approved agreements for the repayment of the cost of an additional expansion of the Southern
Nevada Water System (SNWS). The agreements required contributions from purveyor members, including the
Water District, benefiting from the expansion. In 1996, the Water District approved the collection of regional
connection charges, regional commodity charges, and regional reliability surcharges to fund these contributions. The
Water District records these charges as operating revenues, and contributions to the SNWA as operating expenses,
except for District funded capital projects. On a Water District funded capital project, no regional revenue is
collected, but a contribution to SNWA is still required, and it is charged to the capital project instead of operating
expenses. The Water District does not act as a collecting agency for the SNWA. If the regional revenue were not
collected, the Water District would still have the liability to the SNWA.
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JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Southern Nevada Water Authority (Continued)

The Water District operates the SNWS, a regional system consisting of a water treatment plant and pumping and
distribution facilities that supply water to the water purveyors in Southern Nevada for the SNWA.

During fiscal year 2011, the SNWA reimbursed the Water District $105.9 million (excluding funds advanced for
unbilled expenditures — see next paragraph) for expenditures made by the Water District on behalf of the SNWA.
For these and other costs of SNWA, including debt service, SNWA billed the Water District for its share based on
water delivered at a flat rate per acre-foot (wholesale delivery charge). The wholesale delivery charge is recorded as
a component of purchased water expense.

The contributions for fiscal year 2011 for the SNWS expansion totaled $34,671,234, and in fiscal year 2010 totaled
$15,702,502. Additionally, the Water District contributed $524,674 in fiscal year 2011 and in fiscal year 2010 to
SNWA to help fund a groundwater management program in the Las Vegas Valley. Total contributions to the SNWA
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, were $35,195,908 and in fiscal year 2010 were $16,227,176, and were
recorded as SNWA expense on the Water District’s financial statements.

Audited financial reports for fiscal year 2011 can be obtained by contacting:
Office of the Treasurer
Southern Nevada Water Authority
1001 South Valley View Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89153

Clean Water Coalition

The Reclamation District, a component unit (see Note 1) has a joint venture with the Clean Water Coalition (CWC).
In December 2009, the Systems Conveyance and Operations Program (SCOP) project was suspended until future
assessments of the necessity of the SCOP project could be completed. As of February 2010, the Reclamation
District’s Board of Trustees approved the termination of the CWC’s portion of the Reclamation District’s SDA
(connection) fees, and on January 25, 2011 the CWC Board terminated the collection of the CWC quarterly user fees
from the member agencies effective as of October 1,2010. On October 1, 2010 the Reclamation District reduced
their expenses by $2,740,307 when the three unpaid quarterly invoices from the CWC were reversed. The
Reclamation District was not obligated to repay these funds to the CWC or its customers; therefore on July 1, 2011,
the Reclamation District reduced its customer’s annual sewer service bill which in turn reduced the Reclamation
District’s sewer service revenue by $2,748,402.

On May 17, 2011, the Reclamation District’s Board of Trustees approved the reduction of the Reclamation District’s
previously approved sewer service rates to reflect the termination of CWC user fees. The annual sewer service rate
effective July 1, 2011 will be reduced by $6.81 per ERU for a total of $4,122,808. The annual sewer service rate
effective July 1, 2012 will be reduced by $6.79 per ERU for a total of $4,110,700.

On August 30, 2011 the CWC Board approved the termination of the SCOP project and the distribution of unspent
CWC funds, in the amount of $62 million, to the member agencies in accordance with their proportionate share of
contributions. The amount returned to the Reclamation District on September 23, 2011 was $31,830,800. On

September 6, 2011, the Reclamation District’s Board approved the distribution of $19,957,911 to the Reclamation

-112-



II1.

11.

12.

Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Clean Water Coalition (Continued)

District’s rate payers through sewer service credits and SDA refunds, and $11,872,888 will be returned to the
Reclamation District’s reserve cash account. The CWC’s Board has not terminated the CWC as an agency.

As stated above, the Reclamation District had invested in the capacity rights of the CWC joint venture SCOP project.
These capacity rights were considered an intangible asset with a definite useful life and with a value in the amount of
$32,800,740. As such, the asset would have been amortized over the useful life of the project once the project was
put into service. Since the SCOP project was terminated, the investment amount was reduced by the anticipated
refund from the CWC in the amount of $11,872,888. The investment balance of $20,927,853 was then expensed as
a loss on the intangible asset. The anticipated refund of $19,957,911 from CWC was listed on the Reclamation
District’s financials as a liability, as the amount will be refunded directly to the Reclamation District rate payers or
issued as a credit against rate payers annual sewer service bills.

Separate audited financial statements for the CWC are prepared annually and can be obtained by contacting the
Reclamation District’s Financial Services Manager.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Clark County, Nevada employees, with the exception of those of the Water District enterprise fund, are covered by
the State of Nevada Public Employees’ Retirement System (the “System”). The System was established on July 1,
1948, by the Legislature and is governed by the Public Employees’ Retirement Board whose seven members are
appointed by the Governor. All public employees who meet certain eligibility requirements participate in the
System, which is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Clark County, Nevada does not exercise
any control over the System. Nevada Revised Statute 286.110 states that: “Respective participating public
employers are not liable for any obligation of the System.”

Benefits, as required by statute, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at the time of retirement
and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months. Benefit payments to which
participants may be entitled under the System include pension benefits, disability benefits, and death benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for regular members and police and firemen are computed at 2.5 percent for service
credits earned prior to July 1, 2001, and 2.67 percent for service credit earned July 1, 2001, and thereafter, of average
compensation (36 consecutive months of highest compensation) for each accredited year of service prior to
retirement up to a maximum of 90 percent of the average compensation for employees who entered the System prior
to July 1, 1985, and 75 percent for those entering after that date. The System offers several alternatives to the
unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allows the retired employee to accept a reduced service
retirement allowance payable monthly during the employee’s life and various optional monthly payments to a named
beneficiary after the employee’s death. Regular members are eligible for full retirement benefits at age 65 with 5
years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. Police and firemen are
eligible for full retirement benefits with 5 years of service at age 65, with 10 years of service at age 55, at age 50
with 20 years of service, or at any age with 25 years of service.

Contribution rates are established by NRS 286.410. The statute provides for increases in odd-numbered years to an

actuarially determined rate sufficient to amortize the unfunded liability of the system to zero over a 30-year
amortization period. The County is obligated to contribute all amounts due under the System. The contribution
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RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)

rate for regular members, based on covered payroll, was 21.5 percent for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
and 20.5 percent for June 30, 2009. The contribution rate for police and firemen was 37.0 percent and for the years

ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and 33.5 percent for the year ended June 30, 2009.

The County’s contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $295,183,959,
$300,559,749, and $279,280,514, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

An annual report containing financial statements and required information for the System may be obtained by
writing to PERS, 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703-1599, or by calling (775) 687-4200.

Las Vegas Valley Water District Retirement Plan

The Water District enterprise fund has provided for employee retirement by participation in Social Security and
adoption of a supplementary defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees.

A. Plan Description

The Water District contributes to the Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan (the “Plan”), a single-
employer defined benefit pension trust fund established by the Water District to provide pension benefits solely
for the employees of the Water District. The Board of Trustees of the Plan, composed of the Water District’s

“board of directors, has the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the Plan and the
contribution requirements of the Water District and the employees. Water District employees are not required to
contribute to the Plan. Water District employees may, however, under certain conditions, purchase additional
years of service for eligibility and increased benefits. For the year ended, June 30, 2011, the contributions for
this purpose were $58,261; for the year ended June 30, 2010, the contributions were $172,445.

The Plan was amended effective February 15, 2005, to provide the following: (1) Increase the annual service
credit of 2 percent to 2.17 percent for years of service after July 1, 2001. (Service credit is the accumulation of
pension plan years while an employee was in paid status at the Water District.) (2) Change the benefit formula
to increase the calculation of highest average pay by approximately 10 percent as currently prescribed in the
Nevada Revised Statutes. (3) Add shift differential and standby pay to the total compensation counted toward
the pension benefit.

Other than cost of living adjustments, the Plan does not provide ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases nor
does it administer post-employment healthcare plans. The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

All Water District employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after attaining age 20 and completing six
months of employment. Subject to a maximum pension benefit, normally 60 percent of average monthly
compensation, Water District employees who retire at age 65 are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2 percent of their average monthly compensation multiplied by
the years of service prior to July 1, 2001, and 2.17 percent of their average monthly compensation multiplied for
the years of service after July 1, 2001.

For the purpose of calculating the pension benefit, average monthly compensation means the average of a
member’s 36 consecutive months of highest compensation, after excluding certain elements, times
approximately 110 percent, while participating in the Plan. For participants in the plan as of January 1, 2001,
benefits start to vest after three years of service with a 20 percent vested interest; after four years of service,
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Las Vegas Valley Water District Retirement Plan (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

40 percent; and after five years of service, 100 percent. New participants after January 1, 2001, start to vest at 5
years of service, at which time they are vested 100 percent. The Plan also provides for early retirement and pre-
retirement death benefits. The Plan is not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) of
1974, but is operated consistent with ERISA fiduciary requirements.

The Water District contributes amounts actuarially determined necessary to fund the Plan in order to pay
benefits when due and to provide an allowance sufficient to finance the administrative costs of the Plan.
Contributions cannot revert to or be revocable by the Water District or be used for any purpose other than the
exclusive benefit of the participants.

At June 30, 2011, and 2010, participants in the Plan consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Retirees in pay status with unpurchased benefits 231 200
Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits 315 299
Active employees
Fully vested 1,138 1,029
Partially vested - -
Nonvested 276 475
Total active employees 1.414 1,504
Total participants 1,960 2,003
Three-Year Trend Information
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
06/30/09 $27,262,106 100% § -
06/30/10 25,753,794 100 -
06/30/11 26,606,950 100 -

B. Supplemental Information

The schedule of employer contributions is included in the Required Supplementary Information section in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Las Vegas Valley Water District Retirement Plan (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

It is the policy of the Water District to pay Annual Required Contributions (ARC) when due; therefore, annual
pension cost and the ARC are the same and aggregated $26,606,950 for the year ended June 30, 2011, and
$25,753,794 for the year ended June 30, 2010. The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the ARC
are: (a) rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.50 percent per year compounded
annually, (b) individual salary increases of 5.25 percent per year (c) total payroll increases of 5.00 percent, (d)
inflation rate of 6.25%.

An actuarial valuation has been performed each plan year since February 1987.

The Plan uses the aggregate actuarial cost method. Because this method does not identify or separately amortize
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, information about the plan’s funded status and funding progress has been
prepared using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The information presented as required
supplementary information is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the
plan.

. Identification of Investments

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Investments at contract value:
Union Central Life Insurance Company $ 1,544,965 $ 1,508,708
New York Life Insurance Company 32,612,352 35.659.631
Total investments at contract value 34,157,317 37,168,339
Investments at fair value:
Alliance Capital Domestic Equity 77,218,761 61,031,521
Mellon Bank, Domestic Bond 71,595,108 51,868,948
Nevada State Bank, Money Market Fund 227,586 218,302
Total investments at fair value 149,041.455 113,118,771
Total investments $ 183,198,772 $150,287,110

. Valuation of Investments

Domestic equity and domestic bond amounts represent units of investments in aggregate indexed accounts.
These accounts and the money market account are stated at fair value, measured by the underlying market value
as reported by the managing institutions. Insurance contracts are Guaranteed Investment Contracts and pooled
accounts, stated at contract value as determined by the insurance companies in accordance with the terms of the
contracts, plus an estimated interest accrual for the pooled accounts. Excluded from the plan assets are annuities
purchased for retired employees or their beneficiaries from an insurance company rated at least A+ by A.M. Best
insurance rating company
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Las Vegas Valley Water District Retirement Plan (Continued)

F. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions
are recognized and received when due. Participants do not make contributions except under certain conditions
to voluntarily purchase additional years of service. Contributions are non-refundable. Benefits, which are
purchased insurance company annuities, are recognized and paid when due.

G. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 51.3 % funded. The actuarial accrued
liability was $322.9 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $165.5 million, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $157.4 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $119.7 million, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 131.5%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions for the District are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities. However, because fiscal year
2008 was a transition year for calculating the plan’s funded status and funding progress using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method, only three years are available for display. The reference to the schedule of
funding progress presented as RSI does not represent or imply incorporation of the schedule into the notes to the
basic financial statements.

H. Financial Statements

Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Assets:
Cash and investments:

with fiscal agent $ 183,198,772
Interest receivable 784,068

Total assets 1 2.840

Net Assets:

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $ 183,982,840
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12. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)

Las Vegas Valley Water District Retirement Plan (Continued)

H. Financial Statements (Continued)

Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

Additions:
Contributions:
Contributions from employer $ 26,606,950
Contributions from employees 58,261
Total contributions $ 26,665,211

Investment earnings:

Interest 1,494,409
Net increase in fair value of investments 21,712,979
Total investment earnings 23,207,388
Less investment expense (112.575)
Net investment earnings 23.094.813
Total additions 49,760,024
Deductions:
General and administrative 207,757
Benefit payments 17.262,277
Total deductions 17,470,034
Change in net assets ‘ 32,289,990
Net Assets:
Beginning of year 151,692,850
End of year $§ 183,982,840
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DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The County transfers sales, fuel, and various other taxes and fees deposited in the Master Transportation Plan special
revenue fund to the RTC, a discretely presented component unit. Transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, totaled $210,957,184. The balance payable from the Master Transportation Plan fund to the RTC as of June
30,2011, was $36,474,209.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Information

Clark County and the component units described in Footnote I contribute to five different defined benefit health
programs:

1. Clark County retiree health program (County) — the County plan is an agent, multiple-employer defined benefit
plan. Retirees may choose between the Clark County Self-Funded Group Medical and Dental Benefits Plan
(Self-Funded Plan) and a health maintenance organization (HMO) plan.

Public Employee Benefit Program (PEBP) — an agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit plan;

Clark County Firefighters Union Local 1908 Security Fund (Fire Plan) — a single-employer, defined benefit plan;
Las Vegas Metro Employee Benefit Trust (Metro Plan) — a single-employer, defined benefit plan; and

Las Vegas Police Protection Association Civilian Employees, Sierra Choice/HPN (Metro Civilian Plan) — a
single employer, defined benefit plan.

LW

Each plan provides medical, dental, and vision benefits to eligible active and retired employees and beneficiaries.
Except for the PEBP, benefit provisions are established and amended through negotiations between the respective
unions and the employers. PEBP benefit provisions are established by the Nevada State Legislature.

The Self-Funded Plan is included in the financial reporting entity, as described in the next section. The Public
Employee Benefit Plan, Clark County Firefighters Union Local 1908 Security Fund, and the Las Vegas Metro
Employee Benefit Trust issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required
supplementary information for those plans. Those reports may be obtained by writing or calling the plans at the
following addresses or numbers:

Public Employee Benefits Plan

901 South Stewart Street, Suite 101
Carson City, Nevada 89701

(800) 326-5496

Clark County Firefighters Union Local 1908 Security Fund
6200 W. Charleston Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89146

(702) 870-1908

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Employees
Health and Welfare Trust

700 E. Warm Springs Road, Suite 210

Las Vegas, NV 89119

(702) 269-2591
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Plan Information (Continued)

Sierra Choice/HPN

Las Vegas Police Protective Association Civilian Employees
9330 W. Lake Mead, Suite 100

Las Vegas, NV 89134

(702) 382-9121

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

For all plans other than the PEBP, contribution requirements of plan members and the employer are established and
may be amended through negotiations between the various unions and the governing bodies of the employers.

Clark County is required to pay the PEBP an explicit subsidy, based on years of service, for retirees who enroll in
this plan. In 2011, retirees were eligible for a minimum subsidy of $86 per month after 5 years of service with a
Nevada state or local government entity. The maximum subsidy of $473 is earned after 20 years of combined
service with any eligible entity. The subsidy is set by the State Legislature.

The annual OPEB cost for each program is calculated based on the annual required contribution to the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The County’s
annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for each program are as follows:
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost (Continued)

Contribution Rates:

County Plan members
annual required
contribution (ARC)

Interest on net OPEB
obligations

Adjustment to ARC

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB
obligation

Net OPEB obligation,
beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation,
end of year

Metro
County PEBP Fire Metro Civilian
Actuarially Set by State  Contractually ~ Contractually Contractually
determined, Legislature determined determined Determined
premium sharing
determined by
union contracts
$ 81,313,342 $ 7,400,847 $13,866,883 $44,376,050  $2,196,668
4,491,082 405,955 - 4,593,021 -
(6,567.068) (597.568) - (4.242,705) -
79,237,356 7,209,234 13,866,883 44,726,366 2,196,668
(7.947.782) (4.555.910) (2,757.173) (3.093.154) (145.348)
71,289,574 2,653,324 11,109,710 41,633,212 2,051,320
117,940,512 3.883.270 16,292.866 156.458.734 2,051,320
$ 189,230,086 $ 6,536,594 § 27,402,576 $198,091,946 $4,102,640

" The County is responsible for 100 percent of the net OPEB obligation for the Detention Center employees
covered under the Metro and Metro Civilian plans in the amount of $44,919,332. The remaining net OPEB
obligation of § 157,275,254 for the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (LVMPD), is jointly funded by
the County and the City of Las Vegas. The City currently funds 38.90 percent of the LVMPD and is liable for
$60,893,572 of the Metro net OPEB obligation. A receivable has been established in the government-wide
statement of net assets for the City’s portion.
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost (Continued)

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual cost contributed to the program, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2009, 2010, and 2011 were as follows:

Annual Percent of OPEB Net OPEB
Plan Year Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
County 06/30/2009 $ 45,137,935 14.1% $ 73,162,221
County 06/30/2010 51,088,752 12.4 117,940,512
County 06/30/2011 79,237,356 10.0 189,230,086
PEBP 06/30/2009 6,148,762 80.2 2,500,101
PEBP 06/30/2010 6,317,248 78.1 3,883,270
PEBP 06/30/2011 7,209,234 63.2 6,536,594
Fire 06/30/2009 7,965,942 23.1 10,168,582
Fire 06/30/2010 7,965,942 23.1 16,292,866
Fire 06/30/2011 13,866,883 19.9 27,402,576
Metro 06/30/2009 67,847,366 44 114,825,522
Metro 06/30/2010 44,726,366 6.9 156,458,734
Metro 06/30/2011 44,726,366 6.9 198,091,946
Metro Civilian 06/30/2010 2,196,668 6.6 2,051,320
Metro Civilian 06/30/2011 2,196,668 6.6 4,102,640
Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the plans as of the most recent actuarial valuation date was as follows:
Metro
County PEBP* Fire Metro Civilian

Actuarial accrued

liability (a) $ 693,803,547 $127,975,674 $ 138,226,725  $398,433,914 $ 14,554,697
Actuarial value of

plan assets (b) - - 6,541,552 - -
Unfunded actuarial

accrued liability

(funding excess) (a) — (b) 693,803,547 127,975,674 131,685,173 398,433,914 14,554,697
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0% 0% 4.7% 0% 0%
Covered payroll (c) 765,110,216 - 74,167,614 349,202,005 71,192,228
Unfunded actuarial

accrued liability

(funding excess) as a

percentage of

covered payroll (a) — (b)/(c) 90.7% N/A 177.6% 114.1% 20.4%

*  PEBP closed to new County participants as of November 1, 2008; therefore, covered payroll is zero.

-122-



1.

14.

Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plans and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision, and actual results are compared to past expectations.
Supplementary information will provide multi-year trend information that will show, in future years, whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plans (the plans as understood by the employer and plan
members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs
between the County and the plan members at this point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and
employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and
the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization
period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases

Healthcare inflation rate

Metro
County PEBP Fire Metro Civilian
07/01/10 07/01/10 07/01/10 06/30/10 06/30/10
Entry age Entry age Entry age Projected unit Projected unit
normal normal normal credit cost credit cost

Level dollar

30 years, open
No assets
in trust
4.0%
N/A

5-10% initial
5% ultimate

County Net Assets in Internal Service Fund

Level dollar

30 years, open
No assets
in trust
4.0%
N/A

5-10% initial
5% ultimate

Level dollar

30 years, open
Date of
valuation
4.0%
N/A

10.5% initial
4.5% ultimate

Level percent

30 years, open
No assets
in trust
4.0%
3.25%

8.25% initial

4.75% ultimate

Level percent

30 years, open
No assets
in trust
4.0%
3.25%

8.25% initial
4.75% ultimate

The County uses the Other Postemployment Benefits Reserve internal service fund to allocate OPEB costs to each
fund, based on employee count. Each fund incurs a charge for service from the Other Postemployment Benefit
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

County Net Assets in Internal Service Fund (Continued)

Reserve fund for their portion of the annual OPEB cost. As of June 30, 2011, the Other Postemployment Benefit
Reserve fund had $162,711,002 in cash and investments, and $79,919,165 in receivables that the County intends to
use for future OPEB costs for the net OPEB obligations of the County, PEBP, Fire and Detention portion of Metro
and Metro Civilian plans, which total $268,088,588 as of June 30, 2011. These assets cannot be included in the plan
assets considered in the OPEB funding schedules because they are not held in trust.

Agency Fund

The County established the Other Postemployment Benefits Agency Fund during fiscal year 2010 to comply with
governmental accounting standards regarding OPEB assets not held in trust. The beginning balance is equal to the
net OPEB obligation (NOO) as of June 30, 2010. Additions consist of the increase to NOO and deletions comprise
contributions paid during the fiscal year. The ending balance equals the NOO as of June 30, 2011.

Clark County Self-Funded Group Medical and Dental Benefits Plan

Clark County administers the Clark County Self-Funded Group Medical and Dental Benefits Plan, an agent,
multiple-employer defined benefit plan (the “Self-Funded Plan”). Participants of the Self-Funded Plan include Clark
County, University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Las Vegas Valley Water District, the Clark County
Water Reclamation District, the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority, the Regional Transportation
Commission of Southern Nevada, the Regional Flood Control District, and the Henderson Library District. The
Self-Funded Plan provides benefits for all full-time active employees of each participant entity effective the first day
of the month following two consecutive months of active employment, as well as for retired employees of the
entities. As of June 30, 2011, there were 7,725 employee members and 1,363 retired members enrolled in the Self-
Funded Plan, with 9,594 additional covered dependents. The Self-Funded Plan provides medical, dental, and vision
benefits. The Self-Funded Plan is governed by an interlocal agreement between each of the participant entities, and
all Self-Funded Plan benefit changes must be approved by the governing boards of these entities.

The Self-Funded Plan is not administered as a qualifying trust or equivalent arrangement. The Self-Funded Plan is
included in this CAFR as an internal service fund (the Self-Funded Group Insurance fund), as required by Nevada
Revised Statutes.

Basis of Accounting: The Plan is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member and
employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value as described in Note 1.

Retirement Health Account Plan

Effective November 1, 2005, Clark County established a retirement health account plan under the provisions of
Internal Revenue Code sections 105 and 106. The purpose of the plan is to provide employees a means to save for
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Retirement Health Account Plan (Continued)

the cost of health insurance premiums once they retire. Each participant maintains a separate account within the
plan. All contributions come from employees, with the exception that the County provides a 100 percent match up
to $480 annually for a maximum of five years to employees in eligible bargaining units. Retirees are reimbursed
from their individual accounts for their out-of-pocket health insurance premium costs as they submit documentation
of those costs. As of July 1, 2007, the plan was closed to new participants.

Contributions and Reserves

Premium rates for the Plan are established through the previously mentioned interlocal agreement. Each participant
entity, through its employee bargaining and budgeting processes, establishes the employer and employee
contribution sharing percentages. All administrative costs other than personnel costs are funded through premium
rates. Administrative personnel costs are funded through the County Liability Insurance Internal Service fund,
which provides general risk management administration. The County pays approximately 90 percent of premiums
for active employee coverage, an average of $8,117 per active employee for the year ended June 30, 2011. County
retirees pay the entire cost of their premium. Active and retiree loss experience is combined to create a single,
blended premium for each level of coverage (member only, member plus spouse, member plus children, or family),
as required by state law. This combining of loss experience creates an implicit subsidy to the retirees who would
otherwise pay higher premiums if their loss experience were rated separately.

Clark County Regional Flood Control District

The Clark County Regional Flood Control District (the “District”) uses the County and PEBP plans, with
contribution rates and actuarial assumptions identical to those previously described. The District’s annual OPEB
cost for the current year is as follows:

County PEBP
Annual required contribution (ARC) $164,292 $ 18,718
Interest on net OPEB obligation 9,286 891
Adjustment to annual required contribution (12.948) (1.243)
Annual OPEB cost 160,630 18,366
Contributions made (9.146) (16.820)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 151,484 (1,546)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 253.248 (6.704)
Net OPEB obligation (benefit), end of year $404,732 5,158
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Clark County Regional Flood Control District (Continued)

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual cost contributed to the program, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2009, 2010, and 2011 were as follows:

Annual Percent of OPEB Net OPEB

Plan Year Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation Benefit
County 06/30/2009 $64,883 5.3% $161,196
County 06/30/2010 95,478 3.6 253,248
County 06/30/2011 160,630 5.7 404,732
PEBP 06/30/2009 14,147 136.0 (5,094)
PEBP 06/30/2010 17,631 109.1 (6,704)
PEBP 06/30/2011 18,367 91.6 (5,158)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plans as of the most recent actuarial valuation date, July 1, 2010, was as follows:

_County PEBP*

Actuarial accrued liability (a) $ 1,339,836 $ 323,668
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

(funding excess) (a) — (b) 1,339,836 323,668
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0.0% 0.0%
Covered payroll (c) 2,373,056 -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

(funding excess) as a percentage

of covered payroll (a) — (b)/(c) 56.5% n/a

* PEBP closed to new District participants as of November 1, 2008; therefore, covered payroll is zero.

District Assets in Internal Service Fund

Clark County utilizes the Other Postemployment Benefit Reserve internal service fund to allocate OPEB costs to
each fund, based on employee count. Each fund incurs a charge for service from the Other Postemployment Benefit
Reserve fund for their portion of the annual OPEB cost. As of June 30, 2011, the Other Postemployment Benefit
Reserve fund had $420,567 in cash, investments, and receivables held on behalf of the District. The District intends
to use these assets for future OPEB funding. These assets cannot be included in the plan assets considered in the
OPEB funding schedules because they are not held in trust.

-126-



Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2011

III. DETAILED NOTES — ALL FUNDS (Continued)

14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada

The Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada (RTC) uses the County and PEBP plans, with
contribution rates and actuarial assumptions identical to those previously described. The RTC’s annual OPEB cost

for the current year is as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC)
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligations
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation (benefit), end of year

County PEBP
$ 1,750,697 $ 141,359
79,818 7,664
(268.813) (25.811)
1,561,702 123,212
(32.774) (92.600)
1,528,928 30,612
2,302,973 52,229
$ 3,831,901 $ 82841

The RTC’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual cost contributed to the program, and the net OPEB

obligation for 2009, 2010, and 2011 were as follows:

Annual

Plan Year Ended OPEB Cost
County 06/30/2009 $853,424
County 06/30/2010 882,970
County 06/30/2011 1,561,702
PEBP 06/30/2009 40,095
PEBP 06/30/2010 47,503
PEBP 06/30/2011 123,212

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Percent of OPEB Net OPEB
Cost Contributed Obligation
4.8% $1,461,201

4.7 2,302,973

2.1 3,831,901

89.4 40,571

75.5 52,229

75.2 82,841

The funded status of the plans as of the most recent actuarial valuation date, July 1, 2010, was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (a)

Actuarial value of plan assets (b)

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(funding excess) (a) — (b)

Funded ratio (b)/(a)

Covered payroll (c)

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(funding excess) as a percentage
of covered payroll (a) — (b)/(c)

County PEBP*
$ 11,562,585 $2,444,380
11,562,585 2,444,380
0.0% 0.0%
17,646,945 n/a
65.5% n/a
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)
Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada (Continued)

PEBP closed to new RTC participants as of November 1, 2008; therefore, covered payroll is zero.

RTC Assets in Internal Service Fund

Clark County utilizes the Other Employment Benefit Reserve internal service fund to allocate OPEB costs to each
fund based on employee count. Each fund incurs a charge for service from the Other Postemployment Benefit
Reserve fund for their portion of the annual OPEB cost. As of June 30, 2011, the Other Postemployment Benefit
Reserve fund had $220,332 in cash, investments, and interest receivable held on behalf of the RTC. The RTC
intends to use these assets for future OPEB funding. These assets cannot be included in the plan assets considered in
the OPEB funding schedules because they are not held in trust.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On August 3, 2011 The Department of Aviation refunded the series 2008 A-1 and 2008B-1 with the 2011B-1, and
2011B-2, respectively consisting of $200 million of AMT Adjustable Rate Airport System Subordinate Lien
Revenue Bonds. The letter of credit provider on the 2011B-1 is Citibank, N.A. The remarketing agent for the
2011B-1 is Citibank Global Markets Inc. The annual fees for the 2011B-1 series are 85 basis points. The letter of
credit for the 2011 B-2 is Royal Bank of Canada. The remarketing agent for 2011B-2 is RBC Capital Markets, LLC.
The annual fees for the 2011B-2 are 85 basis points. The 2011B-1 series bond matures in 2022 and the series
2011B-2 bond matures in 2022. The maturities of the 2011B-1 and 2011B-2 series are identical to the 2008A-1 and
2008B-1 maturities respectively.

On October 19, 2011 the Water District issued the following bonds: Series 2011 B, $129,650,000 general obligation
refunding bonds, additionally secured by SNWA pledged revenues, with a true interest cost of 4.29%; Series 2011C,
$267,815,000 general obligation refunding bonds, additionally secured by SNWA pledged revenues, with a true
interest cost of 4.04%; and Series 2011D, $78,680,000 general obligation refunding bonds with a true interest cost of

3.57%

The 2011B Bond proceeds advance and currently refund certain SNWA bond issues. A portion of the 2011C Bond
proceeds advance refund the $188,880,000 remaining balance of the Water District’s 2003B bonds. The 2011D
Bond proceeds advance refund $81,990,000 of the Water District’s 2003 A bonds.

See Note 11, Joint Ventures, for Water Reclamation District subsequent events.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

In November 2011, Clark County sold approximately $118.1 million in revenue refunding bonds on behalf of the
RTC. The RTC refunded the motor vehicle fuel tax revenue bond series 2003, which resulted in a cash flow interest
expense savings of approximately $10.6 million and a net present value savings of approximately $1.5 million. The
revenue refunding bonds mature in July 2023 with an overall interest rate ranging from 4.00 to 5.00% and true
interest cost, net of premium, of 2.79%. Interest and principal payments will begin in July 2012. All debt service
payments will be funded with Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax revenue. The bond proceeds can only be used for bond sale
expenses and refunding of existing bonds.

-128-



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GENERAL FUND

To account for resources traditionally associated
with governments which are not required to be
accounted for in another fund.



‘uoneuioju] Arejuswojddng paimnbay 01 sajou 398

01c111cLl $ LET1S0°18 $ GE1 99L7€81T S 866 ¥1LC01 $ 866 ¥1LC01 3
00¥‘SYE8IT 009°0Z9°€T OIETIITLI 01L°06¥'8¥1 01L06¥'8¥1
(060°P€T°9Y) LESOEYLS ST8VSI11 (TIL'SLL SY) (@IL'sLL'SY)
STS09€°91€°1 (882°¥TTTH) 965 LLEVIT T ¥88°109°96T°1 ¥88°109°96T 1
0S1°LT6°S0S (189°1L1°%) 68€°816°9TY 0L0°060°CEY 0L0°060°TEY
SLECEY0IS (L09TSO°LE) LOT'6SY'L8L PIS115vT8 PIS11SPT8
T16°0VEEIT 012°6€L1) $95°9S0°1 11 YLL'S6LTIT Ov8° 198 V11
LLLYTS61 @1v'T9¢1D) €0E V0L 11 S1L°999°C1 €8L°0TSTI
091°016°C6 (8€1°C8%) SEO°L8Y 6L €LL696°6L €LL696°6L
€E€ELLIE8 0L6V1€) 0S9°1LL 96 079980°L6 079°980°L6
9€8°60L V1 (6z¥'6TLD) €TS'LLITI 7S6°90¥'v1 7S6°90¥¥1
STL06TTIT (6£6°T6V°T1) 88T°8¥C°01T LTTIYLTTT TTESILTTT
8Y9°T0S O 1 (€L6°8YSL) ¥8TSITLYT LSTLIIPST 180°859PS1
$86°9L1°LT1 (9€5°T8€°1 D) 096v6L 811 96+ LLI0ET A A A TA
SEPOTI0LT T 6vT90T°S1 12¥2€0°9TT°1 TL1°9T8°01C°1 TL19Z8°01T 1
£96°L81°81€ (0TE915°91) 891°8€9°LYE 88LYS1¥9¢ 88L¥S1V9€
LY 8€6°156 69S°TTLIE £56°C6£°8L8 $8E 1LY 9V8 P8 1L9°0¢8
1LE678°0€ $88°68L°T 688°G8LY 000°000C 000°000C
ELOVYSY (€€8°191°¢) L91°8€8 000000t 000°000°Y
S6T1L9°ST (€€6°1L9) L908LOVT 000°0SLVT 000°0SLYT
061V1€°SL 6VLYSS 9L0°0¥¥°08 LTES886L LTES88°6L
£98°0€0°LST 881°8LT91 T9L°6¥¥°0LT LS TLTPST LS ILIYST
T0L°65€°01T 9€S 18L°01 9¢5°186°81T 000°00Z°80T 000°00Z°80C
8L£°888°LYE  $ LL6SST'S $ 09v°078°8LT  $ £8¥'P99°€LT  $ €8Y'¥99°€LT $
[emoy dUBLIBA [enoy ﬁowgm reurq 193png [ewsuQO
0102 1102

(010T ‘0 unf papus Jeak [eosy 9y} Jo} [emyor dAeIedWwOod Y )

110T ‘0€ aunf papus Ieak [easy Y} 10,
ey pue 1a8png - souejeg puny ut sauey) pue saimgipuadxy ‘sanuaAdy Jo ANPAYdS
puny [e1suan
epRAIN “AIuno) yrepd

Ieaf jo pug
IeaA jo SuruuiSog
:30ueeq pung
S9SN [eIOUBUY ISYIO pUB
sarmipuadxa (Jopun) 19A0 s321n0s SudurUy
I9YJ0 PUE SINUIAI JO (AOUSIOIJIP) SS99XH
sasn Suroueulj 1Yo pue sarmipuadxa [ejo],
Spunj 1ayjo 03 SIJSuel],
:sasn Suroueuyy 1oy10
saimipuadxa [e10],
saiyipuadxy [eIauan) 12y1Q
UOIBaIdY pue 2Imn)
SIBJIOM
UiresH
SHIOM Jl[qnd
Kyoges oriqng
[ewIpnf
JUSWILLISAOL) [BIdUIN)
:sarmpuadxy
$90IN0S SUIOUBUL I9YJO PUB SINUIAII [BIO],
Spuny Iayjo Wolj SI9Jsuel],
:$30IN0S Suroueuy Y1
SANUAII [£10],
Byo
159193U]
S2INJI9JI0] PUB SIUL]
SI0IAIS 10] SaSIeyD
ANUIAI [BIUSWUIIA0T1U]
syuad pue sasuddI]
saxe],
1SANUIANY

-129-



(ponunuoD)

-130-

80LVST'S T€S90€°1 7€5°908‘Y 000°00S°€ 000°00S°€ Lyio
L6V TEYO1 0TLPEL’S PP LELYT ¥2LT09°6 ¥TLT09°6 $99] SANRSIUNUPY
8S8°6¥8°Y (¥€0°0TS) 996°6LY"S 0000009 0000009 SUOISSTUILLIOD UOKOI[[0D XE) WOooy
€26°11S (6166£2) 180°019 000058 000°0S8 99} Suruoz pue Juip[ing
TTTLEL'S (S9¥°129°%) 6€5°8L9°9 000°00€°T 1 000°00€°T1 SUOISSTUILLOD JOSSISSY
099°6¢ €5L°9¢ €SLOY 00001 00001 s09) dey|
9LE°0S¥°0T ($7981S'h) SLE186°61 000°00S+C 000005+ $39J J0p1003Y
18Y°8€LT F11°0€9) 988°688°C 000°0ZS°€ 000°0TS‘E $39] I2[D
JUSWIUISAOSF [RIOUDD)
”wooEuw ._O.« mow.a:U
£98°0€0°LST 881°8LT 91 79L°6¥ 0LT VLS TLTHST VLS TLTPST ANUIAJI [BJUSWILISA0FIANUI [€10],
L] IY] (866 07) T00°6L 000001 000°001 LYo
91816 (0ZS‘9%) 081818 000°598 000598 JUSLISSISSE dANRNSIUNLPE HNOD
8EPV8E6YT ¥60°L8YST ¥60°L88T9T 000°00%°L¥C 000°00%°L¥T Xe) PajepI[osu0)
L¥6°0S1 (¥85°5) 1444l 000°0S1 000°0S1 sasudo1| Surures 9els
LTITYE (669°0L1) 10€°62€ 000°00S 000°00S sjueis ajelg
6LOELIE (080°¢€) PLEVETE PSYLET'E YSYLETE S9x®} JO N3] ut sjudwAed [eISpa]
9€6°616°C SL6°LEO'T S60°LS0°E 021°610°C 0ZI°610°C sjueid [e19pag
SONUIAL _SEUEEO>OM.-0~E~
T0L6S€°01T 9€S 18L°01 €S 186 81C 000°00Z°80C 000°00Z 80T spued pue sasuadl| [e10],
0687161 (698°111) TE1°888°1 000°000C 000°000°C Sasud01| dFeLLN
L96°T91°¥E £55°809°9 £55°801°0% 000°005°€€ 000°005°€€ spuLad pure sasusol| Jayl0
£9LV68°ST #6901 ¥¥6°901°5T 000°000°ST 000°000°ST yi0
9€8°682°L9 856°8€6°S 855 8EH VL 00000589 00000589 RISIRE]
1L1°8Y¥C 6V S8ET 6V S8S Y 000°002°C 000°002°C sen
:$99] asIyouelj
£49°100°9€ (P¥TT81°8) 9SL°LI8SE 000000 v¥ 000000 v¥ sosud01| Sumures Ajuno)
8€1°81C‘8 068°€T9 068°€T9°L 000°000°L 000°000°L $asuadI| Jonbr]
6T 1€H e SSHTIY'E SSYTIV'6T 000°000°9T 0000009 S3sUA0Y| ssaulsng
) sjruuad pue SasuadI]
8LE888°LYE LL6'SST'S 09t°078'8LT €87 799 €LT €87 #99°€LT soxe) [e10],
81€€C891 6£9°S9%'S S68°SSH'81 952066 C1 9577066 C1 S9X®) JUaNbuI[op UO 1S157UI 79 SALRUS]
090°s90°1€€  § (299°60¢) $ SOSP9E'09T  $ LTTPLI09T  $ LTTYLI09T  $ S9X®) WAIO[eA PY
SaxXe],
“wo==0>oy—
[enoy dueLIR A ey 1o8png [eul] 13png [eUISLIO
0102 1102

(0102 ‘o€ 2unf papua IeaA [eaSsY 9} 10] [enjoe dAneIedwoo |ipm)
110Z ‘0€ dunf papuod I1eak [edsy Y} 10,
[en3oy pue 103png - SIQJSUBI], PUB SINUIAIY JO S[NPIYOS
puny [e1ousn)
BpRAIN ‘A1Uno)) e



=troclolcT §  6VC90CSI 8§ 1cvee09ccl §  cLI9c80IcI §  <L19c80ICcT §
€96 L8181€ (0zZ€91591) 89%'8€9°LYE 88L VST V9E 88L VST ¥IE
TLY'8E6°1S6 69STTLIE £56°C6€°3L8 $8E1L9°9¥8 P8 1L9°9¥8
1LE6T8°0€ G88°68L°C G88°G8LY 000000 000000°C
€LIVP8Y (€€8191°¢) L91°8€8 000°000‘% 000°000%
S6Z°1L9°ST (€€6'1L9) £90°8L0¥C 000°0SLVT 000°0SLYT
LLSPBTSI (050°S840) 0S6 IV VI 000700691 000700691
817°984°01 LITEI8T L11°€99°6 000°0S8°L 000°058°L
061 VIESL 6VL¥SS 9,070+ 08 LTE S88°6L LTE S88°6L
98¢ 0L 0L - -
PLEE0T 108y 108401 000°001 000°001
780°L9S°T TIELY6T TIELYY'Y 000°00S°T 000°00S°1
60S°€€9°1 9L€°8T1 9L€°8T1‘T 000°000°T 000°000°1
$88°69¢°8 (86689¢°1) S09°€81°L £09°TSS‘8 £09°TSS°8
6LLTSST 968v91°1 9$8v9€°T 000°00Z°1 000°00T°1
0S91L9°L P8V 0EL ¥81°086°6 000°0ST°8 000°0ST°8
[emOy dUBLIBA [emOy jospng [eul 1o8png [eUISLIO
0102

(010T “0€ dunf papus Ieak [edsy Y] 10J [eryoe aaneredwod YIpm )

110T ‘0€ 2unf papus Ieak [eds1J 2y} 10
[enOY pue 128png - SISJSURL], PUB SINUIAIY JO A[NPIYdS

puny [e1ouan
BPRAIN “AIUno) Sred

$921n0S SurouRUL JOYIO PUB SINUIAII [EBIO],

Spunj I1ayjo Wolj sIoJsuel],
:$30.n0s Suroueuy oyl
SINUIASI [BIO],
Lo
15219)u]
S3IM)19}10] puE SIul} [BI0],
S}19}10] UNOD
Saulj YNo)
:S2IN}I9JI0] PUE SUL]
SIJ1AIIS 10 SaZreyd [e10],
Byo
UOBaI021 PUR I[N
[onuod [ewiuy
arejjom pue yi[esyq
SuusourSuyg
S3I0Mm JT[qng
BYo
S30IAIIS UO1)99301d 211,
Kyages o1jqng
_yo
$99J YI9[D
[erorpnf
:(panunuo))) SaVIAISS 10J SaSIey))
:(panunuo))) sonuoAdy

-131-



(ponunuoD)

189 VI € PL1°59) 00T LYS € YLETIOE YLECIOE
0L9°796 (9€1°99) SSOEI6 161696 161°696
101°CSL 8YcL 95‘9L8 $90°€08 #90°€08
016°669°1 (025°28) 66S°LSL1 611°0v8°1 611°0v8°1
961 0£9°€ (€9L1) 0T1'S89°¢ £88°669 € £88°669°¢€
€06 0v1 (L6v'6€) €S LTl 020°L91 020291
095°5%0°1 10L°98 EI9°ISI°l T16'990°1 T16790°1
£€0 VP T (L96°19) ¥86°S0t°T 1S6°L9Y°T 1S6°L9V°C
09V TZ9 ¥ (0€8°1€9) PP1°90T ¥ VL6 LESY ¥L6 LES Y
968°69¢ (608°0t¢€) 700°0€C 118°0LS T18°0LS
$86°S0T°1 ovE‘IL 0L6°00€°1 $29°62T°1 ¥79°6TC‘1
6LSIVIE (L9€°29¢€) TLISLYT 6€S°LE0°E 6€S°LE0°E
7696151 (SLL'1ST) 1¥2°060°1 910CHE | 910°CHE |
¥6L ¢l (O¥67¢Cl) yes vl oLy LT 0LV LT
1€299¢ (€€1°59) 0S1°L6T €87°79¢ €87°79¢
L9 I¥I‘T (969°€L1) L9S‘8LL £97°TS6 £97°TS6
8619.8°01 T99°LIE ] 96 91€° 11 70£°666 6 70€°66€ 8
6,0°099°01 08€SIE 1 08L°8L0°11 00%'€9L°6 00v°€91°8
1€L°CS ¥L9 608°9¢ SEI°9S SE1°9¢
88€°€91 809°1 SLET8T LI9L'6L1 LIL6LT
€T CYS (120°11) £90 €69 Y€1 ¥0L PEIYOL
S0681 (1¥8°S1) 6ST°L1 000€E 000°€€E
o11°6¥1 LL8Y S11°261 8€TL81 8T L1
80TVLE (con) 68L°€8Y 968°€8¥ 968°€8Y
YPLEEO Y (P6L°99%) HESEY 9€1'C6L Y L30V86 ¥
6S8°€TT (¥28°661) 800°C8T TE8718Y TERTIS
6£9°981°1 LOET 0€L°90T‘1 £TH V0T 1 LITTYT 1
9T €TTE (LLT697) $09°9€8°C 188°501°¢ $ 8€1°0€T°€E
[EUENZ UBLIBA [enRy 108png [euly 193png [eUISLO
0102 110

(010T ‘0€ dun[ papu2 1834 [eISY Y} 10J [enjor dAneIedwod Y )

110T ‘0€ dun{ papud Ieak [edSy ay} 10,
[enOY pue 128png - SI9JSuel], pue saxmIpuadxy Jo Impayds

pun, [eIoUD)

BPEASN ‘AJuno)) yrep)

IaInseal], [el0],
saijddns pue sa01A19S
sjjauaq dakojdwyg
safem pue saLre[eS
:10INSBA1],
Iojjondwo) [e10],
sarddns pue sad1AIdg
sjjauaq sakojdwg
sagem pue saLre[eS
:19[jondwo)
Joueulf [10],
sarjddns pue sao1AI0S
sjjauaq 99kojdwyg
safem pue soLre[eS
:90ueUL]
npny e10],
sa1jddns pue sao1AI0g
syjauaq sakojdwy
sa8em pue saLre[es
npny
[esuno)) pajutoddy Jo 391330 [®10L
sarjddns pue s301A19g
sjgauaq d9kojdwyg
sagem pue sauLre[eS
[osuno) pajuroddy jo 2910
ANS1aA1( JO IO [EI0L
sarjddns pue sao1ATeg
s1youaq 99Kojdwyg
safem pue saLe[eS
:A1s10A1( JO PO
IoFRUBA/UOISSILIUIOY) [B10],
sarpddns pue sad1AI0S
sujauaq 99kojdwyg
sagem pue saLre[eS
:Jo8RURIA/UOISSTUILLOD)
JUSWIUISAOL) [BISUSD)
sarmpuadxy

-132-



(panunuo))

¥S81T8°L (€ST17¢€6) £09°102°9 09L7SET'L 0L0V8T'L
096°€9C (s9s7TD) S¥L'89T 01€18¢ 01€12¢

800°920°C (sL6's61) TSS8SL'T LTS'YS6°1 78T°686°1
988°1€S°S (€19°52L) OIE VLY £76°668°Y 8LYELOS
YESTLI € (SL1°592) L80°STE'€ 792065 € LES18S°E
6S€7992 (9s+T12) TST SET 80L LYY €8L7SEY

€IY'Er6 9IFI1 S6¥°906 6L0°S68 6L0°S68

99LTI¥T (s€1v9) ovE€81T SLY'LYTT SL90STT
668°LLOE] (86T°8LF'1) €C9'SLE €] 126 €581 119°S0€¥1
S99°L0S°€ (F8L°L6T) €8CESLE L9T1 150y L9T1S9°€E
198918°C (128v€2) T19%S0°€ £EV°68T°C 8L9VSTE
ELEESLD (£69°st6) 879°L95°9 1TECIS°L 99L°66€°L
TLIYS € (0L6°88) 062 955°€ 09T S¥9°€ 09T SY9°E
0ST'ILT (Tsetsn) 807 0¥ 1 09L°S1T 09L°S1¢

786°€90°1 081°cy SL8LTI‘T S69v80°1 S69°780°1
0vL‘90€T (86L°95) L00'88C°C S08‘vPET S08“PPET
9€9°LE0 Y (99L.7CT0) €CL°666 € 63V cecC v 63V CCC v
SOT°661 (€9LY) L1€LTT 080C€T 080°CET

6L9961°1 96Z°C1 91ZTLT1 096°6ST°1 096°65T°1
TS81¥9°T (652°0€2) 061°005°C 6¥¥°0ELT 6vY0ELT
TL6'9SSST (€SLYSL) 890°L9S°ST 128°12€91 128°12€91
L8T196 OLTT¥1) TToEV0l 86LV3T°1 86LV81°1
LIV I81Y (1v2‘16) SE0'8LEY 9LT69¥ 9LT69% Y
89ZVI¥ 01 (9g€°TTs) L1¥°SY1°01 LYL L9901 LYL L9901
781°956'S (L6TvLY) 965°LET8 L9S086C1 £95°0€0°CT
TESEIP T FSTv€970) SIP6ve € 695 €88°S 695°€€6°S
19%°€81°1 (189°L£8) TESSYI‘l €12°986°1 €12°986°1
061°6S€‘€ (og1°1LT°1) 6¥9°6£8°¢€ S8LOII‘S S8LOIIS

—m30< ooﬂdtﬂ A —mao< uomﬁzm— _&E g ﬁuw_u:m _m..:uto
0102 110C

(panunuo))

(010T “0€ sunf papua Jeak [eds1y Ay 1oy [emoe dAleIedwod YPIM)
1102 ‘0€ 2unf papud Jeak [BoSI] 9y} IO
[emoy pue 108png - siojsuel ], pue sarmipuadxy Jo a[npayds
puny [e1auan
BPBASN ‘AIUno)) yrepD

Suruuelq aarsusyaidwo)) [e10],
sarjddns pue sad1Aleg
sjauaq 29kordwuyg
safem pue soLe[eS
:Sutuuelq aarsuayaidwo)
$90IN0S9Y UeWNY [B10],
sarjddns pue sao1AI0g
sHjauaq 23Kkojdwyg
saSem pue saLe[eS
:$301IN0SIY UeWINY
S9JIAIOS SANRISIUTUPY [B10],
sarjddns pue saoiAleg
sjauaq 9aKojdwyg
sagem pue soLe[es
1SI0IAISS SANRISIUTWIPY
31D B0,
sorjddns pue sao1AI0g
sijouaq 99Kordwyg
sa3em pue soLe[eS
ABD
I9pI029Y [B10],
sarjddns pue sa01A10g
sHjauaq 93Kordwy
saSem pue soLIe[eS
:19p1023Y
10Ss3ssy [e10],
so1jddns pue sas1a10g
sjauaq 2aKojdwyg
saSem pue saLe[eS
:10SSISSY
SuoI109[4 [e10],
sariddns pue sao1Aleg
sijouaq 93Kordwyg
safem pue saLre[es
:SuoNo9[g
:(PoNUPIUOD) JUSLIUISAOL) [BISUID)
((ponunuo))  sammipuadxyg

-133-



(panunuo))

TLTE91 SPS 065981 SY0°981 698°9L1
309°C1 9197) 01092 979'8¢ oSt 61
6818t S00°ST L6L'LY T6LTS T6LTS
SLYT01 8 11) £€8L°C6 LT9V01 LT9V01
91¥'12C €LS OV 965°0LT €20 VCT €20 ¥CT
€0T 6 (zors) %40 0SE €l 0SE€El
9€0°pT1 69€°9¢ 000°LLI 1€9°0T1 1€£9°0Z1
LLT‘88 (6897) €5€°L8 006 006
Y86 9L1°LT1 (9€S°Z8E 1) 096 V6L 811 96% LLT 0T Py ChT 8T1
YOTYLLYT (60295¢2) S€6LTT 6T YY1 ¥8S 1€ S98°SOP 1€
63506¥ - - - -
626°€ST01 (zo1°L6€°T) 90605501 800°876°T 1 6CL6T8°11
TSIYPTy (L6€y) €8¥°€88°S 088°L88°S 088°L88°S
PESS8L6 (01L°vS6) OvSE6L T 9ST8YLET 9STRYL €1
0.97059°9 (19z°9tt) €19°65€9 vL818L0 VL]IELD
LTI 9VE {eL'61) 06€00¥ L31°0CY L3T0LE
TYE008°1 (LsL'6€) STL‘898°1 78Y°806°1 784°806°1
10L°€0S Y (L0L 99¢€) 861980 SOT'ESH'y S0TESH'y
901°€C8Cl #91) #91) - -
£5€°90Y - - - -
T60vTT1 - - - -
806°176°C o1) #91) - -
€5L°0LT8 - - - -
19S VL 6¢6 01 305 V8 6LS €L 6LS €L
ehL'S (9%0°1) 6CE'S SLE9 SLEO
938°€T LEY'S L96°LT 0€€°CT 0£€°CT
€6y 8€€°9 TIT1S vL8 VY vL8 VY
—u30< dueLIe A _m_do< uowvzm _dE A uuwvzm ﬁ:_uﬁo
0102 1102

(panunuo))

(010Z ‘o€ dunf papua Jeak [essiy ay 10§ [enoe aaneredwod yip)

110 ‘0€ dunf papua Ieak [BOSI 3y} 10,
[endy pue 103png - sigjsuel], pue saImipuadxy Jo IMpPayos

pun, [eIsusn

BPRAIN “AIUno) Sre)

3]qEISUO)) UOSIOPUSH [BI0],
sarjddns pue sa91A19S
sjauaq 29kojdwyg
safem pue saLre[es
:3]qBISUO)) UOSIOPUIH
3|qeisuo) SulkpnQ [er0],
sarjddns pue sa31A198
sijauaq 99kojdwyg
safem pue saLre[eS
:91qeIsuo) SwApnO
‘[enrpuf
JUSWUISAOL) [BISUSD) [€10],
juswaSeuey Auadoid 8y [BI0L
Kepno [ende)
sa1rjddns pue sao1A19g
s)Jouaq 29kodwyg
sagem pue saLe[eS
Juawadeuey Apadoid 1eay
9sudOIT ssaulsng [e10],
sarjddns pue sao1AIag
sijouaq 23Kojdwyg
sa8em pue saure[eS
195ULOIT ssaulsng
K3ojouyoa ], uoneWIOJU] [BIOL,
Kepno ende)
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
sjyauaq d9kojdwyg
safem pue saLre[es
:A8ojouyda ], uoyeuLIOJU]
[rouno) asnoySuLrea|) §6-V [e10L
sarpddns pue sao1A19S
suyauaq 23kojdwyg
sagem pue saure[eS
:[1ouno)) asnoySuLIes[) §6-V
:(panunuo))) JUSWILIIAOL) [BISUID
((panunuo))  samipuadxyg

-134-



(ponunuo))

662 6CL 1SV91 STO'LIL YLSOSL YLS 1SL
L0TT6 (982°¢) £0€°€6 68586 68566
YTy 961 669°8C €87°€TT ¥85v61 ¥8Sv61
899°0¥¥ (296°9) 6£¥°0SY 10¥°LSY 10V°LSY
6V6'SEY 61 (PET8ETT) 79¢°€99°81 961 108°61 961 98L°61
S8T'6Y9 (reseco) 918°L€9 0S€ 198 0S€9%8
SEV'669°S L85°€81 081v96°S £65°08L°S £65°08L°S
6TTL80ET (£81°860°1) 99€°190°C1 €5S6S1°E1 €5S6ST1°E1
635 308°0C (¥58°89¢) LYS'SYL0T 10V v1€1C 100°S9€°1C
L9T91T°€E (00%°506) €6 88Y°C TEEV6E € 8T8 TILE
S0ST06'Y LTS 90¥ L6LOES'S 0LTYTI'S T09°LOT°S
L1868LTT (186°69) 818°STLTI 66L°S6LT1 1LSYPSTI
16€CH9°01 (65t'816) 1SST1E9°T1 010°0SSCI 0169€SCI
09T ¥EE (1vv'ote) PER6IC T SLT 091 [SAVATH!
$90%95°C (#L8°C2) $20°960°€ 868°811°¢ 868811°C
991v¥L 9 (#1°585) €69°S1Z°L LE8°008°L LES008°L
18TVSS'1 (8¥6°209) TSOLYY1 000°0S0°C 00070S0C
18TVSS1 (8¥6¢09) TSO'LYY 1 0007050C 0007050
098765y 8¢ (911°191°7) €L9°ESLTLE 63L716°6€ 63LV166€
- - LYL'8€ LYL'8€ -
ILOTIET (6€L°000) 808°681°1 LYS06€°1 Y6T°6TH°1
TSTYE6'6 (L09°152) 6v6°801°01 955°099°01 95509901
LE6°60T LT (0LL°80LT) 691°911°9T 6€6VT8°LT 6€6YT8°LT
SLT'S81 7618 Y6t L61 70€ 681 T0€°681
€10°ST 06L°1) 018°St 009°LT 00992
£68°SS 78¢€°6 1LY°99 680°LS 680°8S
69€401 009 €1T°501 €19v01 €19°%01
[enoy ouRLIB A ey 198png [eury 18png [eulsL)
0102 110

(panunuo))

(010T “0€ dunf papus Ieak [eds1y dY3 10} [enjoe daneredwod yIp)
110T ‘0€ dunf papus Ieak [eosy ayj 10,
[emoV pue 393png - sIdJsuel], pue sarmipuadxy Jo INpayos

puny [eIsusn

BpeASN ‘AIUno)) yIe|)

uonn|osay ndsi( SANRWA[Y [BI0],
sa1jddns pue sao1alag
sHjauaq 29kojdwyg
safem pue soLe[eS
uonnjosay andsi(] ANBWIAY
HNOD 341 Jo HI3[D [BI0],
sarjddns pue sao1A19S
s)jausq dakordwg
saSem pue saLe[eS
1UN0D) Y} JO JI3D
[BUIULID/IALY [BI0,
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
s1ouaq d9kojdwrg
saem pue saLe[eS
[BUIWILID/IALY
unop Ajrure] [eor,
sa1jddns pue sao1A10g
sjauaq 29Kojdwyg
saSem pue saLe[eS
moD Ajure,y
599, [e397/SSowl M [EI0],
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
:599,] [e39/ssowIp
Kauiopy 101Is1( [B10],
Kepno fende)
sarjddns pue sao1A10S
sjauaq sakojduyg
safem pue soLe[eS
:Kaurony 101IsIQ
31qeIsuo)) se3oA Se YHON [e10],
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
s)youaq 2akojduyg
safem pue saue[eS
:3]qeISU0)) SES9A SBT YHON
{(panunuo)) [ewipnf
((ponunuo))  samgrpuadxyg

-135-



(panunuo))

9T 8SEC (00t'8L) 12€61SC 12L°L6S T 12L°L6ST
Y0161 [CI3444) ISLEIT L81°9€T L81°9¢€T
S16°8LS 609°1€ 6v1°689 0vSLS9 ovs‘LS9
LOYVL8S T (€L5°L8) 1TY'919°1 ¥66°€0L°1 ¥66°€0L°1
8L0°C06 ¢ (295°¢11) ¥79°C16'¢C 981°920°¢ 981°920°¢
¥7S 0TE (S12°652) L1176 TEE6VE TEE6bE
66€09L 86S°€T1 TEL006 YEILLL YEILLL
SSI°1T8°1 $S0°81 SLLLT6T 0TL668°1 07L°668°1
LSLTL8YT (SESPI) €TE6Y9C 868°€99°C 868°€99°C
TIvest L1Tvs) L8E V91 ¥09°81¢ ¥09°81C
020°€S9 968°0% TLO'S9L OLIVTL 9L1VTL
STE189°1 wicn $98°61L°1 8L0°ITL 1 8LO°TTL T
0€6 L9T L1 (11+'68L) £08°S6L°L1 ¥17°585 81 VILYES 81
87606£¢C (L81°8%1) LOY01¥C ¥65°85S°C ¥60°80S T
9L00€ Y Sh9°sTT 1TS°LL8 Y 9L8° 1S9y 9.8°1S9‘}
96Z°9LS°01 (698°998) SL8°L0S 01 YL YLE TT PrLYLETT
1€6C0C (19L°6) 6 v0T 01CYIT 017681
1€6 20T (19L%6) 6vv v0T 01TYIT 01Z°681
989°CSP I (zer €5¢€) 889°CIE | 021°999°[ 0292991
€T €Tl (6LS°12€) 0L9°1€0°1 6vC €SI 6VLYSE
TS001 9601 TEO0 111 980001 980°001
860°62C (66L°Ch) 986°691 S8LTIT S8LTIT
¥98°€IC € (668°997) 69L°6VT € $79915°€ ¥79°915°¢
0097CLE (S9L°6€7) SEYEST 00T°¢6Y 00Z°¢6V
Y01°T8L €61°6€ 818°¢88 ST9v¥8 ST9'vP8
091°650°C (£82°99) 91STIIT 66L°8L1‘T 66L8LI‘T
—&ao< ooqmtd A _mao< aumﬁzm —.QE g uuu_uzm— —ac.&muo
0102 110C

(panuguo))

(010T ‘0€ sunf papus IeaA [BOSI Y3 JOJ [enide dAneIedwod P )
1102 ‘0€ 2unf papud Ieak [eosy 2y} 10,
[emoy pue 3o3png - sI9jsuel], pue saimipuadxy JO I[npayds
puny [eIoUdD)
BPRAJN ‘A1Uno) yrep)

1Nno) donsnf SWAPNQ [BI0L
sa1jddns pue sa01A198
sjauaq 29kojduyg
safem pue saure[es
1uno) ousnf SwApnQ
UNoY adusnf seFaA Se] YUON [eI0],
sarjddns pue sad1a10g
syyauaq sakodwrg
safem pue saurejeS
:1no)) aousny seSaA SeT YHON
HNOY) 221ISN[ UOSISPUIH [€10],
sarjddns pue sao1a10g
sijouaq 93kojdwyg
sagem pue saLe[eS
1N0D) 01SN[ UOSIIPUIH
unoD dusny segoA se [e10],
sarjddns pue saoialeg
sijauaq a3kojdug
safem pue saLre[es
1noY) adusny seSaA se]
Amf puep elof,
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
‘Amf puein
S991A19S AIng UNo)) [810],
sarddns pue sao1Aleg
sjyauaq aakojdwyg
saem pue saLre[es
:S39IAIAS AInf Uno)
1apuaja( d1qnq [eroads [ero],
sa1jddns pue sad1A19g
siyauaq d9kojdwyg
safem pue saLre[es
:I9pURJa(J o1qng [eroads
‘(panunuo)) rerdipng
((ponupuo))  saxmrpuadxyg

-136-



(panunuo))

709°70T°C (1€5°TvE) P91°611°C S69°19%v ¢ S69°19v'C
S6€ S8 (L86°9¢€1) €50°9L 0r0°€1T 0¥0°€1T
19%°0%9 (660°1¥) 0r9°1¥9 6€L°T89 6€L°T89
OvL9LY 1 (St'v91) 1LY 10V°1 9166951 9166951
80V 6L1 (TLT'IS) €12°02C S8E1LT $8€°99C
80 6L1 (TL1'1S) €12°0¢C S8EILT $8€°99¢
861 L66 0€1 (9€9°6¥L°L) S0°9v6 6C1 889669 LE1 €8LYTL'LE]
LIT°09T°L (FEEOLT'T) €SL°66T L L80°0LY'8 8€°T0Y'8
LIT¥8S 0P yTTisiy SI¥'S91°9p 161°0SL'SY 161°0SL Sy
PITEST E8 (925v66°9) ¥88°081°9L 01+'SLY €8 012TLS €8
9G€°L61 (086'127) 150°C61 1€0¥IC 1€0'v1T
L81 (£88°1) LI 000°S 000°S
8S¥°0T 118°€ [44%%4 1€5°61 1£5°61
TIL°9L1 (806°07) 765891 005°681 005681
879705 91 (€L6'8VS L) 8T 8IT LY LSTLIYYST 180°859'vS1
961°€8Y'1 9L TLE 6091 967 609'1 96L°659°'1
6LL6LE (290°9¢) 6L8°LTY 176 €9% Iy vis
$90°61¢€ S1S9p 1€9°89¢ 911°CTE 911°TTE
TSEP8L (LLgon) 798°T18 6€T°€T8 6£CT°€T8
81 LE€6 CC (€¥€°509) S¥0°T0T €T 88¢ L08' €T 88€ L08°€C
616S€0°1 LTS61) 869°626 TL6VTI'] Lo vel'l
092°908°S $65°TTT ¥9981%°9 690°961°9 690°961°9
697°S60°91 (#99°C€9) £89°¢S8°S1 LYE°98Y°91 LYE°98Y°91

[emoy OUBLIBA ey 1o8png [eul] je8png [euIsLO

0102 110¢

(penunuo))

(010 ‘0€ unf papusd Ieak [easyy Y} 10j [enyoe daneredwod yipm)

110T ‘0€ dun[ papua Ieak [e9syy oy} Jo]
[enOY pue 3o8png - SI3jsuel], pue saInpuadxy Jo S[npayds

pun, [eIousD

BpRASN ‘A3uno)) ye)

uelpIenf orqn{ [e10],
sarjddns pue sa01AI0g
sjouaq daKojdwyg
safem pue saLre[es
‘ueipreng stqng
20UR[NqUIY PUE 311, I93JUN[OA [€I0],
saijddns pue sa01A19S
:90UR[NQUIY PUB 311, J9AJUNJOA
jusunreda(g 211, [BI0L
sarjddns pue sao1Aleg
sijouaq s9kordwyg
safem pue saLre[es
Juaunreda(g a1
JULSYS 913 Jo 93O Te10L
sarddns pue sa01AI9S
sijauaq sakojdug
sagem pue soLe[eS
JJHLYS 341 Jo 04O
:Kayes d1qng
[eIoIpn[ [e10],
191U 321SNf PoOYIOqUSIaN [€10],
sa1jddns pue sao1AI0g
s)jauaq sakojdwg
saSem pue soLe[eS
:19)u9)) 201sN[ pooyIoqySION
Iapusja( dHqnd [e10L
sarjddns pue saoialeg
sjjausq d9Kkojdwyg
sadem pue saLre[es
:I9pudja(g dqnd
{(penunuo)) reripng
((ponunuo))  saimyipuadxyg

-137-



(panunuo))

9¢8°60L 71 (6T¥'6TL1) €CSLLITI 756 90V ¥1 756 90V v1
$68°609°1 (Is¥'62¢) Ve LYT SLLTOLS'T SLLOLS'T
TE9'Y8S‘E (Lo¥ 06€) LYL'EEE’E PSIvTLE PSIvTLE
60€°S15°6 (1£5600°1) TS¥'960°8 €20°901°6 €20°901°6
STL06CCIT (66 C6v Cl) 88T 8¥C01¢ LTTIVLTIT TTES9LTIT
0TS €L8°0€ (TrevILT) 80%°LSL'8T 0SLILY 0€ 0SLILY 0€
- (919°9%) ¥88°9¢ 005°€8 -
€IE°€TTY (85T°TS¢E) IT1°011°C 69€T9¥C 900°T€ST
L9Y'899°L 6vC0v 9€0°8L1‘8 L8LLETS 0S9°ISI‘8
OvL 18681 (LiLsser) LLETEY'8T ¥60°88L°61 ¥60°88L°61
09270581V (015°691°C) S £88°Th 7S0°€S0°SY 750°€S0°SP
Yy CLY € (1zs8yT'1) 66L°979°¢€ 02ESL8 Y 0Z€°SL8Y
616T81°TI (659°02¢€) 100°€8T°€1 099°€09°€1 099°€09°€1
868V6LST (0££°009) TYL'EL6'ST TLOYLS 9T TLO'YLS 9T
£88°200°S (Zye19¢€) £€8°651'S SLTIZS'S SLTITS'S
90€°CE8 (s¥ez61) $S0°0S8 00YTH0'1 00Y ¢0°1
6EY°SO1°T (6¥6) $9€°00Z°1 €IE 1021 €IET0T T
8€1°0L0°E (8%0°891) yI¥601°C OV LLT'E OV LLT'E
86186 [CI{a)) SZ0'0L6 1642501 1S4°CS0°1
08819 (81¢°L¢) TLS'89 0687501 0687501
£EV'861 90091 LTO‘0ET 120%1T 120%1T
S88°1TL F11°19) 9TV 1LY 0PS‘TEL 0bSTEL

_N30< ooﬂ.mtd A _w30< aowvzm— _ME g uom_u:m— _&Ewto

010T 110¢C

(panunuo))

(0102 ‘0€ dunf papud Ieak [eosy Y} 10] [enjoe sAneredwod Y )

110T “0€ dunf papus Ieak [eosyy oy} 104
[emoy pue 193png - s19Jsuel], pue sainjipuadxy Jo a[npayos

puny [eI2uan

BPRAIN ‘AJuno)) JIe|d

S}I0M ONqnd [e10L
sa1jddns pue saoialog
sjjauaq 99kojdwyg
saem pue saLre[eS
SHOM J1qnd
‘SHOM dliqnd
Ayages o1qnd (@0l
SIOIAIAS A[Ture] [e10],
Kepno [ende)
sarjddns pue sao1A10g
s1gauaq 29Kkodwg
sagem pue saure[eS
:SIOIAIRS A[rure ]
201ISN[ J[IUAN[ [€10],
sarjddns pue sas1a10§
sijauaq 23Kkojdwyg
safem pue saure[eS
:901)SN{ S[IUIANS
12U0I0D) [BI0],
sarddns pue s301A10g
s1Jauaq dakojdwg
sagem pue saLre[eS
:19U0I0D)
10jeNSUIUPY dliqnd [e10L,
sariddns pue sao1AI0g
sijauaq 99kojdwyg
safem pue soLe[eS
:J0JRNSIUTWIPY d1jqnd
‘(panunuo)) Ajayes dtjqng
((ponunuo))  samipuadxyg

-138-



uoneuuojuy Arejuowajddng palinbay] 03 sajou 998

TGCS09c9IE T §  (88Cvecey) § 965 LLEwICT § 7881 Tl “$88°T0995C T $
0S1°LT6 SOS (189°1LT°S) 68€'816 971 0L0°060°CEY 0L0°060°CEY
SLECEY 018 (L09°TS0°LE) LOT 65V L8L P18 115¥28 Y18 11S7T8
TI60VE €11 (01T°6€L°T) ¥959S0° 111 YLL'S6LTIT 0v8 198°v11
STSTY6 vT - 9¥8°90¥ 1T 9¥8°90¥ 1T 94890 17
9S1°9%T°C (660°SLL) 198°01+°C 096°S81°¢ 096°585‘¢€
£90°061°€T (s86°L) L10°109°0% 700°609°9% 700°600°6¥
016°565°0T (192°1%) 6€7°988°V1 00S°LT6 Y1 00S°LTT8
T6€TE0Y (439 L91°816°C 10L°816°€ LLSLTT Y
8L9°96€ V1 - - - -
699°TSL ($0€£°68S) 9€¥°0SS OPL'6ET°] 000°T¥T‘1
LST°8€6°1 (08¢°681) 0T1°6€1 005°8T€ 00S°821°C
8S6°1¥T°€E (L€8°L9) 889°€00°€ STSILOE SS1°9TT'E
Y0 v00°81 (018°L9) 061°0v1°81 000°80C°81 000°808°1¢
LLLYT861 (C1vc9c1) £0E 0E 11 S1L999°C1 €8L°0TSTI
0v6 0v8°C (662°9¢Y) VISYLL €I8°01C 1 T€8°9TT1
Y06°€TLY (169°921) Sy8'sEI‘e 9¢£6°79T°¢ eYTT'E
£€6°6STC1 (zTv'66L) r6°€6€°L 99¢°€61°8 6016908
091°016 26 (8€1°Z8Y) SE9°L8Y 6L €LL°696 6L €LL°696 6L
189%60°C8 (821°16C°1) 9L9°€1L'89 #0800 0L 6£8°1€L°69
€E8LLIE 066308 ¥L086€°€E #80°685°C $90°59L°T
9Y9°LEIL - S88°SLEL G88°SLEL 698°TLY'L
€ECLLYES (0L6V1€) 0S91LL796 029980°L6 079°980°L6
SOL'SL6T (0L6°€1€) 0€09€LC 00070S0°€ 000°0S0°€
SOL'SL6C (0L6°¢1€) 0£0°9€LC 000°0S0°€ 00070S0°€
891008 (000°1) 029°5€0'+6 0299€0 76 0299€0'v6
891008 (000°1) 029°5€0'46 0299€0¥6 029°9€0'¥6

[emoy dUBLI A [emoy 198png [eur 198png [eUISLIO
0102
(ponunuo))

(010T ‘0 dunf papud Jeak [eosty Y 10§ [enyoe daneredwod Y )

110T ‘0€ dunf papud Ieak [edSIJ oY} 0]

[enoy pue 193png - sI9Jsuel], pue saimipuadxg Jo anpayds

puny [eI2UID
BPBASN ‘AIUno)) yre|D

SI9JSueI) pue SaIMIpuadxa [e10],
Spunj Jayjo 03 SI9Jsuel],
samrpuadxa [e30],
saImjipuadxy [e19usD) YO [€10],
suonnqLyuo)
SI0IAIS [euolssajoid pue suonestignd
S98IBYD 901A19S [BUIAU]
sam}ipuadxa pue Spunjai SNOSUB[[IISIA
Spuoq [BIOIJJO PUR IdUBINSU]
S10B1JUOD JOUBUIUIBIA]
SJUSLISSISSE JALBLSIUNLIPY
juswadedal fende)
[e3ua1 Surping
saumN
:samyrpuadxy [e19uen Y10
Uuone2I09y pue 1N [e10L
sarjddns pue sao1AI9S
sigauaq daKkordwyg
sa3em pue soLe[eS
:UOIBRIOY pUR AINIM)
SIEJ[9M [B10L
sarjddns pue sao1AI9S
sjyauaq dakojdwg
safem pue saure[es
DIBJ[OM
Yi[esH [e10L
are)) [eoIpaJA AduaSiowy [e10],
sa1jddns pue sao1A10g
918D [BIIPAIN AdudaSiowyg
OUBHIUPY WO0Y Adusdiowy [ejo],
sarjddns pue saoialog
120UBPIWPY Wo0Y Aduadiowyg
‘yiresH
((ponunuo))  saxmrpuadxyg

-139-



€15°186'6S€  § - S 8LEITTILL  § SE1°99L°¢81 S
108'871°98¢ E 16¥°L1E 1T OIE TITZLI
(887 1¥°97) - (£11960°8€) ST8PSO11
(L16°S0L°L6T) - (966'STY'817) (126'6LT'6L)
(S06'909°LYE) (9L0'v6£'€8D) (265°280"v01) (68£'816°9T¥)
886°006°6¥ 9L0'V6E €8P 965'959'S81 89b'8€9°LYS
629'V97° 1.7 - £88'67£'081 oL vE6°06
P60°EIL L8] - L88°EST00¥ LOT'6SY"LBL
160° 1€V - T61'L0€ 668°€71
$99°7€6°011 - - $99°7€6'011
669°STE 11 - 96£'12 £0E'Y0ET 1
SEOLBY'6L - - SE9'L8Y'6L
0S9'1LL°96 - - 0S9°1LL96
900°LL9°T0T - £8Y°666'681 £2S°LLYTI
P68°161°v1¥ - 909°€¥6°€0T 887°84C01C
0TL 1981 - 9EVEYL 8T SII'LY]
PELECO VT - YLL'8ET'S 096'V6L°811
€TLLLG'SSY' ] - 0LL°€8S"08S £56°€6£°8L8
YLTTYT9 - 68€°95H"1 $88'S8L'Y
090°0£6°€ - £68'160°€ L91'8¢€8
L90°8L0'VT - - L90'8LOVT
£TH'86£'06 - LYE'8S6'6 9L0°0¥Y 08
016299919 - SYI‘E1Z'9LE T9L6¥¥0LT
0£P'£06'9€T . v68°126°L1 9£5°186'81C
6SSTIL'OSY  § - $ 660°TY6 1LT  $ 09¢'078'8LZ §
siseg suoneuwig spunyj panoday siseq Aieaapng
[enI0dY PayIpPOA Ajrewayug puny [esouan

puny [eiousn)

110T *0¢ aunf papug Ieax 3y 104
Joueeg punyj ui safuey)) pue ‘samypuadxy ‘Sonudady JO USRS

1834 jo pug
12k Jo BuiuuiSog
:90ueRq pUng

saouejeq punj ui saBueyo 19N

(sasn) saoanos Suidueuly Joy)o [e10L

Spunj 15Y10 0} Siajsuel]
SpUny 3410 WOLJ SIJSueL]
:(sasn) s30unos Suidueuy 1BYO

saimipuadxa 12A0
sanipuadxa [el0]

S3ANUDARL JO $SIXYT

1s2.101u]
fedioung

19014408 199

sAepino fende)

sainyipuadx jesouss 1syio
UOIB31931 PUB 31NN

oM
yieoH
Suom d1gng
f1ages atygng
lewoipnf

JUDWIUIIAOT [BISUID)

quaLnD
:sanipuadxy
SINUSAJI [BIOL
Yo
152433u]

$21N)19}10§ pue SauL]
S201A13S 10J SaS1ey)
SNUSA3I [BIUSUILISAOT 1]
syuad pue sasusdry
SJUALSSISSE [e1oadg

(siseq {enJOdY PIYIPOJN) pung [BJouan) 3y} 0] (Siseq AleieSpng) puny [eIOUID) JO UONBI{IGU0INY

A&uno) jiep)

SoxE],
1SINUIAYY

-140-



(panupuoD)

-141-

TI6ELY'Y $ - $ €2T $ $69v69 $ - $ v65°663°8Y  $ Teaf jo pug
¥81°V68°S - - 700°09L 98V°6LL 6T 861°v50°Sy Teaf jo Suruuiog
“oocd_&n ﬁ:: g
(cLzoTy'n) - 44 (Logs9) (98%°6LL°6T) 96€°S¥8°C sasn SurdueuY 1910
pue saxnipuadxa (Jopun) 19A0 S321n0s SurdueUl
ISY)0 pUB SINUIAII JO (ASUSIOYIP) SSIOXY
98£°66S°C - 01L°LE] (008°69¢) (P65°S€0°611) 00€°680°891 (s9sn) $901n0s FuroUBULY 19YJ0 [BI0],
- - - (000‘00t) (P65°S€0°611) - spuny 19y30 0} s13jsuel],
98€°66S°T - OIL‘LET 00Z°0¢ - 00€°680°891 Spuny Iayjo Woyy SIYsueL],
:(sasn) saoinos Suroueulj I2Y10
(859°610v) - (8rLen) €67 v0€ 801°957 68 06y ¥91) sarmipuadxd
(19pun) J9A0 SINUIASI JO (ASUIIIYIP) SSIOXH
POIVITY YL9‘8YT 788°L1T 9EP YL Y1L°569°681 TEE'888°0L1 samyipuadxa [e10],
80€°1€T - - - - ¥88°SL Aepno ende)
69L°LY9T 6v¥°C 9T5°€T 66£°8L1 Y1L°569°681 00€°676°8€ sariddns pue sas1aleg
19S°L1Y STI‘SL 60L°8Y 916881 - LIV 9SS v s)youaq dAojdwy
9TSLI8 OTI‘ILY LY9‘S1 1Z1°9LE - 189°90€°L8 saBem pue soLre[eg
:samjipuadxg
905°v6 ¥L98YT S6£08 626°LY0°1 TTSIS6°8LT 8TV Y99 SINU2AAI [EJO,
vTLisy - - 66S - 91L°€00°T o
78L°0S 14 874 $59°01 887166 L9TT8L 1s9193u]
- - - - - - mouamofo,« ﬁ:d on g
- 9y9°8¥T - 691°0€0°1 - ShP‘8S8Y $921A108 0] Sa5Iey)
- - 0S1°08 9059 L1E°008°SET - SNUDASI [BJUSWILIDA0ZIAIU]
- - - - TES VTS - spuad pue sasusdI]
- - - - - - SJuaISSasse [e1oads
- $ - $ - $ - $ $89816°9¢ $ - $ soxe],
1SONUIAY
599, ASojouyoa], SIJIAIRS [dUUOSId] uoneSIUIUPY weidold ue[d SIOIAIRS UONUARJ
pleog uoneonpyg UN0DH uoneyodsuel],
MITAY UIZNI) I19JSeIN

1102 “0€ dunf papuo Ieak [e9SY ay} 10
aoueeq puny ur saSuey)) pue saInpuadxy ‘sanusAdy Jo Juswale)S Suruiquo)
spun,j anuaAYY [erads papoday Ajreusiu]

epEAdN “Aluno) )



-142-

(panunuo))
606°SE1 $ 10L°TVEL $ 811°CLL $ L6L'606TY S 698°v6 $ TSELTT'S $ Teak jo pug
0£8'8C1 €2TE91°L TLLT09 09L'6LY VY s61°€8 SY0°€S0°6 Tea Jo Furuuigag
:90ue[Rq pUN]
6L0°L 8LY'6LI 9PEOLI (€96°695°1) vL911 (€69°528°¢€) sasn Suroueuy 19y30
pue saamipuadxa (19pun) I9A0 $30IN0S Suroueuly
I9YJ0 puB SINUIADI JO (ASUSI01JOP) SSIOXT
(¥8€°916) - - 000°000°01 - 000008 (sasn) sa01nos Juroueuy Iayio [el0,
(¥8€°915) - - - - - Spunj 15410 03 SIgJsuel],
- - - 000°000°01 - 000°008‘t Spunj Isy1o Wolx siojsuel],
:(sasn) sa0unos uroueuy 1LPYO
1394949 8LY6LI 9PEOLI (€96°695°11) vLIT1 (€69°579°8) saImipuadxa
(19pun) I9A0 SINUIAI JO (AOUDIOIJIP) SSIOXT
- 0S7°96L 188°96€ 66L°S€0°C1 1949 80565611 samyipuadxa [ejo],
- - - - - - Aeno ejde)
- 0ST°96L 9SLT ¥86'$€0°C1 1949 88€°TIS 1 sarjddns pue saolalag
- - 115°8C1 (s81) - $€9°78S°E s1gouaq dakojdwry
- - ¥19°69¢ - - S8Yv98°9 safem pue saLre[es
:saxmrpuadxyg
E9V°€TS 8TL'SL6 LTT'LYS 9€8°591 612°C1 SIZEEE’E SONUSASI [BI0],
- 162°LYE - - - 689°11 RElE0)
- LEY'T9 €858 9€8°591 617°C1 £89°6S RN
- - - - - - SOINJI9JI0] PUB SAUT]
- - ¥r9°8sS - - A AATAS S9JIAIDS 10] Sa3rey)
LZISIS - - - - - 9NUIAI [BIUIWUIDA0SIU]
- - - - - - syuad pue sasuadr]
- - - - - - sjuswISsasse [erdadg
9€€°8 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SaXe]
SANUAAY
umog, ajiazoung JIsueL] -uf UOLRLSIUTUPY I2ua) spunj neaing
PWSsIq uonuaje( A[eres Pazias AdINAT UOnUIARI] 11
juswaAolduy
[erads
(panunuo))

110T ‘0€ dunf papus Ieak [eos1] 3y} 10,
Jdoueeg puny ur saguey) pue saamIpuadxy ‘SONUIAIY JO JUSWAIEIS SUIUIqUIO))
spuny anuaAdy [eroadg pauoday Ajjeurauy
BPRASN “AIUno) jIe|D



Ieak jo pug

Ieaf Jo SuruuiSeg
:90UE[Rq pUN
sasn Suroueuy I9yjo

pue saxyipuadxa (1opun) I9A0 $301n0s Suroueuly

(panunuo))

TSLELL $ $¥8°696°9 $ 069°C SLY'6SE°E $ 1L2°765°0C $
86191 990°€TS°S 16€C SLYI8LE LTS 6¥S°0€
PSSl 6LLOVY 1 66T (000°2Z) (952°LS6°6)
(TLE 1Y) - (or1°e) (000°001°91) (818°0€°L11)
(TLE 1Y) - (orr‘en) (000°001°91) (818°50€°L1T)
96Ty 6LLOYY'T 60V°€1 000°8L9°S1 795°8P€°LOT
96€°1¢ 90€°SE1°6 - - -

09%'¢€ 114569 - - -

19% 09L°S69°C - - -

SLYLI SEIPPLS - - -

TTEPY9 5808501 60v°€1 000°8L9°S1 T9S‘8¥€°L01

- 0LE‘6Y - - -

- 0L8°18 - - -

- 8Y9°OPL‘S - ¥r1:00T°€ 6T TET8E
6TC°1 061°LLT 1 026°01 TE€S°89L -

£60°€9 $ LOO'LTHE $ 68Y°C PTE60L Tl $ €E1911'69  §

umo], edeoy umog, urysne| umoj, umo], asudiaug JOLISI(] IIAISS
s3uudg uerpuy ang &uno) yreD

(ponunuoD)

110T ‘0€ 2unf papus Ieak [edsH dy) 10,

Joueeq puny ul sauey) pue saImipuadxy ‘SanusAdY Jo Juswslels Suluiquio)
spun,j 9nuoAdy [e19adS panoday Ajeuisiu]
BpERASN ‘AIUno) yrepD

IOY)O pUE SINUIAI JO (A9UDIO1JaP) $599XH
(sasn) s221n0s FurdURUL I9YI0 [BI0],

Spuny 1oY30 0} SISJSUBI],

Spunj Joyjo Wolj sIoJsuel],
:(sasn) sa21nos Furoueuly PYO

sagrpuadxa

(1opun) 19A0 sINUIAI JO (ASUIDIP) SSIOXH

samyrpuadxa [e10],
Kepmo fende)
sa1jddns pue sao1AI0S
sygauaq 29kodwyg
sagem pue saLre[eS
:sarmrpuadxyg
SONUIAAI [BI0],
1o
3S193U]
S2IN}19}10] pue saulj
S9JIAIAS 10§ Ssarey)
ANUAAAI [BJUSWILIIA0SIONU]
syuLiad pue sasuadI]
sjuowssasse [eroadg
soxe],
1SONUAADY

-143-



(panunuo))

¥66°600°C $ 85969T°S $ 185°16 $ 101SS8T  § ¥10°1 $ S81°661 $ Teaf jo pug

0T506Z°C §0S°T0S‘S €€1°16 8¥9°0TES1 LET L1T90€ Teaf Jo SutuuiSog
:duefeq pung
(925°082) Lr8Ten) 14 ESPEET'E LLL (zeo11n) sosn Sutoueuy Joy1o
pue saxmipuadxa (19pun) 19A0 $30IN0s Furoueuly
I9YJ0 PUB SINUIAI JO (AOUSIOIJIP) SSIOXH

(000°00Z°p) (000°005°92) (918°8L€) (000°006°L8) (196°01) (98%°998) (sasn) sazmos Zurdueuly JOYI0 [BI0],

(000°00Z°p) (000°005°92) (918°8L€) (000°006°28) (196°01) (98+°998) Spuny Iayjo 0} SIYSUeI],
- - - - m—u—:@ uoa—ao wolJ sI1gjsuel],
:(sosn) sa0anos Surdueuly 19YI0

YLY'616°C €51°L92°9C ¥9T°6LE €SV EET’16 8ELTI YSyisSL samyipuadxa
(4opun) I9A0 SINUIAI JO (AOUSIOIIP) SSOXF

N - Z - ] - - samypuadxs [ejo],

- N - - - - Kepno ende)

- - - - .- - sarjddns pue saoiAleg

- - - - - - sjjauaq sakojdwg

- - - - 4 - : - safem pue soLe[eS
:sarmyrpuadxy

yLY616°C $ €S1°L9T°97  $ Y9T'6LE $ ESPEEII6 § 8€L11 YSyisSL SONUdA3I [BI0],

- - - - Y0
- - - - - - 15319)U]
- - - - - - SOIMI9JI0] PUR SaUl]
- - - - - - S30IAIDS 10} sagrey)
8TT0OE1 8IYEY'SI 126°0S€ S06°TLE'SS - 88ET1L 9NUIASI [BIUSWILISA0ZISIU]
ov8yiy 090°L02 0€9°€T S6L6E1°8 658°1 0€€9 syuwad pue sasuaol]

- SjuoWSsasse [e10adg

90V YLE'E $ 116°$29°01 $ EILY $ €SL0T9°LT S 6L8°6 $ 9€LLE $ SOXE],
SaNUAAYY

UMO], UI[ISWuNg umog, umog, JySiyoreas umo], asipered umog, umog,
Ka[reA Suudg uojsafrey) A Ka[eA edeoy

(panunuo))
110T “0€ dunf papud Ieak [eosH 9y} 10
Joueleq puny ul saguey) pue saamipuadxy ‘SanuoAdy Jo Juswalels Suruiquio)
spuny anuaAdy [eroads panoday A[[eureiu]
BPEAIN ‘AJUno) e

-144-



8LETTTILL 81¥°€91°S $ 0LE01T $ y$8TET'E $ Teaf jo pug
16V°'LIE V1T LES6LO'S €LY OvT 695°S19°C Teaf jo Suluuidag
:90ueRq pung
(€11°960°8€) 185°¢8 (€01°0©) S8T°LI9 sasn Suroueuy 19y30
pue saxgipuadxa (Japun) 19A0 sad1nos Suroueury
I9Y)0 PUB SOINUIADI JO (ASUSI01JOP) SSAIXY
(966°ST¥'812) (000°00Z°91) (1S0v16°1) (000°00L°T1) (sasn) sa01n0s Furouruy 19410 [EI0L
(T65°T80Y0Y) (000°00Z°91) (150%16°1) (000°00L°C1) SPUNy 19410 0} SIJSUBL],
965°959°681 - - - Spuny Jogj0 Wo SIaJSuel],
:(sosn) saoInos Juroueuyy 1PYIO
£88°62£081 186°€8Z°91 8¥6°€88°1 S8TLIEEI soxmyipuadxd
(19pun) 19A0 SINUIAII JO (AOUIIOJIP) SSIOXH
L88°EST00¥ - - - saxmyIpuadxa [ej0],
T61°L0€ - - - Kepno fende)d
1S6°€YS9¥T - - - sa1ddns pue saoialag
0S6°€69°1S - - - syouaq 2aKojdwy
Y6L°80L 101 - - - saSem pue saLe[es
:sarmyipuadxy
0LL‘€85°08S 185°€8T°91 816°€88°1 $ S8TLIEET $ SANUDAI [E10],
68€°9SY°1 - - - BYO
£68°160°¢ - - - 1S9107U]
- - - - SOINJI9YI0J pUe SAUL]
LYE'856°6 - - - S301AIDS 10§ S3Zrey)
8YI‘EIT9LE y1$‘805°C1 ¥90°119 S6ST8YL ONUIAJI [EJUSUWIISA0ZINU]
¥68°126°L1 SSTL99 ovI‘ss 78S°€01°1 syuwad pue sasuadIy
- - - - SjuowISsasse [e1oads
660°TY6°1L1 T8LLOTE $ oL Y81 $ 801°TELY $ soxe],
:SONUAAYY
[eoL uMmO], I9)SaYDUIM umo], Aouyrgm umoJ,

IOUBJA] IsLIUNS

(penuyuo))
110T “0€ 2unf papus Ieak [eosy ay} 104
souejeg puny ul safuey) pue saIMIpuadxy ‘sonuaAdy JO JuswLlelS Suruiquio)
spunyj anuaAdy [e1adg panioday] Ajjewaru]
BpEASN ‘AIUno)) jrep)

-145-



LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT FUND

To account for the operations of the Las Vegas Metropolitan
Police Department. Financing is provided primarily by
LVMPD ad valorem taxes, contributions from the City of Las Vegas and transfers
from the County general fund. Such contributions may only be used to finance the LVMPD.
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Clark County, Nevada
Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Trust
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contributions Contributed
2006 ’ $18,913,372 100%
2007 22,040,681 100
2008 23,587,076 100
2009 27,262,106 100
2010 25,753,794 100
2011 26,606,950 100

Annual required contributions are determined as part of the actuarial valuations at July 1 of each plan year. Prior to
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the aggregate actuarial cost method was used. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, the entry age normal cost method was used.

Additional actuarial assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation:
Investment rate of return 7.50%

Projected salary increases 5.00%

See notes to Required Supplementary Information

-147-



Clark County, Nevada
Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Trust
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

The Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan uses the aggregate actuarial cost method. Because the method

does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, information about the plan’s funded
status and funding progress has been prepared using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The information

presented below is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.

Entry Age
Normal Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
07/01/07 $119,142,043 $222,471,907  $103,329,864 53.60% $ 97,880,824 105.60%
07/01/08 127,179,936 250,041,067 122,870,131 50.90 111,054,552 110.60
07/01/09 156,464,229 300,396,876 143,932,647 52.10 - 122,006,497 118.00
07/01/10 165,504,117 322,902,749 157,398,632 51.30 119,663,339 131.50

The actuarially determined AAL and UAAL involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The estimates are subject to continual revision.

The July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation is the first to use the entry age actuarial cost method. As additional actuarial
valuations using this method are obtained, this schedule will ultimately present information from the six most recent
valuations.

See notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Clark County, Nevada
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgetary Information

The County uses the following procedures to establish, modify, and control the budgetary data presented in the
financial statements:

a.  Prior to April 15, the County Manager submits to the Nevada State Department of Taxation the tentative
budget for the next fiscal year, commencing on July 1. The budget as submitted contains the proposed
expenditures and means of financing them.

b. The Nevada State Department of Taxation notifies the County of its acceptance of the budget.
c.  Public hearings are conducted on the third Monday in May.

d.  After all the changes have been noted and hearings closed, the County Commission adopts the budget on
or before June 1.

e.  The County Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within functions or funds, but the
County Commissioners must approve any transfers between funds or increases to a fund’s original
appropriated level.

f. Increases to a fund’s budget (augmentations) other than by transfers are accomplished through formal
County Commission action. ' ‘ '

g.  The General Fund and all special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds have legally adopted
annual budgets. . ‘

h.  Statutory regulations require budgetary control to be exercised at the function level within the General
Fund or at the fund level of all other funds. The County administratively exercises control at the
budgeted item level within a department.

i.  All appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Encumbrances are reappropriated in the ensuing
fiscal year.

j.  Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the method used to report on governmental funds that are
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

k. Budgeted expenditure amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011, as originally adopted, were augmented
during the year for grants and other County Commission action.

Reconciliation of General Fund (Budget Basis) to the General Fund (Modified Accrual Basis)

This statement reconciles the general fund as presented for budget purposes to the presentation required under
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Internal Reported Special Revenue Funds

This statement details special revenue funds on a budgetary basis that are included in the general fund under
the modified accrual basis.
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COMMENTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS



. KAFOURY, ARMSTRONG & CO.
(( g )) A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
and the County Manager
Clark County, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Clark County, Nevada (the “County”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated January 9, 2012. Our report was modified to include a reference
to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other
auditors audited the financial statements of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Las
Vegas Valley Water District, Big Bend Water District, and Regional Transportation Commission
of Southern Nevada, as described in our report on Clark County, Nevada's financial statements.
This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those

auditors.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
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in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses as item 2011-1 FS that we consider to be a significant
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the County
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The County’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of County
Commissioners, and others. within the County, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties. ‘

Adfouwry Wahg ¢Co

Las Vegas, Nevada
January 9, 2012

-1562-



ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION — EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS



((‘\ KAFOURY, ARMSTRONG & CO.
( — ))) A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
and the County Manager
Clark County, Nevada

Compliance

We have audited Clark County, Nevada’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
County’'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based
on our audit.

Clark County, Nevada's basic financial statements include the component unit operations of University
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Las Vegas Valley Water District, and Regional Transportation
Commission of Southern Nevada, which received $6,651,056, $3,069,177, and $75,275,381, respectively,
in federal awards which are not included in the schedule during the year ended June 30, 2011. Our audit,
as described below, did not include the operations of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Las
Vegas Valley Water District, Big Bend Water District or Regional Transportation Commission of Southern
Nevada because these entities engaged other auditors to perform their audits in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Clark County, Nevada’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Department of Aviation,
which received $16,760,815 in federal awards which is not included in the schedule during the year ended
June 30, 2011. Our audit, as described below, did not include the operations of the Department of Aviation
because they were audited separately in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Clark County, Nevada complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
as items 2011-1, 2011-2, 2011-3, 2011-4, 2011-5, 2011-6 and 2011-7.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance
that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control
over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items
2011-3, 2011-4, and 2011-6 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2011-1,
2011-5 and 2011-7 to be significant deficiencies.

This report replaces our previously issued report dated March 23, 2012. Subsequent to the release of our
original report, management discovered that certain federal expenditures had been excluded from the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2011. These expenditures were
for the Equitable Sharing Program (CFDA 16.922) and amounted to $4,529,510. As a result, additional
audit procedures were performed and the Equitable Sharing Program was audited as a major program
and is reported on in this report.

Clark County, Nevada’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Clark County, Nevada’s
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of County

Commissioners, others within the County, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/{C%W, W% 1Co
Las Vegas, Nevada

March 23, 2012, except for major program 16.922,
as to which the date is April 30, 2013
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Clark County, Nevada

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of Federal financial
assistance programs of Clark County, Nevada (the “County”). The County’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1
to its basic financial statements. Federal award expenditures for the Big Bend Water District, Clark County
Department of Aviation, Las Vegas Valley Water District, University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, and
Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada, if any, are not included in this schedule. All Federal
financial assistance received directly from Federal agencies as well as Federal financial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included in the schedule.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Expenditures are recognized when they become a demand on current available financial resources.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expenditures of Federal awards reported in the County’s basic financial statements are as follows:

General fund $ 7,845,447
Special revenue funds 149,208,795
Capital projects funds 37,675,418
Enterprise funds 7,957,106
Agency funds 91,314

Total $202,778,080

SUBRECIPIENT EXPENDITURES

Clark County provided Federal funds to subrecipients as follows:

Federal Subrecipient
Program Title CFDA# Expenditures
Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program  11.555 $ 2,250,783
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 14.218 16,334,390
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 271,358
Shelter Care Plus Grant 14.238 667,916
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 6,453,880
ARRA — Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing
Program 14.257 851,877
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 30,056
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Training 20.703 9,466
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 4,431,752
Homeland Security Cluster 97.067 1,412,224
Total 32,713,702
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued
Internal control over financial reporting:
o Material weakness(es) identified?

« Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
o Material weakness(es) identified?

« Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program
Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants Cluster
HOME Investment Partnership Program

Southern Nevada Public Land Management

Equitable Sharing Program

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Capital Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant

Child Support Enforcement

Foster Care — Title IV-E

Adoption Assistance — Title IV-E

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program

Homeland Security Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unqualified

No
Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Unqualified
Yes

CFDA Number(s)

11.565
14.218/14.253
14.239
15.235
16.922
20.205
66.458
81.128
93.563
93.658
93.659
93.914
95.001
97.067

$3,000,000
No
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

FINDING 2011-1-FS

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management'’s
Response:

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for OPEB
expenses and related OPEB liabilities as well as note disclosures and required
supplementary information in the financial reports of state and local government
employers. In determining the OPEB expenses and related liabilities, employers are
required to obtain an actuarial valuation at least biennially for OPEB plans with total
membership of 200 or more participants.

The biennial OPEB valuation was obtained for the County's main plan during the year
under audit. However, we noted that certain census data provided to the actuary was
inaccurate. Providing the actuary with accurate census data is a continued problem
that has occurred over the past three years.

As in the prior year, there appears to be insufficient controls in place over the review
of the census data submitted to the actuary.

Insufficient controls over the OPEB actuarial valuation process increase the likelihood
that OPEB expenses and related OPEB liabilities will be materially misstated in the
County’s financial reports and the likelihood that management and other financial
statement users will rely on faulty information to make important decisions about the
entity.

The County should have sufficient controls in place over the actuarial valuation
process of postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) for each of the
OPEB plans to which it contributes. These controls should help to ensure that the
independent actuary is provided with accurate census data.

The County will implement procedures to ensure the validation of census data
against County payroll records prior to its submission to the actuary.
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Iil - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

20111

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

- Cause:

Recommendation:

REPORTING - FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS (SF-425)

CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster: Community Development Block Grants
(CDBG) — CFDA No. 14.218; Community Development Block Grant ARRA
Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) — CFDA No. 14.253; Grant Nos. B-08-UN-320001
(NSP1), B-09-UC-320001, B-09-UY-320001 (CDBG-R), and B-10-UC-320001

Clark County is required to submit federal financial reports (SF-425) on a
quarterly basis. According to the instructions for completing the SF-425, the
County should be entering cumulative amounts in the "Transactions" section of
the report. These cumulative dates are from the date of inception of the award
through the end date of the reporting period.

Clark County did not file the first two quarterly SF-425 reports during the year
for NSP1 activity (grant number B-08-UN-320001). Additionally, none of the
SF-425 reports were reported on a cumulative basis for CDBG grant numbers
B-09-UC-320001, B-09-UY-320001, and B-10-UC-320001.

The SF-425 reports underreported NSP1 cumulative cash receipts and
disbursements of $18,152,557 and $19,978,245 for the quarters ending
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Additionally, the
"Federal Cash" section of the SF-425 reports for non-NSP1 activity were not
completed on cumulative basis.

It appears that there was ineffective management oversight over the reporting
compliance requirement, as the internal control process failed to ensure that all
reports were timely filed and that all required information was properly included
in the reports prior to their submission.

The County should continue to strengthen its procedures over the review
process of the federal reports for the CDBG program, to include an emphasis
on new funding and new grant reporting requirements. The problem with not
filing the federal financial reports for the NSP1 activity was noted as a finding in
the prior year, and was corrected upon notification of the finding.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See page 186.

Questioned

Costs

None
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Department of Administrative Services
Community Resources Management

500 S Grand Central Pky 5th Fl « Box 551212 « Las Vegas NV 89155-1212
(702) 455-5025 -« Fax (702) 455-5038

Sabra Smith-Newby, Director » Michael J. Pawiak, Manager

March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Deaf Auditors:

The purpose of this letter is to respond to the finding 2011-1 identified by the County’s external auditors,
Kafoury, Armstrong & Co., related to their review of the FY 2011 CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster.

2011-1
Condition:

Clark County did not file the first two quarterly SF-425 reports during the year for NSP1 activity (grant
number B-08-UN-320001). Additionally, none of the SF-425 reports were reported on a cumulative basis
for CDBG grant numbers B-09-UC-320001, B-09-UY-320001, and B-10-UC-320001.

Corrective Action:

This is the same finding as in the previous year, FY 2010, and the same corrective action that cleared that
finding is applicable to this finding.

As the auditors note in their 2011-1 report in the Recommendation section, “the problem with not filing the
. federal financial reports for the NSP1 activity was noted as a finding m the prior year, and was corrected
upon notification of the finding”.

Following the 2010 audit report finding in March of 2011, beginning with the third quarter reports for FY
2011, Clark County began submitting cumulative SF-425 reports of all NSP1 and CDBG cluster
expenditures. Because the reports submitted at that time were cumulative cash receipts and expenditure
data, financial information for NSP1 and CDBG was not underreported as of that date.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the audit finding and identify the corrective action that we have

taken.
o iaet ) §Fhid—

M|chaeIJ Pawlak, Mabager
Community Resources Management

Slncerely,

cc: Sabra Smith-Newby
Mark Gamett
Elizabeth Vorce

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair « STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair 186
LARRY BROWN « TOM COLLINS « CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI « MARY BETH SCOW + LAWRENCE WEEKLY - -
DONALD G. BURNETTE, County Manager



CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

2011-2

Critenia:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

REPORTING - FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS (SF-425)

Southern Nevada Public Land Management Act (SNPLMA) — CFDA No. 15.235;
Grant Award Nos. LO5AC14148, LO5AC14902, LO5AC13256, LOSAC14402,
LO5AC13726, LOS5AC13849, LO5AC13523, LO5AC14425, LO5AC13851,
LO5AC13257, LO5AC14149, L05AC14903, LO5AC14675, LO5AC14676,
LO5AC14904, LO7AC13495, LO7AC13809, LO7AC13492, L07AC13118,
LO7AC14880, LO7AC14115, L0O7AC14399, LO7AC13496, LO07AC14116,
LO7AC13819, LO7AC13231, LO08AC14127, LO08AC14128, LO9AC15505,
LO9AC15506

Clark County is required to submit federal financial reports (SF-425) on a
quarterly basis. According to the instructions for completing the SF-425, the
County should be entering cumulative amounts in the "Transactions” section of
the report. These cumulative dates are from the date of inception of the award
through the end date of the reporting period.

Our tests disclosed that for 5 of the 17 SF-425 reports tested, the County
incorrectly reported cash receipts and cash disbursements on the SF-425 by
using quarterly totals instead of the required cumulative totals. This was also
noted as a finding in the 2010 audit. The reports with errors were all prepared
and submitted prior to the notification of the noncompliance finding. All of the
June 30, 2011, quarterly reports tested correctly reported cash receipts and
disbursements on a cumulative basis.

. Total grant receipts and outlays (grant expenditures) were improperly reported

to the grantor for the first three quarters of the year.

It appears that there was ineffective management oversight for ensuring reports
were being prepared properly prior to notification of the prior year's
noncompliance finding.

The County should continue to strengthen its procedures over the review
process of the federal reports.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See pages 188-189.

Questioned

Costs

None
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Department of Comprehensive Planning

500 S Grand Central Pky <« Box 551741 « Las Vegas NV 89155-1741
(702) 455-4314 « Fax (702) 385-8940

Nancy Lipski, Director

March 16, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 2010
Las Vegas, NV 89113

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR - 2011-2 AUDIT FINDING

Dear Sirs:

Our office has reviewed the above noted finding from the year ending June 30,2011, and we are
providing the following response to you.

CONDITION:

" Our tests disclosed that for 5 of the 17 SF-425 reports tested, the County incorrectly reported cash receipts
and cash disbursements on the SF-425 by using quarterly totals instead of the required cumulative totals.
This was also noted as a finding in the 2010 audit. The reports with errors were all prepared and
submitted prior to the notification of the noncompliance finding. All of the June 30, 2011, quarterly
reports tested correctly reported cash receipts and disbursements on a cumulative basis.

RESPONSE: A
The following response information is provided regarding the five incorrect SF-425°s. The project
numbers for the five projects were provided by Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.

CC18 (12/31/2010), CC32 (9/31/2010) and CC44 (12/31/2010)

All three SF-425’s were prepared and submitted prior to the notification of the 2010 non-compliance
finding as noted in the Condition. As mentioned in the response to the 2010 audit, we have provided
additional staff to review the reports for accuracy prior to submittal to the Grantor.

Corrective Action: No additional corrective action is necessary for these three projects, since the
errors occurred prior to the notification of non-compliance.

CC25 (3/31/2011)

For CC25, all entries on the SF-425 are correct. The error was found in the retention amount shown on
the attached Project Cost Tracking Worksheet. The Worksheet indicated a retention amount of
$116,426.34 which was the amount encumbered during the reporting Quarter, rather than the cumulative
amount of $217,778.80, which was reflected on the signed SF-425.

Corrective Action: The Department of Comprehensive Planning will provide a corrected Project
Cost Tracking Worksheet to the Grantor for the CC25 project.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair » STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair
LARRY BROWN + TOM COLLINS * CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI « MARY BETH SCOW « LAWRENCE WEEKLY -188-
DONALD G. BURNETTE, County Manager



CC49 (3/31/2011)
For CC49, the unliquidated obligations (Section 10f) incorrectly stated a quarterly retention amount of

$12,435.51 rather than the cumulative retention amount of $20,000.00. This error caused the Federal
Share (Section 10g) and the Unobligated Balance of Federal Funds (Section 10h) to be reported
incorrectly. Additionally, the attached Project Cost Tracking Worksheet showed no retention for the
CC49 project, which further compounded the error.

Corrective Action: The Department of Comprehensive Planning will provide a corrected SF-425
and Project Cost Tracking Worksheet to the Grantor for the CC49 project.

The errors on CC25 and CC49 were due to the fact that staff was still evolving the review process from
the 2010 audit finding when the 2™ Quarter 2011 (i.e., period ending 3/31/2011) reports were prepared.
Since then, staff has fully implemented the review process to ensure accurate recording of the financial
status and project status reports submitted to the Grantor.

Should you have any questions regarding this response, feel free to contact Ron Gregory, Principal

Planner at (702) 455-3121 or rgy@clarkcountynv.gov.

Sincerely,

i
H
H

NancykLipski
Director

cc: David Dobrzynski, Clark County Finance
Elizabeth Vorce, Clark County Finance
Becky Deuel, Clark County Public Works
Patsy Schrader, Clark County Public Works
Ron Gregory, Clark County Comprehensive Planning

Page 2 of 2
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PASSED THROUGH NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

2011-3

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect.

Cause:

Recommendation:

ALLOWABLE COSTS/COST PRINCIPLES

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster — CFDA No. 20.205; Agreements
P156-09-063, P153-09-063, P154-09-063, P202-09-063

For employees who work on multiple activities or cost objectives, OMB Circular
A-87 requires a “distribution of their salaries or wages supported by personnel
activity reports or equivalent documentation which must a) reflect an after-the-
fact distribution of the actual activity of each employee, b) account for the total
activity for which each employee is compensated, c) be prepared at least
monthly and coincide with one or more pay periods, and d) they must be signed
by the employee”.

Additionally, per review of the grant agreement, indirect costs are not an allowed
cost under the grant.

This was a finding during the prior year audit. The County did not begin to
obtain required payroll certifications for employees who charged their salaries
and wages to the grant until after the finding was noted. Beginning in April
2011, the County did begin receiving the certifications; however, the employees
did not sign the payroll certifications within a timely manner.

In addition, our testing revealed that indirect costs related to vehicle use were
calculated as part of the labor charges. Indirect costs are not an allowable cost
under the grants.

The County is not in compliance with Federal requirements for supporting
salaries and wages charged to the grant. During the year, ended June 30, 2011,
the County charged approximately $434,900 of payroll costs to the grant, of
which $334,605 related to direct payroll costs and $100,295 was for indirect
costs related to vehicle use.

It appears that there were inadequate policies and procedures over the
allowable costs/cost principles requirements.

The County should continue to strengthen its policies and procedures for
obtaining the required payroll certifications under OMB A-87. Specifically, the
payroll certifications must be certified (via signature) by the employee
performing the work at least monthly and should coincide with one or more pay
periods. Also, if the County believes that an indirect cost charge is appropriate,
management must submit the indirect cost rate to the grantor for prior approval.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See page 191.

Questioned
Costs

$100,295
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Department of Public Works

500 S Grand Central Pky - Box 554000 - Las Vegas NV 89155-4000
(702) 455-6000 - Fax (702) 455-6040

Denis Cederburg, P.E., Director + E-Mail: dlc@ClarkCountyNV.gov

March 16, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 W. Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER ~ CFDA No 20.205

Our office has reviewed Finding No. 2011-3 concerning grant numbers P156-09-063, P153-09-063, P154-09—063
and P202-09-063 from the year ending June 30, 2011, and provides the following response:

Condition:

Response:

This was a finding during the prior year audit. The County did not begin to obtain required payroll
certifications for employees who charged their salaries and wages to the grant until after the finding
was noted. Beginning in April 2011, the County did begin receiving the certifications; however, the
employees did not sign the payroll certifications within a timely manner.

In addition, our testing revealed that indirect costs related to vehicle use were calculated as part of
the labor charges. Indirect costs are not an allowable cost under the grant. :

Beginning April 2011 and upon receipt of the payroll certification notice finding ending June 30 2010,
the Department established a procedure to meet the required payroll certification requirements as
prescribed under OMB A-87. It is the goal of the Department to continue to have time cards S|gned

timely by all employees working on grant projects.

Additionally, the Department is in agreement that it did not obtain prior approval from the federal
agency to incur and seek reimbursement for indirect costs related to vehicle use. Corrective action
will be taken to ensure future awards are in full compliance with the requirement to prepare and
submit an indirect cost rate proposal to the federal agency when deemed appropriate for the project.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact Scoit Trierweiler at (702) 455-6019.

Sincerely,

D

Denis Cederburg :
Director of Public Works

DLC:ST:iam

cc: Becky Deuel, Finance Department — Support Services
Scott Trierweiler, Finance Department — Support Services

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair « STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair
LARRY BROWN + TOM COLLINS « CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI » MARY BETH SCOW + LAWRENCE WEEKLY -191-
DONALD G. BURNETTE, County Manager



CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
PASSED THROUGH NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

20114

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS
Child Support Enforcement — CFDA No. 93.563; Interlocal agreement

The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement (dated March, 2011), lists
specific compliance requirements under the special tests and provisions section
for the Child Support Enforcement grant, which are also found in the federal
laws and regulations governing the Child Support Enforcement grant. The
County should have adequate controls in place to provide reasonable assurance
that the federal laws and regulations governing the Child Support Enforcement
grant are being adhered to.

During the year under audit, the County served more than 85,700 active child
support enforcement cases (they are a IV-D agency under Nevada's program).
As a component of our procedures, we tested compliance with the special tests
and provisions requirement outlined in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement for the Child Support Enforcement program. The special provisions
tested include establishment of paternity and support obligations, enforcement
of support obligations, securing and enforcing medical support obligations —
state programs, and provisions of child support services for interstate cases —
state programs.

Of the 40 case files tested for establishment of paternity and support obligations,
we noted one (1) instance of noncompliance. There was no documentation
pertaining to the establishment of the paternity or support obligation.

~ Of the 40 case files tested for enforcement of support obligations, we noted two

(2) instances of noncompliance. No enforcement actions had been taken on
these cases for over a year.

Of the 40 case files tested for securing and enforcing medical support
obligations — state programs, we noted six (6) instances of noncompliance in
addition to the two (2) instances addressed above. In all of the instances, while
medical support was ordered, the County did not follow up to determine if the
child in fact had satisfactory health insurance.

In regards to the special provisions for interstate cases — state programs, we
tested a sample of 40 initiating and 40 responding interstate cases to verify that
required information was provided to the other jurisdictions within required time
frames. We noted a total of four (4) instances of noncompliance. In one (1)
instance, the County was late initiating requests for additional information from
the responding jurisdiction. In the other three (3) instances, the County was late
in responding to requests for additional information from initiating jurisdictions.

The County had a similar finding over compliance with special tests and
provisions during the fiscal years 2009 and 2010 audits.

Without proper controls in place, the County has a higher risk of material
noncompliance with the federal laws and regulations governing this grant.

It appears that there was ineffective management oversight over the special
provisions applicable to this grant.

Questioned

Costs

None
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Recommendation:  During 2010, the County implemented procedures to monitor cases for
compliance with the special tests and provisions related to this grant. Such
procedures include reviewing various case status reports on a regular basis.
However, this review process does not appear to be fully effective since errors
are still occurring. The County should continue to strengthen its management
oversight monitoring controls over this program. Specifically, the County could
develop specific time intervals in which monitoring reports are to be reviewed by
supervisors and develop documentation to support supervisor review of the
reports and case follow-up.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See pages 194-198.
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OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Family Support Division Ry =t
(702) 671-9200 - TDD (702) 385-7486 (for the hearing impaired) CHRIS OWENS
Assistant District Attorney
LEGAL SECTION
1900 East Flamingo Road, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89119-5168 MARY'ANNEC&%},}‘ CI:,,E};
Fax: (702) 366-2440 JEFFREY J. WITTHUN
STEVEN B- WOLF SON ' Assistant Director

District Attorney

March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
Attn: Tami Miramontes
8329 W. Sunset Road

Las Vegas, NV 89113

Dear Ms. Miramontes:

Following is the response and corrective action plan for the area that the Clark County District
Attorney, Family Support Division (DAFS) was found to be out of compliance.

2011-4 Child Support Enforcement — CFDA No. 93.563; Interlocal agreement

Condition: During the year under audit, the County served more than 85,700 active child support
enforcement cases (they are a IV-D agency under Nevada’s program). As a component of our
procedures, we tested compliance with the special tests and provisions requirement outlined in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement for the Child Support Enforcement program. The
special provisions tested include establishment of paternity and support obligations, enforcement of
support obligations, securing and enforcing medical support obligations — state programs, and
provisions of child support services for interstate cases — state programs.

Of the 40 case files tested for establishment of paternity and support obligations, we noted one (1)
instance of noncompliance. There was no documentation pertaining to the establishment of the
paternity or support obligation

Of the 40 case files tested for enforcement of support obligations, we noted two (2) instances of
noncompliance. No enforcement actions had been taken on these cases for over a year.

Of the 40 case files tested for securing and enforcing medical support obligations — state programs,
we noted six (6) instances of noncompliance in addition to the two (2) instances addressed above.
In all of the instances, while medical support was ordered, the County did not follow up to
determine if the child in fact had satisfactory health insurance.

In regards to the special provisions for interstate cases — state programs, we tested a sample of 40

initiating and 40 responding interstate cases to verify that required information was provided to the
other jurisdictions within the required time frames. We noted a total of four (4) instances of
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noncompliance. In one (1) instance, the County was late initiating requests for additional
information from the responding jurisdiction. In the other three (3) instances, the County was late
in responding to requests for additional information from initiating jurisdictions.

The County had a similar finding over compliance with special tests and provisions during the fiscal
years 2009 and 2010 audit.

Effect: Without proper controls and reporting capabilities in place, the County has a higher risk of
material noncompliance with the federal laws and regulations governing this grant.

Cause: It appears that there was ineffective management oversight over the special provisions
applicable to this grant.

Recommendation: During 2010, the County implemented procedures to monitor cases for
compliance with the special tests and provisions related to this grant. Such procedures include
reviewing various case status reports on a regular basis. However, this review process does not
appear to be fully effective since errors are still occurring. The County should strengthen its
management oversight monitoring controls over this grant. Specifically, the County should develop
specific time intervals in which monitoring reports are to be reviewed by supervisors and develop
documentation to support supervisor review of the reports and case follow-up.

DAFS Comments:

In reviewing the 13 cases with findings, we found that six (6) of the findings are not valid for the
following reasons:

1 Establishment Finding

Case ID 738786100B — The Born Out Of Wedlock (BOW) and Paternity Established indicators
were set based on state policy in Policy and Procedure Inquiry # CSEP PP-10-03 (attached) when
there is no information to make a determination.

1 Medical Finding

Case ID 408021000C — The case has been arrears only since 2004, one child emancipated in 2003
and the other child emancipated in 2008. A health insurance provision was not ordered or required
during the audit period.

1 Initiating Interstate Finding

Case ID 390061200A — Per state policy, we tried enforcement by direct income withholding first.
We had regular communications with NCP and were receiving payments from his unemployment
benefits. It was then determined that we needed to pursue enforcement as a two-state case and send
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the request to CA on 06/10/2011. The end of the CFY was 06/30/2011 so no follow up was
required between 06/10/2011 and the end of the audit period.

Please note: As of 02/27/2012, the state implemented an Intergovernmental Initiating Unit that took
all of our initiating interstate cases. Effective that date, the only interstate cases we are responsible
for are ones in which we are responding.

3 Responding Interstate Findings

Case ID 205368100C — NCP paid by income withholding until he re-located to MO and we
received permission from the initiating state to close our case. There was never a reason for us to
ask the initiating state for additional information.

Case ID 264946100A — NCP paid by income withholding until he re-located to KY and we received
permission from the initiating state to close our case. There was never a reason for us to ask the
initiating state for additional information.

Case ID 234247000B — NCP has been paying by income withholding from February 2011 to
present. There was never a reason for us to ask the initiating state for additional information.

Remaining Valid Findings

We agree actions were not taken within the required timeframes on the other seven (7) cases (two
(2) enforcement and five (5) medical) that resulted in findings.

DAFS Corrective Action Plan:

While we have over 300 staff and 63,628 child support cases as of 03/04/2012 (caseload reduction
due to the recent reassignment of initiating interstate cases to the state), it will never be possible to
guarantee that each and every case in the caseload is worked at all times in a proper manner so as to
be 100% free of error. It is DAFS’ intention in this corrective action plan to make our casework as
error-free as possible.

In 2010, we put in place an internal QC process in terms of reviewing cases upon closure for the
accurate setting of Born Out Of Wedlock indicators and to ensure compliance with federal closure
criteria. These closure reviews were done by the unit administrator and supervisors on the
Establishment Unit, the supervisor on the Locate Team, and the Enforcement Closure Team. We
intend for these closure QC reviews to continue.

In a further effort to ensure a reduction in valid findings in the future, DAFS intends to develop an

internal Quality Control (QC) Team/component this year within the P&P/Training Unit. This QC
team will review cases to ensure compliance with federal regulation and state policy in the area of
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Establishment, Locate, and Enforcement (child support and medical). This new QC team will be in
addition to the QC efforts being done on the units/teams.

Sincerely,

Teresa M. Lowry
Assistant District Attorney

CC: Jeffrey J. Witthun, Assistant Director — Operations
Kathi M. Brunson, Unit Administrator
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State of Nevada
Division of Welfare and Supportive Services
POLICY AND PROCEDURE INQUIRY
TO: X Child Support Enforcement Chief Log No.: CSEP PP-10-03

SUBJECT:  Born Out of Wedlock (BOW) Status

QUESTION:

Regarding determination of a child’s born out of wedlock (BOW) status, Support Enforcement Manual
(SEM) 400(B) states:

BOW status (i.e., whether the child was born out of wedlock or born of a marriage)
may be determined based on the information the custodian provides on the child
support application, Non-Custodial Parent Form, or in an interview with IV-D staff.
1t is not necessary to obtain additional documentation to establish BOW status
unless case specific circumstances indicate verification of the custodian’s
information is warranted.

However, policy does not provide instructions for cases in which the born out of wedlock status is unknown.
How should BOW and paternity status be coded if it is unknown whether a child was born out of wedlock or
born of a marriage?

ANSWER:

Case managers may code the statewide child support system as “BOW = No” and “Paternity Established =
Yes” if the BOW status of a child is truly unknown and no information is available to reasonably conclude
the child was born out of wedlock (e.g., the alleged father has a different last name than the child and
custodian or the custodian (CST) has named more than one alleged father). As a reminder, the BOW status of
a child is based on the circumstances of the child’s birth with respect to the child’s parents and does not take
into consideration the gender of the noncustodial parent ((NCP).

Both the Application for Child Support Services (Form 4000) and the Noncustodial Parent Form (Form
2906) require the recipient of child support services to provide information about the marital status of a
child’s parents. Federal regulations (45 CFR 303.2) require enforcing authorities to solicit necessary and
relevant information within 20 calendar days of receiving a case. An enforcing authority must attempt to
obtain the information necessary to determine BOW status within 20 days of case initiation.

Pursuant to SEM 400(D), born out of wedlock and paternity status must be updated in NOMADS within 10
days of receiving new information. Failure to do so increases the risk of data reliability errors. Unreliable or
erroneous data subjects the statewide child support program to federal financial penalties which negatively
impacts all of Nevada’s IV-D offices and the families we serve.

Manual Revision Needed X YES NO Case Specific Response YES X NO

IS/
Date: 9/15/10 Signed:

Louise Bush, Chief, Child Support Enforcement Program
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
PASSED THROUGH NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

2011-5

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

ALLOWABLE COSTS AND REPORTING

Foster Care Title IV-E — CFDA No. 93.658; Adoption Assistance Title IV-E —
CFDA No. 93.659; all grant numbers and grant periods reported for this CFDA on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

OMB Circular A-133 establishes certain requirements for non-Federal entities
that expend Federal awards. For example, the County is required to “maintain
internal control over Federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that
the [County] is managing Federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations,
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a material
effect on each of its Federal programs”.

According to the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement (dated March,
2011), "for reporting periods beginning October 1, 2010 or later: CB-496, Title
IV-E Programs Quarterly Financial Report (OMB No. 0970-0205) — Title IV-E
agencies report current expenditures and information on children assisted for
the quarter that has just ended and estimates of expenditures and children to be
assisted for the next quarter.”

We tested two of the four quarterly Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption
Assistance Financial Reports and noted that the County’s internal control over
the review of the reports was ineffective. Specifically, formula errors were noted
in one of the report computations, which the review control did not identify prior
to submission to the grantor.

Our audit testing revealed that formula errors in the quarter ended March 31,
2011, report resulted in an overstatement of costs in the cost pool of $70,019.
This amount, reduced further by the Federal reimbursement percentage, yielded
an over-reimbursement from the grantor of $16,981 as this amount was not
related to actual costs. Of this amount, $1,286 relates to ARRA funding.

There was a lack of adequate review of the Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption
Assistance Financial Reports prior to their submission to the grantor.

The County should strengthen its procedures over the review processes of the
quarterly financial reports for the Foster Care and Adoption Title IV-E programs.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See pages 200-201.

Questioned

Costs

$16,981
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Department of Family Services

121 South Martin Luther King Boulevard ¢ Las Vegas, Nevada 89106-4309
(702) 455-7200 - Fax (702) 385-2999 « Hotline (702) 399-0081

Lisa Ruiz Lee, Interim Director « Paula Hammack, Assistant Director

March 13, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co
1700 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Subject: Title IV-E Foster Care (CFDA No. 93.658) and Adoption Assistance Program (CFDA No. 93.659) — Audit Findings

The Department of Family Services (DFS) has reviewed and completed the items addressed during the subject audit.
Below is DFS’ response to Finding 2011-5.

Finding 2011-5 — It was reported that the County’s internal control over the review of the Title IV-E Foster Care and
Adoption Assistance Reports were ineffective. Formula errors were identified for two (2) quarters which resulted in an
over-reimbursement from the grantor in the amount of $16,981. The findings noted “ineffective management oversight
over the reporting compliance requirement, as there was a lack of adequate review of the Title IV-E Foster Care and
Adoption Assistance Reports prior to their submission to grantor.”

Corrective Action — The existing process for preparation of the Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption Assistance Financial
Reports necessitates a reconciliation of quarterly period expenditures balanced with general ledger expense
transactions recorded in the County’s Financial System, SAP. This reconciliation task is performed by the Title IV-E

financial analyst.

One Senior Financial Analyst was reassigned to oversee, review, and implement internal controls of the IV-E process to
strengthen the DFS Title IV-E claiming process.

A financial working group was also assembled to address the issue of formula errors, duplicate entries, and inaccurate
data. This group met with Title IV-E representatives from the Federal and State level to discuss solutions of accurately

calculating the cost pool as it relates to Title IV-E claiming.

In addition, DFS contracted with the Public Consulting Group (PCG) to provide software that DFS will use in the quarterly
Federal claiming process. This software will increase DFS’ accuracy and efficiency compared to the current spreadsheet
based process. This is the same back-end system structure currently in use by several Nevada State Department of
Health and Human Services divisions and Washoe County Department of Social Service, in addition to other agencies

outside of the State of Nevada.

Federal program guidelines do not specify a deadline for refunding over-reimbursements; however, the over-
reimbursement amount of $16,981 will be processed as a prior-quarter adjustment on the FY 12 (March 3"
quarter) Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption Assistance Financial Report.

If you have any questions concerning this response please contact Alex Ortiz at (702) 455-5966.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chairman ¢ STEVE SISOLAK, Vice Chair
TOM COLLINS ¢ LARRY BROWN ¢ LAWRENCE WEEKLY ¢ CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI ¢ MARY BETH SCOW
DON BURNETTE, County Manager
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Sincerely,

Snte Hormat

Paula Hammack
Assistant Director
Department of Family Services

cc: Mark Gammet
Alex Ortiz
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

2011-6

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect.

Cause:

Recommendation:

MATCHING, LEVEL OF EFFORT, AND EARMARKING

HIV Emergency Relief Grant — CFDA No. 93.914; Grant Award Nos.
2H89HA06900-05-00, SH3MHA08430-03-00, 2H89HA06900-04-02,
2H89HA06900-05-01, and 2H89HA06900-06-05

The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement (dated March 2011), lists
specific earmarking and level of effort - maintenance of effort compliance
requirements for the HIV Emergency Relief Grant. The County should have
controls in place for monitoring expenditures under this grant in order to provide
reasonable assurance that the earmarking requirements are met using only
allowable funds or costs, which are properly calculated and valued.

Also, the level of effort - maintenance of effort compliance requirement states
that “each political subdivision within the metropolitan area is required to
maintain its level of expenditures for...core and support services at a level equal
to its level of such expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.”

The County did not sufficiently monitor the women, infants, children, and youth
(WICY) earmarking compliance requirement specific to the HIV Emergency
Relief Grant. In calculating the earmarking requirement specific to WICY,
program personnel did not track actual expenditures (as required by the grant),
but instead calculated an average cost per participant. This average cost was
then applied to the WICY population in determining whether the earmark
requirement was achieved. The County had a similar finding over WICY
earmarking compliance for the fiscal years 2009 and 2010 audits.

In addition, the County's total expenditures for core and support services fell
short of the amount expended in the prior year by $947,343. It appears that the
County did not sufficiently monitor the level of effort - maintenance of effort
compliance requirement specific to the HIV Emergency Relief Grant.

Without proper controls in place, the County has a higher risk of noncompliance
with the WICY earmarking and level of effort - maintenance of effort
requirements for this grant. The County was not in compliance with the level of
effort - maintenance of effort. The level of expenditures for the current year was
under funded by $947,343 compared to the prior year.

The grant year on which the earmarking calculation was performed by the
County during fiscal year 2011 ended prior to the date the County received
results from the 2010 audit. Therefore, procedures to correct the finding had not
been implemented to remedy the current year finding. However, it appears that
there was still ineffective management oversight over the WICY earmarking
compliance requirement during the year, as no further action to correct the noted
deficiency had been taken by the County. For the level of effort - maintenance of
effort requirement, management was not monitoring its expenditures throughout
the year.

The County should strengthen monitoring efforts for the HIV Emergency Relief
Grant WICY earmarking and level of effort - maintenance of effort compliance
requirements.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See page 203.

Questioned
Costs

$947,343
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Department of Social Service
Tim Burch, Director

Bobby J. Gordon, Acting Assistant Director ¢ Sandy Jeantete, Assistant Director
1600 Pinto Lane e Las Vegas NV 89106 e (702) 455-4270 e Fax (702) 455-5950

March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

The audit finding for the Ryan White Part A program for the year ending June 30, 2011 has been
reviewed by Department management and the Acting Grant Administrator of the Ryan White program.
Below is our response:

In reference to Finding 2011-6

Corrective Action: In response to this finding concerning the women, infants, children and
youth (WICY) earmarking compliance, staff has made a previous formal
request for technical assistance from the federal funding agency, Heaith
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA). The technical assistance

- request is to assist in developing a reporting methodology that will satisfy
the federal reporting requirement of tracking actual expenditures for the
WICY report, while still utilizing the cost based reimbursement method.
Once this methodology is developed, contract language will be included in
provider contracts related to the financial reporting of services provided to -
WICY clients. In response to this finding, concerning the level of effort-
maintenance of effort compliance, the political subdivision’s expenditures
experienced an overall decrease in FY 10-11. This was due to a decrease
in patient volume and a concerted effort of cost containment measures by
the political subdivisions, as a result, the total expenditure amounts
decreased by $947,343. Staff contacted HRSA conceming the decreased
level of effort amount for FY 10-11. Correspondence received from
HRSA stated Clark County would not be required to repay the $947,343.
Staff will work with HRSA going forward to determine the best method to
comply in light of these conditions.

Please do not hesitate to contact our office if you have questions related to this correspondence.

Sincerely,

:‘T}B:HD /é“f
Director T

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
: Susan Brager, Chair « Steve Sisolak, Vice-Chair
Lawrence L. Brown Il » Tom Collins * Chris Giunchigilani + Mary Beth Scow+ Lawrence Weckly
Donald G. Brunette, County Manager
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

2011-7

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

PROCUREMENT SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT
Equitable Sharing Program — CFDA No. 16.922; NV0020100

The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement (dated March 2011) states
that “non-federal entities are prohibited from contracting or making
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or
debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred. ‘Covered
transactions’ include those procurement contracts for goods and services
awarded under a nonprocurement transaction (e.g., grant or cooperative
agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed $25,000 or meet certain
other specified criteria. 2 CFR section 180.220 of the governmentwide
nonprocurement debarment and suspension guidance contains those
additional limited circumstances. All nonprocurement transactions (i.e.,
subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of award amount, are considered
covered transactions. When a non-federal entity enters into a covered
transaction with an entity at a lower tier, the non-federal entity must verify that
the entity is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded. This
verification may be accomplished by checking the Excluded Parties List
System (EPLS) maintained by the General Services Administration (GSA),
collecting a certification from the entity, or adding a clause or condition to the
covered transaction with that entity (2 CFR section 180.300).

Our tests disclosed that procedures related to suspension and debarment
requirements at the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department did not
ensure that evidence of verification was maintained to support compliance
with the requirements. Two vendors were tested for compliance with the
suspension and debarment requirements and for one vendor there was no
evidence included with purchasing documents to support that the vendor had
been verified to ensure they were not suspended or debarred.

There was insufficient documentation to support that the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department was in compliance with the verification
requirements related to suspension and debarment specified by federal
regulations.

The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department implemented formal
suspension and debarment control policies and procedures in April 2011.
These policies and procedures require that grant purchase requisitions are
reviewed and vendors are verified to ensure they are not suspended or
debarred. These policies and procedures were revised in February 2012 to
require that evidence of the verification be included with purchase requisitions
to document compliance with the suspension and debarment requirements.
The contracts with the two vendors tested were initiated and processed prior
to this revision.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: See page 205.

Questioned
Costs

None
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN
 POLICE DEPARTMENT

s DOUGLAS C. GILLESPIE, Sheriff

Partners with the Community

April 30, 2013

Mr. Daniel Rushin, Sr. Manager
Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 W. Sunset Rd-Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Dear Mr. Rushin,

Per your request via e-mail dated April 12, please find below LVMPD's response to finding 2011-7 from
the revised 2011 Single Audit:

LVMPD will comply with our procedure that was initiated February 2012 to electronically or physically
attach documentation to the purchase order requisition verifying that vendors are not suspended or
debarred.

Sincerely,

o

Karen Keller, Chief Financial Officer

400 S. Martin L. King Blvd. * Las Vegos, Nevada 89106-4372 « [702) 795-3111 -205-
www.lvmpd.com * www.protechthecity.com




CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2011

See pages 207-224.

-206-



Department of Finance

Purchasing and Contracts

500 S Grand Central Pky 4th FI < Box 551217 < Las Vegas NV 89155-1217
(702) 455-2897 + Fax (702) 386-4914

George W. Stevens, Chief Financial Officer « Yolanda T. King, Director of Budget & Financial Planning
Yolanda C. Jones, C.P.M., CPPO, Purchasing Manager

March 14, 2012

Kafoury, Armstong & Co.
1700 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Subject: Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs — OMB Circular A-133

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is in response to your finding 2010-1 by Kaufoury, Armstrong & Co., regarding the above reference
subject.

Condition: Federal procurement requirements were deemed direct and material for 6 of the 9 programs tested as
major. Our tests disclosed that these procurement requirements were not being adhered to. Specifically, in 4 of the
6 programs, the required verifications regarding suspended and debarred parties were not performed. Also, one
program (CDBG — CDFA No. 14.218/14.253) performed an EPLS search as the verification procedure for
governmental and non-profits contracts, however such entities are not included on the EPLS. Verification for these
types of entities is required by using one of the other two verification methods. Additionally, one program
SNPLMA — CFDA No. 15.235) did not comply with the Buy American Act. The County had a similar finding over
procurement compliance during the fiscal year 2009 audit.

Criteria: The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement (dated June 2010), states that “non-federal entities are
prohibited from contracting with or making subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or
debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred. ‘Covered transactions’ include those procurement
contracts for goods and services awarded under a nonprocurement transaction (e.g., grant or cooperative agreement)
that are expected to equal or exceed $25,000... [and] all nonprocurement transactions (i.e., subawards to
subrecipients), irrespective of award amount.” Prior to entering into a contract for a covered transaction, the non-
federal entity is required to verify that the entity is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded. The
compliance supplement provides three options for performing the verification.

Additionally, certain federal grants agreements include provisions for compliance with the Buy American Act.

Effect: Contracts with suspended or debarred vendors and subrecipients, could be initiated and suspended or
debarred parties could be paid with federal dollars. Additionally, there is a potential for non-compliance with the
Buy American Act requirements.

Cause: The Purchasing and Contracts Division for the County implemented formal suspension and debarment and
Buy American Act control policies and procedures in April 2010. Procedures were not performed retrospectively on
existing contracts or on contract amendments dated subsequent to the date of the policy issuance.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair * STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair 207-
LARRY BROWN « TOM COLLINS - CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI + MARY BETH SCOW « LAWRENCE WEEKLY
DONALD G. BURNETTE, County Manager



.

Finding 2010-1
March 14, 2012
Page 2 of 2

Therefore, existing contracts with current year federal expenditures were not in compliance with the federal
procurement requirements. Additionally, it was noted that the Purchasing and Contracts Division for Metro had not
implemented formal policies and procedures regarding the handling of federal procurement requirements.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County perform suspension and debarment verification on existing
contract and contract amendments with federal expenditures. Additionally, we recommend that Metro establish
written policies and procedures regarding Federal procurement requirements. We also recommend that the policies
require documenting in writing the procedures performed.

Corrective Action: Clark County accepts the auditor’s recommendation. Clark County Purchasing and Contracts
will perform suspension and debarment verification on existing contracts and contract amendments with federal
expenditures. This will be done by obtaining a report on active federally funded projects in the system. In addition,
polices and procedures will continue to be updated as needed.

Sincerely,

laitn ) C.

landa C. Jones, C.P.M., CP
hasing Manager

cc: Jessica Colvin
Elizabeth Vorce
George Stevens
Yolanda King
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN

POLICE DEPARTMENT

SILLESPIE, Sheriff

| Paf'fnersth fheCo RS

* March 13, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas NV 89113

‘RE: L},dea»ted Response to Schedule of Fi'n_din'gs from FY 10 Grant Si'ngleiAudit, -

5 To‘Wh‘Om It May Concern;» -

' vLast year the Las Vegas Metropohtan Pohce Department (LVMPD) accepted the recommendatrons

‘ :made in Fmdmg 2010-1 From the FY 10 Grant Smgle Audit. That fmdlng recommends that LVMPD
develop and implement procedures for documentlng search results demonstratmg comphance to -

'suspended and debarred vendor exclusron requrrements At the trme, LVMPD- committed to develop
fand lmplement a pollcy requlrmg that a search be conducted of the Excluded Partles Llst System prlor to

search results return a p055|ble match and was to also requnre the results to be prmted and attached to
the’ approprlate purchase requlsxtlon I am pleased to report that LVMPD complled W|th our response to
the fmdmg by developmg a compllant pollcy and mstltutlng practlces accordmgly :

Please feel free to contact. me with any"_fUrther questivonso;-concerhs. Do

- Sincerely, :

o Rithard. Hoggan
Budget Director, LVMPD

400 S. Martin L. King Blvd. - Las Vegas, Nevada 89106-4372 U (702) 795-3111
www.lvmpd.com © www. protecﬂhecrly com Sl
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Department of Administrative Services
Community Resources Management

500 S Grand Central Pky 5th FI »+ Box 551212 + Las Vegas NV 89155-1212
(702) 455-5025 + Fax (702) 455-5038

Sabra Smith-Newby, Director » Michael J. Pawlak, Manager

March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Dear Auditors:

The purpose of this letter is to confirm implementation of the Corrective Action Letter dated
March 8, 2011, for findings reported during the 2010 OMB A-133 Single Audit.

2010-2
Condition:

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG, CFDA No. 14.218) and Community Development
Block Grant ARRA Entitlement Grant (CDBG-R, CFDA No. 14.253). The County’s Community
Resources Management Division is required to submit financial and performance reports for the
CDBG Grant. CRM incorrectly omitted NSP1 from the required cash transactions reports and
incorrectly excluded and incorrectly reported subrecipient expenditures on the Section 1512 ARRA
reports. ' '

Corrective Action Taken in 2011:

Following the 2010 audit report finding in March of 2011, beginning with the third quarter reports for
FY 2011, Clark County immediately took corrective action and began submitting cumulative SF-
425 reports of all NSP1 and CDBG cluster expenditures. Because the reports submitted at that
time were cumulative cash receipts and expenditure data, financial information for NSP1 and
CDBG was not underreported as of that date.

| hope this information provides you with the necessary update requested as part of your current

audit. |
Sincerely,

277 W (oo ok
Michael J. Pawlak, Manager

Community Resources Management

cc. Mark Gamett
Elizabeth Vorce

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair « STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair
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Department of Comprehensive Planning

500 S Grand Central Pky « Box 551741 « Las Vegas NV 89155-1741
(702) 455-4314 - Fax(702) 385-8940

Nancy Lipski, Director

March 16, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 2010
Las Vegas, NV 89113

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR - 2010-3 AUDIT FINDING UPDATE

Dear Sirs:

Our office has implemented corrective action on the above noted finding from the year ending June 30,
2010, and provide the following update to you.

Original Condition:

We tested the quarterly Federal Financial Report (SF-425) and the Quarterly BLM Database for
compliance with Federal requirements. Our tests disclosed that for all of the SF-425 reports tested, the
County incorrectly reported cash receipts and cash disbursements on the SF-425 by using quarterly totals
instead of the required cumulative totals. In addition, the amount reported as the “Federal share of
unliquidated obligations” did not properly include the obligations incurred by not yet paid at the end of
the reporting period.

Original Response:

The Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) were being filled out per instructions by the Grantor. When the
above listed audit finding was provided to the Grantor, they agreed the SF-425’s were being filled out
incorrectly, and directed County staff to use cumulative totals on lines 10 (a-c) and report unliquidated
obligations such as retention amounts on line 10(f) for all future SF-425 submittals.

Additionally, County staff will ensure adequate review of the financial status and BLM database reports by
providing additional staff review of the reports prior to submittal to the Grantor. Staff will document those
reviews by placing signed and dated statements in the County files showing the staffer who prepared the
reports and the additional staff that reviewed the reports prior to submittal to the Grantor.

Corrective Action Taken:
In response to the 2010 audit finding, staff initiated the following actions:

(1) County staff notified the Grantor of the finding, which prompted them to alter their instructions to
other fund grantee’s, of which about one-half were filling out the SF-425 forms incorrectly.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chair « STEVE SISOLAK, Vice-Chair
LARRY BROWN « TOM COLLINS « CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI « MARY BETH SCOW + LAWRENCE WEEKLY -211-
DONALD G. BURNETTE, County Manager



(2) Staff implemented a multi-person process to ensure each document was reviewed and checked for
accuracy by a minimum of two people prior to reporting to the Grantor.

(3) Staff has implemented a process which creates documentation of those reviews, noting who reviewed
the reports and which reports they reviewed. This signed document is included in the County files
kept for each reporting time period.

With just a few minor exceptions, these corrective actions have provided an efficient process which
provides accurate and timely reporting to the Grantor for all the SNPLMA Park, Trail and Natural Area

projects currently being implemented by Clark County.

Should you have any questions regarding this update, feel free to contact Ron Gregory at (702) 455-3121 or
clarkcountynv.gov.

Sincerely,

>” /1/28 Co
Nancy '{.apskl
Director

cc: David Dobrzynski, Clark County Finance
Elizabeth Vorce, Clark County Finance
Becky Deuel, Clark County Public Works
Patsy Schrader, Clark County Public Works
Ron Gregory, Clark County Comprehensive Planning
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HE DISTRICT ATTORNE

Family Support Division R

(702) 671-9200 - TDD (702) 385-7486 (for the hearing impaired) CHRIS OWENS

LEGAL SECTION Assistant District Attorney

1900 East Flamingo Road, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89119-5168 MARY-ANNE MILLER

Fax: (702) 366-2440 JEFFREY J. Wit
STEVEN B. WOLFSON - WITTHUN
District Attorney
March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.

Attn: Tami Miramontes
8329 W. Sunset Road
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Dear Ms. Miramontes:

Clark County District Attorney, Family Support Division (DAFS) has taken the following actions to
implement the corrective action plan for Finding 2010-4 from our 2010 OMB A-133 Single Audit:

Since June 2011, we have had the ability to fill many of the vacant positions which remained open
for the past three years and we are starting to fill those positions. This will enable us to reduce
caseload sizes which will allow case managers additional time to more efficiently and effectively
manage their cases. This will increase the likelihood that we will further improve our compliance
with state and federal requirements.

Despite persistence of the poor economy in Clark County, as well as the nation, DAFS management
and staff remain committed to continued improvement in our performance and providing excellent
service to our customers. This is evidenced by record increases at DAFS in four of the federal
performance measures ending Federal Fiscal Year 2011, specifically paternity rate, court order rate,
current support collections, and payments on arrears.

In 2011, we implemented the four items in our corrective action plan with significant success.
Some of the specific initiatives include:

We sought to change state policy regarding reasonable orders for incarcerated NCPs.
New and enhanced reports (partial payment, delinquency, drivers license suspension, arrears
only).
Auto-dialer to contact NCPs that were not making payments

*  Doubled court calendars for modifications and contempt actions for failure to pay, and added
pay/stay calendars where NCPs are required to make a payment or they are sent to jail.
Mandatory phone calls to NCPs who were not making payments.
An amnesty project where case managers negotiated payments on bench warrants and drivers
license suspensions.
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In 2010, we put in place an internal QC process in terms of reviewing cases upon closure for the
accurate setting of Born Out Of Wedlock indicators and to ensure compliance with federal closure
criteria. These closure reviews were done by the unit administrator and supervisors on the
Establishment Unit, the supervisor on the Locate Team, and the Enforcement Closure Team. We
intend for these closure QC reviews to continue.

We continue to encourage case managers to think outside the box to exercise independent judgment
while utilizing their tools and reports and managing their caseloads for optimal collections.

Sincerely,

Teresa M. Lowry
Assistant District Attorney

CC: Jeffrey J. Witthun, Assistant Director — Operations
Kathi M. Brunson, Unit Administrator
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Department of Family Services

121 South Martin Luther King Boulevard ¢ Las Vegas, Nevada 89106-4309
(702) 455-7200 - Fax (702) 385-2999 -« Hotline (702) 399-0081

Lisa Ruiz Lee, Interim Director « Paula Hammack, Assistant Director

March 13, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co
1700 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Subject: Title IV-E Foster Care (CFDA No. 93.658) and Adoption Assistance Program (CFDA No. 93.659) — Audit Findings

The Department of Family Services (DFS) has reviewed and completed the items addressed during the subject audit.
Below is DFS’ response to Finding 2010-5, 2010-6, 2010-7, and 2010-8.

Finding 2010-5 — It was reported that there is no documentation to support supervisory review and approval of
eligibility determination under the Foster Care and Adoption IV-E programs. Although none of the sample case
files revealed any payments to ineligible individuals, auditors felt there could be Foster Care and Adoption IV-E
funding made to ineligible individuals as a result of inadequate controls.

Corrective Action — Currently a random sample of 10 IV-E case reviews for each eligibility worker is completed at
least on a quarterly basis. The reviewer completes the IV-E Determination Worksheet for each case reviewed that
includes the review month, findings and signature of reviewer. Supervisor provides oversight of all-case reviews
and verifies compliance with Title IV-E Federal and State policies and procedures. The procedure has been revised
so that the Determination Worksheet of each of the cases reviewed will be kept in a central file for future audits.

The Eligibility workers continue to sample 10 cases from each Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption program each
quarter for Title IV-E compliance period. These findings are then staffed with the supervisor and the IV-E
Determination Worksheet is kept by the supervisor for audit purposes.

Finding 2010-6 — It was reported that the County’s internal control over the review of the Title IV-E Foster Care and
Adoption Assistance Reports were ineffective. Formula errors were identified for two (2) quarters which resulted in an
over-reimbursement from the grantor in the amount of $43,618. The findings noted “ineffective management oversight
over the reporting compliance requirement, as there was a lack of adequate review of the Title IV-E Foster Care and
Adoption Assistance Reports prior to their submission to grantor.”

Corrective Action — The existing process for preparation of the Title IV-E Foster Care and Adoption Assistance Financial
Reports necessitates a reconciliation of quarterly period expenditures balanced with general ledger expense
transactions recorded in the County’s Financial System, SAP. This reconciliation task is performed by the Title IV-E
financial analyst.

One Senior Financial Analyst was reassigned to oversee, review, and implement internal controls of the IV-E process to
strengthen the DFS Title IV-E claiming process.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SUSAN BRAGER, Chairman ¢ STEVE SISOLAK, Vice Chair
TOM COLLINS ¢ LARRY BROWN ¢ LAWRENCE WEEKLY ¢ CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI ¢ MARY BETH SCOW
DON BURNETTE, County Manager -215-



A financial working group was also assembled to address the issue of formula errors, duplicate entries, and inaccurate
data. This group met with Title IV-E representatives from the Federal and State level to discuss solutions of accurately
calculating the cost pool as it relates to Title IV-E claiming.

In addition, DFS contracted with the Public Consulting Group (PCG) to provide software that DFS will use in the quarterly
Federal claiming process. This software will increase DFS’ accuracy and efficiency compared to the current spreadsheet
based process. This is the same back-end system structure currently in use by several Nevada State Department of
Health and Human Services divisions and Washoe County Department of Social Service, in addition to other agencies
outside of the State of Nevada.

Federal program guidelines do not specify a deadline for refunding over-reimbursements; however, the over-
reimbursement amount of $43,618 was adjusted to $1,845 based on further review from the State and Federal
agencies. The 1,845 was processed as a prior-quarter adjustment on the FY 11 (December 4™ quarter) Title IV-E
Foster Care and Adoption Assistance Financial Report.

Finding 2010-7 - It was noted that $109,093 in Chafee Independent Living Program “integration” expenditures
charged to the grant were not properly reviewed and approved by program management. The room and board
portion of this assistance is allowable only to participants who are over the age of 18. The total room and board
assistance paid to participants under the age of 18 during the year totaled $8,316.

Corrective Action — The Child Welfare Integration Budget no longer includes Federal Chafee funds. However, the
Chafee Federal Guidelines designate 30% of funding for room and board expenses for youth 18 years and over.
As part of the corrective action plan, Fiscal Supervisor will review and sign off on Chafee Requests for
Reimbursement funded through the Child Welfare Integration Budget and ensure that the youth are 18 years and
over.

Finding 2010-8 It was reported that Monthly Financial Status and Request for Funds Reports detailed incorrect
current period expenditures resulting in improperly calculated request for funds. In addition, three (3) reports did
not properly take into consideration advance funds requested and received. The finding indicated ineffective
management oversight over the reporting and cash management compliance requirements due to inadequate
review prior to submission to grantor.

Corrective Action — The existing process for preparation of Monthly Financial Status and Monthly Financial Status
and Request for Fund reports necessitates a reconciliation of current period expenditures specified on the
Monthly Financial Status and Request for Funds balanced with general ledger expense transactions recorded in
the County’s Financial System SAP.

As of the review date Department of Family Services no longer accept cash advances

Sincerely,

Paula Hammack :

Assistant Director
Department of Family Services

cc: Mark Gamett
Alex Ortiz

-216-



Department of Social Service
Tim Burch, Director

Bobby J. Gordon, Acting Assistant Director ¢ Sandy Jeantete, Assistant Director
1600 Pinto Lane e Las Vegas NV 89106 e (702) 455-4270 e Fax (702) 455-5950

March 15, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

The audit findings and corrective actions for the Ryan White Part A program for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010 have been reviewed by Department management and the Acting Administrator of the

Ryan White program. Below are the updates:

In reference to Finding 2010-9
Update: Staff has formally requested technical assistance from our HRSA Project

Officer to develop a methodology to track actual expenditures for the
WICY report, while still utilizing the cost based reimbursement method.
Once this methodology is developed, contract language will be included in
provider contracts related to the financial reporting of services provided to
WICY clients. :

In reference to Finding 2010-10

Update: Staff is following the additional compliance and monitoring procedures
that cover both doing business with suspended and debarred parties and
OMB A-133 audit requirements. Staff has checked the EPLS (Excluded
Parties List System) annually for each contracted provider, prior to the
beginning of the grant year, which is also the beginning of the provider
contract year. In addition, staff has communicated to all providers the
policy regarding the requirement that they check all their providers against
the EPLS as needed and appropriate. Staff also verifies that providers
have made the appropriate checks during yearly site visits and randomly
re-verify that their providers do not appear on the EPLS list. Staff ensures
that all provider A-133 audits are submitted, reviewed and any required
management action is taken upon submission of the provider audit. Per
the updated procedure, staff ensures providers are aware and receive
reminders of the grantee required timeframes for submission of A-133
audits. Provider contract language will be updated to include relevant
timeframes as well.

In reference to Finding 2010-11

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Susan Brager, Chair * Steve Sisolak, Vice-Chair
Lawrence L. Brown III « Tom Collins * Chris Giunchigilani » Mary Beth Scowe Lawrence Weekly
Donald G. Brunette, County Manager
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Update: It appears that the Department of Health and Human Services Payment
Management System utilized by Clark County to produce the Federal
Financial Reports still incorrectly populates the cumulative totals as
required on the SF-425 based on information entered by the County. Clark
County will continue to work with HRSA and our Project Officer to
resolve the auto population issue in the HHS Payment Management
System.

Please do not hesitate to contact our office if you have additional questions.

Sincerely,

L) —
/" Tim Burch ﬁ/sﬂ*z"‘”/"

Director
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March 13, 2012

Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.

8329 West Sunset Road, Suite 210

Las Vegas, NV 89113

Dear Sir or Madam:

Our office has reviewed the findings from the year ending June 30, 2010 Emergency
Management Performance Grant and Homeland Security Grant Program Cluster audit.
Below are the responses to the two audit conditions:

In reference to Finding 2010-12

Conditions:

Subsequent to June 30, 2010, the County established
internal controls over the employee certifications and over
the quarterly financial reporting requirements. Also,
monitoring procedures have been enhanced as they related
to reviewing and approving updates to quarterly financial
reports. The County’s SAP system is used to obtain the
payroll cost for the grant.

Documentation is poor and internal controls are weak in
relation to the activities, allowable costs, matching criteria,
and reporting requirements for this grant. Grant personnel
could not specifically identify how employee time spent and
charged to the grant related to the EMPG work plans (as
required by the grant). Additionally, for those employees
working on activities other than those supported by the

500 S. Grand Central Pkwy * PO Box 551713 « Las Vegas, NV 89155-1713 « (702) 455-5710

Clark County Local Emergency Planning Committee
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Emergency Management Performance Grant, there were no
personnel activity reports to support salaries and wages
charged to the grants (both the federal and matching
portions). For those employees working solely on the
Emergency Management Performance Grant, the required
semi-annual certifications from employees or their direct
supervisors indicating that 100% of the time was spent on the
Emergency Management Performance Grant were not
completed. Also, the quarterly financial reports submitted
were not supported by a general ledger. The County had a
similar finding over compliance with this program during the
fiscal year 2009 audit.

Subsequent to June 30, 2010, the County established
procedures to obtain semi annual certifications of employees
charged 100% to the grant and established a certification for
employees not charged 100% to the grant. Also,
management established procedures to gather payroll cost
by employee from the County’s SAP system. Also,
management has established review and approval
procedures over the quarterly financial reporting.

Corrective Action: The Clark County Office of Emergency
Management and Homeland Security (CCOEMHS)
recognizes there are two different funding sources available
for reimbursement of personnel and operation expenses.
Homeland Security is a function of Emergency Management
and all work preformed is Emergency Management based.
The CCOEMHS conducted a Time Analysis of each FTE
position funded under the EMPG grant in order to directly
link each function performed and time allocated under the
grant. This “timesheet” is given to our payroll department in
order to ensure all FTE grant paid employees are paid in
accordance to the grant cluster they worked on.

The CCOEMHS has engaged both the Budget and
Comptrollers offices in an effort to produce reports and
documentation that support the Quarterly Financial Report.
Files are maintained which include each years EMPG
Guidance, for grant administration, allowable costs and
levels of approval for all expenditures under the grant. Also
included within this file are the Semi-Annual Payroll
Certification Forms, signed by each of the FTE’'s paid at
100% by the EMPG grant in order to comply with federal
requirements OMB Circular A-87.

500 S. Grand Central Pkwy « PO Box 551713 ¢ Las Vegas, NV 89155-1713 ¢ (702) 455-5710  ,,,_



Finding 2010-13

Conditions:

Corrective Actions:

Approved work plans will be reviewed quarterly to ensure
each staff member is working within the plan as outlined in
the annual application.

See above under “Recommendation” the listed corrective
action has been observed and acknowledged by the auditing
agency.

The County paid $1,784,991 to its four (4) sub recipient’s
under the Homeland Security Grant Program Cluster
during the year. We noted that the County did not
perform some of the required compliance and
monitoring procedures for these sub recipients under
this federal grant. Specifically, during the current year,
the County did not monitor its sub recipients
compliance with the Federal procurement requirements
regarding not doing business with suspended and
debarred parties. Also, we tested 1 of the 4 sub
recipients for compliance with obtaining sub recipients
audit reports and taking corrective action and noted that
current audit reports were not obtained. Additionally,
assets purchased by sub recipients were not monitored
to ensure required physical inventories were being
performed or, in the case of asset dispositions that the
equipment was disposed of in accordance with Federal
requirements. The County had a similar finding over
sub recipient monitoring compliance during the fiscal
year 2009 audit.

As stated in all Interlocal Agreements, which are distributed
upon approval to each sub recipient, under Federal
Certification Item 2 Titled DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION,
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS, each sub
recipient is advised of the requirements relative to
Debarment and Suspension as required by Executive Order
12549 and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67 section 67.510.

In 2008, our office instituted corrective actions to sub
recipients requesting audit findings and equipment inventory
to remain in compliance with OMB circular A-133. However,
it is entirely up to the sub recipient to provide to our office the
requested information. Sub recipients agree to these terms

500 S. Grand Central Pkwy ¢ PO Box 551713 « Las Vegas, NV 89155-1713 ¢ (702) 455-5710
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by signing the interlocal contract thereby, authorizing them to
purchase only grant approved equipment. Clark County
itself is a sub recipient of subject funds. These funds are
primarily administered at the State level. The County’s sub
recipients are reminded to submit equipment inventory
sheets as well as any audit reports through quarterly report
reminders. Although this information is requested quarterly
as well as required in the signed interlocal agreement,
information is often submitted intermittently. Any purchase
requests made’ through our office requires verification of the
receipt of goods prior to paying the invoice. Purchased
equipment, $5,000.00 and over, is tagged and inventoried by
the sub recipient. Reimbursements are issued to sub
recipients only on grant-authorized equipment from the
Department of Homeland Security Authorized Equipment
List (AEL).

-

7

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office at (702) 455-5710.

Sincerely,

R Tl

Irene Navis
Division Manager

500 S. Grand Central Pkwy « PO Box 551713 « Las Vegas, NV 89155-1713 ¢ (702) 455-5710
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Department of Public Works

500 S Grand Central Pky » Box 5654000 - Las VVegas NV 89155-4000
(702) 455-6000 - Fax (702) 455-6040

Denis Cederburg, PE., Director « E-Mail: dic@ClarkCountyNV.gov

November 18, 2011

Kafoury, Ari‘nstrong & Co.
8329 W. Sunset Road, Suite 210
Las Vegas, NV 89113

HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER - CFDA NO. 20.205
RE: FINDINGS FOR 2010-14 AND 2014-15 -- CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN

Per your request, the following are the corrective actions that were taken concerning finding No. 2010-14,
Grant No. PR185-08-083 from the year ending June 30, 2010, and provides the following response.

Condition:

Response:

Action Taken:

The County did not obtain required payroll certifications per OMB A-87 for employees who
charged their salaries and wages to the grant during the year. Additionally, we noted that
internal controls are weak in relation to the activities allowed/allowable costs payroll
requirements. Specifically, no controls were noted over the reporting of payroll hours and
pay rates under the Public Works time-keeping system. :

In addition, our testing revealed that indirect payroll rates were charged to the grant over
and above the actual employee hourly rate. Indirect costs are not an allowed cost under

the grant.

The Department is in agreement that it did not obtain prior approval from the federal
agency to incur and seek reimbursement for indirect costs related to this project.
Corrective action will be taken to ensure current and future awards are in full compliance
with the requirement to prepare and submit an indirect cost rate proposal to the federal

agency when deemed appropriate for the project.

The Department returned to the Grantor that pdrtion of the labor invoice that was not
allowable. Additionally, the Department has implemented a procedure whereby payroll
time cards are now certified.

/e
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Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.
HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER - CFDA NO. 20.205
RE: FINDINGS FOR 2010-14 AND 2014-15 -- CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN

November 18, 2011
Page 2

Per your request, the following are the corrective actions that were taken concerning Finding No. 2010-15,
Grant No. PR185-08-083 and P211-09-063 from the year ending June 30, 2010, and provides the

following response.

Condition: We tested ten reimbursement requests submitted by the County during the year and our
tests disclosed that four of the reimbursement requests included construction retention
amounts totaling $90,216.00 which were not yet paid by the County. Since the County is
paid under these grant contracts on a reimbursement basis, the retention was not yet

eligible for reimbursement.
Response: The Department has strengthened its controls and has taken corrective action, whereby

invoices submitted to the federal agency for reimbursement are based on actual payments
made to the vendor, and will not include funds held in retention.

Action Taken: The Department has discontinued invoicing the Grantor for the retention portion of the pay
estimate until the County has released the retention.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact Scott Trierweiler at (702) 455-6019.

Sincerely,

Denis Cederburg
Director of Public Works

DLC:ST:iam

cc: Becky Deuel, Finance Department — Support Services
Scott Trierweiler, Finance Department — Support Services
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